


 
 

	

SINDHU TRADE LINKS LIMITED 

129, Transport Centre, Punjabi Bagh, Rohtak Road, New Delhi - 110035 

 
Notice is hereby given that the 28th Annual General Meeting of the Company will be held on 31st December, 2020 at 11:00 A.M. 
virtually to transact the following business: 

 
AS ORDINARY BUSINESS 

 
1. To receive, consider and adopt the audited Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2020 (Standalone and Consolidated), Statement of 

Profit and Loss, Cash Flow Statement for the period ended on that date and the Auditor’s Report thereon and the Directors’ 
Report thereto. 

 
2. To appoint a Director in place of Mr. Rudra Sen Sindhu (DIN No. 00006999), who retires by rotation and, being eligible, offers 

himself for re-appointment. 
 
 
AS SPECIAL BUSINESS 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

3. To Regularize Mrs. Usha Sindhu, (DIN 00033930) Additional Director of the Company  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

“RESOLVED THAT Mrs. Usha Sindhu (DIN: 000339390), who was appointed as an Additional Director of the Company by 
the Board of Directors with effect from 17th August, 2020 and who holds office up to the date of this Annual General Meeting 
under Section 161(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act’) and Article 95 & 103 of the Articles of Association of the 
Company, but who is eligible for appointment and in respect of whom the Company has received a notice in writing under 
Section 160(1) of the Act from a Member, proposing her candidature for the office of Director, be and is hereby appointed as a 
Director of the Company. 
 
RESOLVED FURTHER THAT pursuant to the provisions of Sections 161 and other applicable provisions, if any, of the Act 
and the Companies (Appointment and Qualifications of Directors) Rules, 2014, as amended from time to time, appointment of 
Mrs. Usha Sindhu, who is liable to retire by rotation, be and is hereby approved.” 
 
 

4. To Regularize Mr. Ramesh Shah, (DIN 00029864) Additional Director of the Company  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

“RESOLVED THAT Mr. Ramesh Shah (DIN 00029864), who was appointed as an Additional Director of the Company by the 
Board of Directors with effect from 02nd September, 2020 and who holds office up to the date of this Annual General Meeting 
under Section 161(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act’) and Article 95 & 103 of the Articles of Association of the 
Company, but who is eligible for appointment and in respect of whom the Company has received a notice in writing under 
Section 160(1) of the Act from a Member, proposing her candidature for the office of Director, be and is hereby appointed a 
Director of the Company. 
 
RESOLVED FURTHER THAT pursuant to the provisions of Sections 149, 152, Schedule IV and other applicable provisions, if 
any, of the Act and the Companies (Appointment and Qualifications of Directors) Rules, 2014, as amended from time to time, 
appointment of Mr. Ramesh Shah, who has submitted a declaration that she meets the criteria for independence as provided 
in Section 149(6) of the Act and Regulation 16(b) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 
2015, as an Independent Director of the Company, not liable to retire by rotation, for a term of 3 years, with effect from 28th 
AGM up to 31st AGM, be and is hereby approved.” 
 

5. Approval Of Related Party Transactions With Sainik Mining And Allied Services Limited Amounting To Rs. 300 Crores 
(Approx.) For The Financial Year 2020-21, and in this regard to consider and if thought fit, to pass the with or without 
modification(s) , the following resolution as an Special Resolution: 

 
“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to provisions of Section 188 (1) , Section 110 and other applicable provisions, if any, of the 
Companies Act, 2013 and in terms of applicable provisions of SEBI Listing Regulations, Listing Agreement, (including any 
statutory modification(s) or re-enactment(s) thereof for the time being in force), the provisions of Memorandum and Article Of 
Association of the Company and other applicable statutory provisions and regulations, if any, as amended from time to time, and 
subject to the necessary registration approvals , consents, permissions and sanctions required, if any and such conditions or 
modifications as may be prescribed by any of institutions or bodies, statutory authorities while granting any such approvals, 
which may be agreed to, in its sole discretion , by the Board of Directors of the Company ( hereinafter referred to as “ the board” 
which term shall include any of its duly authorized committees or one or more directors), the consent of the company be and is 
hereby accorded to enter into material transactions related to the sale , purchase or supply of any goods or materials, leasing 
property of any kind and availing or rendering of services with Sainik Mining And Allied Services Limited during the financial 
year 2020-21 on the terms and conditions as briefly mentioned in the explanatory statement to this resolution. 
 
FURTHER RESOLVED THAT Sh. Satya Pal Sindhu, Managing Director of the Company be and is authorized to do all acts, 
deeds, matters and things that may be necessary, proper, expedient or incidental thereto for the purpose of giving effects to this 
Resolution. 
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6. Approval Of Related Party Transactions With ACB(India) Limited Amounting To Rs. 350 Crores (Approx.) For The 
Financial Year 2020-21, and in this regard to consider and if thought fit , to pass the with or without modification(s) , the 
following resolution as an Ordinary Resolution: 

 
“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to provisions of Section 188 (1) , Section 110 and other applicable provisions, if any, of the 
Companies Act, 2013 and in terms of applicable provisions of SEBI Listing Regulations, Listing Agreement, (including any 
statutory modification(s) or re-enactment(s) thereof for the time being in force), the provisions of Memorandum and Article Of 
Association of the Company and other applicable statutory provisions and regulations, if any, as amended from time to time, 
and subject to the necessary registration approvals , consents, permissions and sanctions required, if any and such conditions or 
modifications as may be prescribed by any of the institutions or bodies, statutory authorities while granting any such approvals, 
which may be agreed to, in its sole discretion , by the Board of Directors of the Company ( hereinafter referred to as “ the board” 
which term shall include any of its duly authorized committees or one or more directors), the consent of the company be and is 
hereby accorded to enter into material transactions related to the sale , purchase or supply of any goods or materials, leasing 
property of any kind and  availing or rendering of services with ACB (India) Limited during the financial year 2020-21 on the 
terms and conditions as briefly mentioned in the explanatory statement to this resolution. 
 
 
FURTHER RESOLVED THAT Sh. Satya Pal Sindhu, Managing Director of the Company be and is authorized to do all acts, 
deeds, matters and things that may be necessary, proper, expedient or incidental thereto for the purpose of giving effects to this 
Resolution.” 
 
                                                                                                                                             By order of the Board of Directors 
                                                                                                                      FOR SINDHU TRADE LINKS LIMITED 
 
 
 
Place: New Delhi             
Date: 04.12.2020                                            Sd/- 

                                                                                                                       Suchi Gupta 
                    Company Secretary 

                                                                                                                                                                                                       ACS No.-26066 
 
 

Notes: 
 
Explanatory Statement pursuant to Section 102 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) setting out material facts concerning the 
special business under Item Nos. 3 to 6 of the accompanying Notice, is annexed hereto. The Board of Directors of the Company on 
04th December, 2020 considered that the special business under item Nos. 3 to 6, being considered unavoidable, be transacted at 
the 28th AGM of the Company. 
 
In view of the continuing Covid-19 pandemic, the Ministry of Corporate Affairs (“MCA”) has vide its circular dated May 5, 2020 
read with circulars dated April 8, 2020 and April 13, 2020 (collectively referred to as “MCA Circulars”) and Circular No. SEBI/ 
HO/ CFD/ CMD1/ CIR/ P/ 2020 /79 dated 12th May 2020 permitted the holding of the Annual General Meeting (“AGM”) 
through VC / OAVM, without the physical presence of the Members at a common venue. In compliance with the provisions of 
the Companies Act, 2013 (“Act”), SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (“SEBI Listing 
Regulations”) and MCA Circulars, the AGM of the Company is being held through VC / OAVM. 
 
The deemed venue for the 28th AGM shall be the Registered Office of the Company. 
 
The relevant details, pursuant to Regulations 26(4) and 36(3) of the SEBI Listing Regulations and Secretarial Standard on General 
Meetings issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India, in respect of Director seeking appointment / re-appointment at 
this AGM is annexed. 
 
Pursuant to the provisions of the Act, a Member entitled to attend and vote at the AGM is entitled to appoint a proxy to attend 
and vote on his/her behalf and the proxy need not be a Member of the Company. Since this AGM is being held pursuant to the 
MCA Circulars through VC / OAVM, physical attendance of Members has been dispensed with. Accordingly, the facility for 
appointment of proxies by the Members will not be available for the AGM and hence the Proxy Form and Attendance Slip are not 
annexed to this Notice. 
 
Institutional / Corporate Shareholders (i.e. other than individuals / HUF, NRI, etc.) are required to send a scanned copy 
(PDF/JPG Format) of its Board or governing body Resolution/Authorization etc., authorizing its representative to attend the 
AGM through VC / OAVM on its behalf and to vote through remote e-voting. The said Resolution/Authorization shall be sent to 
the Scrutinizer by email through its registered email address to r.gulati64@gmail.com with a copy marked to evoting@nsdl.co.in 
 
The Register of Members and Transfer Books of the Company will be closed from Friday 25th December, 2020 to Thursday, 31st 
December, 2020 (both days inclusive) for the purpose of holding Annual General Meeting of the Company. 
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As per Regulation 40 of SEBI Listing Regulations, as amended, securities of listed companies can be transferred only in 
dematerialized form with effect from, April 1, 2019, except in case of request received for transmission or transposition of 
securities. In view of this and to eliminate all risks associated with physical shares and for ease of portfolio management, 
members holding shares in physical form are requested to consider converting their holdings to dematerialized form. Members 
can contact the Company or Company’s Registrars and Transfer Agent, Indus Portfolio Private Limited (“IPPL”), having its 
corporate office at G-65, Bali Nagar, Delhi -110015 Ph. No. 011-47671214 for assistance in this regard.  
 
To support the ‘Green Initiative’, Members who have not yet registered their email addresses are requested to register the same 
with their DPs in case the shares are held by them in electronic form and with IPPL in case the shares are held by them in physical 
form.  
 
Members are requested to intimate changes, if any, pertaining to their name, postal address, email address, telephone/ mobile 
numbers, Permanent Account Number (PAN), mandates, nominations, power of attorney, bank details such as, name of the bank 
and branch details, bank account number, MICR code, IFSC code, etc., to their DPs in case the shares are held by them in 
electronic form and to IPPL in case the shares are held by them in physical form.  
 
As per the provisions of Section 72 of the Act, the facility for making nomination is available for the Members in respect of the 
shares held by them. Members who have not yet registered their nomination are requested to register the same by submitting 
Form No.SH-13. The said form can be downloaded from the Company’s website www.sindhutrade.com. Members are requested 
to submit the said details to their DP in case the shares are held by them in electronic form and to IPPL in case the shares are held 
in physical form. 
 
SEBI has mandated submission of PAN and Bank Details by every participant in securities market. Members holding shares in 
electronic form are, therefore, requested to submit the PAN to their respective depository participants with whom they are 
maintaining their demat accounts. Members holding shares in physical form can submit their PAN details to IPPL. 
 
Members seeking any information with regard to the accounts or any matter to be placed at the AGM, are requested to write to 
the Company on or before 30th December, 2020 through email on corporatecompliance@sindhutrade.com. The same will be 
replied by the Company suitably. 
 
Members holding shares in physical form, in identical order of names, in more than one folio are requested to send to the 
Company or IPPL, the details of such folios together with the share certificates for consolidating their holdings in one folio. A 
consolidated share certificate will be issued to such Members after making requisite changes. 
 
In compliance with the aforesaid MCA Circulars and SEBI Circular dated May 12, 2020, Notice of the AGM along with the 
Annual Report 2019-20 is being sent only through electronic mode to those Members whose email addresses are registered with 
the Company/ Depositories. Members may note that the Notice and Annual Report 2019-20 will also be available on the 
Company’s website www.sindhutrade.com, websites of the Stock Exchanges i.e. BSE Limited at www.bseindia.com and on the 
website of NSDL https://www.evoting.nsdl.com  
 
Notice of AGM shall be send electronically to the members/ shareholders whose name are appeared on Friday 25th December, 
2020 in the records of Depository and Register of Members maintained by RTA and whose email addresses are registered with 
the Company / Depositories / RTA  
 
Members attending the AGM through VC / OAVM shall be counted for the purpose of reckoning the quorum under Section 103 
of the Act. 
 
In case of joint holders, the Member whose name appears as the first holder in the order of names as per the Register of Members 
of the Company will be entitled to vote at the AGM. 
 
At the 25th AGM held on 28th September, 2017, the members approved appointment of M/s Divyank Khullar & Associates 
Chartered Accountants, New Delhi (bearing ICAI Registration No.025755N) as Statutory Auditors to hold office for a period of 
five years from the conclusion of that AGM till the conclusion of the 30th AGM to be held for the financial year ending on 31st 
March 2022, subject to ratification of their appointment by Members at every AGM, if so required under the Act. The requirement 
to place the matter relating to appointment of auditors for ratification by Members at every AGM has been done away by the 
Companies (Amendment) Act, 2017 with effect from May 7, 2018. Accordingly, no resolution is being proposed for ratification of 
appointment of statutory auditors at the 28th AGM. 
 
Since the AGM will be held through VC / OAVM, the Route Map is not annexed in this Notice.  
 
In terms of Section 101 and 136 of the Companies Act, 2013 read together with the Rules made thereunder, the copy of the Annual 
Report including Financial statements, Board’s report etc. and this Notice are being sent by electronic mode, to those members 
who have registered their email ID’s with their respective depository participants or with the Registrar and Share Transfer Agent 
of the Company, unless any member has requested for a physical copy of the same. In case you wish to get a physical copy of the 
Annual Report, you may send your request to pk.mittal@indusinvest.com or corporatecompliance@sindhutrade.com mentioning 
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your Folio/DP ID & Client ID. 
 
Instructions for e-voting and joining the AGM are as follows:  
 
A. VOTING THROUGH ELECTRONIC MEANS  
 
In compliance with the provisions of Section 108 of the Act, read with Rule 20 of the Companies (Management and 
Administration) Rules, 2014, as amended from time to time, and Regulation 44 of the SEBI Listing Regulations, the Members are 
provided with the facility to cast their vote electronically, through the e-voting services provided by NSDL, on all the resolutions 
set forth in this Notice. The instructions for e-voting are given herein below.  
 
The remote e-voting period commences on Monday, 28th December, 2020 (9:00 a.m. IST) and ends on Wednesday, 30th 
December, 2020 (5:00 p.m. IST). During this period, Members holding shares either in physical form or in dematerialized form, as 
on Friday, 25th December, 2020 i.e. cut-off date, may cast their vote electronically. The e-voting module shall be disabled by 
NSDL for voting thereafter. Those Members, who will be present in the AGM through VC / OAVM facility and have not cast 
their vote on the Resolutions through remote e-voting and are otherwise not barred from doing so, shall be eligible to vote 
through e-voting system during the AGM. 
 
The voting rights of Members shall be in proportion to their shares of the paid up equity share capital of the Company as on 
Friday, 25th December, 2020. 
 
The Board of Directors has appointed Mr. Rajesh Gulati, Practicing Chartered Accountant (Membership No. 089046), has been 
appointed as the Scrutinizer to scrutinize the voting during the AGM and remote e-voting process in a fair and transparent 
manner.  
 
The Members who have cast their vote by remote e-voting prior to the AGM may also attend / participate in the AGM through 
VC / OAVM but shall not be entitled to cast their vote again.  
 
Any person, who acquires shares of the Company and becomes a Member of the Company after sending of the Notice and 
holding shares as of the cut-off date i.e. Friday, 25th December, 2020, may obtain the login ID and password by sending a request 
at evoting@nsdl.co.in. However, if he/she is already registered with NSDL for remote e-voting then he/she can use his/her 
existing User ID and password for casting the vote.  
 
The details of the process and manner for remote e-voting are explained herein below:  
 
Step 1: Log-in to NSDL e-Voting system at https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/ 
 
1. Visit the e-Voting website of NSDL. Open web browser by typing the following URL: https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/ either 

on a Personal Computer or on a mobile. 
2. Once the home page of e-Voting system is launched, click on the icon “Login” which is available under ‘Shareholders’ section. 
3. A new screen will open. You will have to enter your User ID, your Password and a Verification Code as shown on the screen. 

 
Alternatively, if you are registered for NSDL eservices i.e. IDEAS, you can log-in at https://eservices.nsdl.com/ with your 
existing IDEAS login. Once you log-in to NSDL eservices after using your log-in credentials, click on e-Voting and you can 
proceed to Step 2 i.e. Cast your vote electronically. 

 
4. Your User ID details are given below : 
 

Manner of holding shares i.e. Demat (NSDL 
or CDSL) or Physical 

 Your User ID is: 

a) For Members who hold shares in demat 
account with NSDL 

8 Character DP ID followed by 8 Digit Client ID 
For example if your DP ID is IN300*** and Client ID is 
12****** then your user ID is IN300***12******. 

b) For Members who hold shares in demat 
account with CDSL. 

16 Digit Beneficiary ID 
For example if your Beneficiary ID is 12************** then 
your user ID is 12************** 

c) For Members holding shares in Physical 
Form. 

EVEN Number followed by Folio Number registered with 
the Company 
For example if folio number is 001*** and EVEN is 101456 
then user ID is 101456001*** 

 
 
 

5. Your password details are given below: 



 
 

	

SINDHU TRADE LINKS LIMITED 

129, Transport Centre, Punjabi Bagh, Rohtak Road, New Delhi - 110035 

a. If you are already registered for e-Voting, then you can use your existing password to login and cast your vote. 
b. If you are using NSDL e-Voting system for the first time, you will need to retrieve the initial password which 

was communicated to you. Once you retrieve your ‘initial password’, you need enter the ‘initial password’ and 
the system will force you to change your password. 

c. How to retrieve your ‘initial password’? 
i. If your email ID is registered in your demat account or with the Company, your ‘initial password’ is 

communicated to you on your email ID. Trace the email sent to you from NSDL from your mailbox. 
Open the email and open the attachment i.e. pdf file. Open the pdf file. The password to open the pdf 
file is your 8 digit client ID for NSDL account, last 8 digits of client ID for CDSL account or folio number 
for shares held in physical form. The pdf file contains your ‘User ID’ and your ‘initial password’.  

ii. If your email ID is not registered, your ‘initial password’ is communicated to you on your postal 
address. 

6. If you are unable to retrieve or have not received the “ Initial password” or have forgotten your password: 
a. Click on “Forgot User Details/Password?”(If you are holding shares in your demat account with NSDL or 

CDSL) option available on www.evoting.nsdl.com. 
b. Physical User Reset Password?” (If you are holding shares in physical mode) option available on 

www.evoting.nsdl.com. 
c. If you are still unable to get the password by aforesaid two options, you can send a request at evoting@nsdl.co.in 

mentioning your demat account number/folio number, your PAN, your name and your registered address. 
d. Members can also use the one-time password (OTP) based login for casting the votes on the e-Voting system of 

NSDL 
 

7. After entering your password, tick on Agree to “Terms and Conditions” by selecting on the check box. 
8. Now, you will have to click on “Login” button 
9. After you click on the “Login” button, Home page of e-Voting will open. 
 
Step 2 : Cast your vote electronically on NSDL e-Voting system. 
 

1. After successful login at Step 1, you will be able to see the Home page of e-Voting. Click on e-Voting. Then, click on 
Active Voting Cycles. 

2. After click on Active Voting Cycles, you will be able to see all the companies “EVEN” in which you are holding shares 
and whose voting cycle is in active status. 

3. Select “EVEN” of company for which you wish to cast your vote. 
4. Now you are ready for e-Voting as the Voting page opens. 
5. Cast your vote by selecting appropriate options i.e. assent or dissent, verify/modify the number of shares for which you 

wish to cast your vote and click on “Submit” and also “Confirm” when prompted. 
6. Upon confirmation, the message “Vote cast successfully” will be displayed. 
7. You can also take the printout of the votes cast by you by clicking on the print option on the confirmation page. 
8. Once you confirm your vote on the resolution, you will not be allowed to modify your vote. 

 
General Guidelines for shareholders  
 

1. Institutional / Corporate shareholders (i.e. other than individuals, HUF, NRI, etc.) are required to send a scanned copy 
(PDF/JPG Format) of the relevant Board Resolution/ Authority letter etc., with attested specimen signature of the duly 
authorized signatory(ies) who are authorized to vote, to the Scrutinizer by email to r.gulati64@gmail.com with a copy 
marked to evoting@nsdl.co.in 

2.  It is strongly recommended not to share your password with any other person and take utmost care to keep your 
password confidential. Login to the e-voting website will be disabled upon five unsuccessful attempts to key in the 
correct password. In such an event, you will need to go through the “Forgot User Details/Password?” or “Physical User 
Reset Password?” option available on https://www.evoting.nsdl.com to reset the password. 

3. In case of any queries relating to e-voting you may refer to the FAQs for Shareholders and e-voting user manual for 
Shareholders available at the download section of https://www.evoting.nsdl.com or call on toll free no.: 1800-222-990 or 
send a request at evoting@nsdl.co.in. In case of any grievances connected with facility for e-voting, please contact Ms. 
Pallavi Mhatre, Manager, NSDL, 4th Floor, ‘A’ Wing, Trade World, Kamala Mills Compound, Senapati Bapat Marg, 
Lower Parel, Mumbai 400 013. Email: evoting@nsdl.co.in/pallavid@nsdl.co.in, Tel: 91 22 2499 4545/ 1800-222-990. 

4. Process for registration of email id for obtaining Annual Report and user id/password for e-voting and updation of 
bank account mandate for receipt of dividend, if any:  
 

Physical Holding Send a request to the Registrar and Transfer Agents of the Company, IPPL at 
pk.mittal@indusinvest.com  providing Folio No., Name of shareholder, scanned copy of 
the share certificate (front and back), PAN (self- attested scanned copy of PAN card), 
AADHAR (self- attested scanned copy of Aadhar Card) for registering email address, 
and scanned copy of the cancelled cheque bearing the name of the first shareholder shall 
be provided to  update the Bank Account details of the Shareholders. 
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Demat Holding Please contact your Depository Participant (DP) and register your email address and 
bank account details in your demat account, as per the process advised by your DP 

 
 
B. INSTRUCTIONS FOR MEMBERS FOR ATTENDING THE AGM THROUGH VC / OAVM ARE AS UNDER:  
 
1. Members will be able to attend the AGM through VC / OAVM or view the live webcast of AGM provided by NSDL at 

https://www.evoting.nsdl.com by using their remote e-voting login credentials and selecting the EVEN for Company’s 
AGM. Members who do not have the User ID and Password for e-voting or have forgotten the User ID and Password may 
retrieve the same by following the remote e-voting instructions mentioned in the Notice. Further Members can also use the 
OTP based login for logging into the e-voting system of NSDL.  

2. Facility of joining the AGM through VC / OAVM shall open 15 minutes before and will be open upto 15 minutes after 
scheduled start time of AGM i.e. shall open from 11.00 AM to 11.30 AM and close after will be available for Members on first 
come first served basis. 

3. Members may note that the VC/OAVM Facility, provided by NSDL, allows participation of atleast 1,000 Members on a first-
come-first-served basis. The large shareholders (i.e. shareholders holding 2% or more shareholding), promoters, institutional 
investors, Directors, Key Managerial Personnel, the Chairpersons of the Audit Committee, Nomination & Remuneration 
Committee and Stakeholders Relationship Committee, Auditors, etc. can attend the 28th AGM without any restriction on 
account of first-come- first-served principle. 

4. Members who need assistance before or during the AGM, can contact NSDL on evoting@nsdl.co.in/ 1800-222-990 or contact 
Mr. Amit Vishal, Senior Manager – NSDL at amitv@nsdl.co.in/ 022-24994360/ +91 9920264780 or Mr. Sagar Ghosalkar, 
Assistant Manager- NSDL at sagar.ghosalkar@nsdl.co.in/ 022-24994553/ +91 932678146 

5. Members who would like to express their views or ask questions during the AGM may register themselves as a speaker by 
sending their request from their registered email address mentioning their name, DP ID and Client ID / folio number, PAN, 
mobile number at corporatecompliance@sindhutrade.com from 28th December, 2020 (9:00 a.m. IST) to 30th December, 2020 
(5:00 p.m. IST). Those Members who have registered themselves as a speaker will only be allowed to express their views / 
ask questions during the AGM. The Company reserves the right to restrict the number of speakers depending on the 
availability of time for the AGM.  

 
Other Instructions and results declaration: 
 
The Scrutinizer shall, immediately after the conclusion of voting at the AGM, first count the votes cast during the AGM, thereafter 
unblock the votes cast through remote e-voting and make, not later than 48 hours of conclusion of the AGM, a consolidated 
Scrutinizer’s Report of the total votes cast in favor or against, if any, to the Chairman or a person authorized by him in writing, 
who shall countersign the same.  
 
The result declared along with the Scrutinizer’s Report shall be placed on the Company’s website www.sindhutrade.com and on 
the website of NSDL https://www.evoting.nsdl.com immediately. The Company shall simultaneously forward the results to BSE 
Limited, where the shares of the Company are listed. 
 
 By Order of the Board of Directors 
For SINDHU TRADE LINKS LIMITED 
 
 
 
 
Suchi Gupta                                                                                                                                                                                 Place: New Delhi 

  Company Secretary                                                                                                                                                     Dated: 04 December, 2020
   

 
EXPLANATORY STATEMENT PURSUANT TO THE PROVISIONS OF SECTION 102 OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013 

 
Item No. 3 
 
The Board of Directors of the Company at its meeting held on 17th August, 2020 had appointed Mrs. Usha Sindhu (DIN 
00033930) as additional director of the Company who holds office as such upto ensuing Annual General Meeting pursuant to 
provisions of section 161 and other applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and Articles of Association. The Company 
has received a notice from a member proposing her candidature for the office of Director along with requisite deposits pursuant 
to the provision of section 160 of the Companies Act, 2013. She fulfills all criteria of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 
Requirements) Regulations, 2015 as well as the provisions of section 149(6) of Companies Act, 2013 for appointment as Woman 
Non-Executive Director of the Company.  
 
The Nomination and Remuneration Committee (NRC) of the Board of Directors on the basis of the report of performance 
evaluation, has recommended appointment of Mrs. Usha Sindhu as Director of the Company who is liable to retire by rotation.  
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The Board, on the recommendation of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee, considered that, given her background 
and experience, Mrs. Usha Sindhu would be beneficial to the Company and it is desirable to appoint her as an Non- Executive 
Non- independent Director of the Company. Accordingly, it is proposed to appoint Mrs. Usha Sindhu as Director of the 
Company, is liable to retire by rotation, on the Board of the Company.  
 
Mrs. Usha Sindhu is not disqualified from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the 
Act’), and has given her consent to act as a director. 
 
None of the Directors/ Key Managerial Personnel of the Company/ their relatives are, in any way, concerned or interested, 
financially or otherwise, in the resolution. 
 
The Board commends the Ordinary Resolution set out at Item No. 4 of the Notice for approval by the members 
 
Item No. 4 
 
The Board of Directors of the Company at its meeting held on 02nd September, 2020 had appointed Mr. Ramesh Shah (DIN 
00029864) as additional director (Independent Director) of the Company who holds office pursuant to the provisions of section 
161 of the Companies Act, 2013 upto the date of this Annual General Meeting or last date of Annual General Meeting for the 
financial year ended 2019-20 should have been held, whichever is earlier. He fulfils all criteria of Listing Regulations as well as 
the provisions of section 149(6) of Companies Act, 2013 for appointment as Independent Director of the Company. He has also 
given declaration that he fulfils and complies with all the conditions specified in the Section 149(6) of Companies Act, 2013 
making his eligible to be appointed as Independent Director of the Company at ensuing Annual General Meeting.  
 
The Nomination and Remuneration Committee (NRC) of the Board of Directors on the basis of the report of performance 
evaluation, has recommended appointment of Mr. Ramesh Shah as an Independent Director of the Company.  
 
The Board, based on the performance evaluation and as per the recommendation of the Nomination and Remuneration 
Committee, considers that, given his background and experience, Mr. Ramesh Shah would be beneficial to the Company and it 
is desirable to appoint him as an Independent Director. Accordingly, it is proposed to appoint Mr. Ramesh Shah as an 
Independent Director of the Company, not liable to retire by rotation, for a term of 3(Three) consecutive years upto 01st 
September, 2023, on the Board of the Company.  
 
Mr. Ramesh Shah is not disqualified from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the 
Act’), and has given his consent to act as a director. 
 
The Company has also received declaration from Mr. Ramesh Shah that he meets the criteria of independence as prescribed 
both under Section 149(6) of the Act and under the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 
Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (“Listing Regulations”). 
 
Copy of draft letter of appointment of Mr. Ramesh Shah setting out the terms and conditions of appointment is available for 
inspection by the members at the registered office of the Company.  
 
None of the other Directors/ Key Managerial Personnel of the Company/ their relatives are, in any way, concerned or 
interested, financially or otherwise, in the resolution. 
 
The Board commends the Ordinary Resolution set out at Item No. 4 of the Notice for approval by the members. 
 
 
Item No.5 & 6 

 
As per the Regulation 23 of SEBI Listing Regulation (LODR) 2015 (the “Regulation”) all the material related party transactions 
shall require approval of the unrelated members through Ordinary Resolution. 
 

Further, as per the Regulation 23 of SEBI Listing Regulation (LODR) 2015 a transaction with related party shall be considered 
material if the transaction(s) to be entered into individually or taken together with previous transaction during a financial year, 
exceeds ten percent of the annual consolidated turnover as per the last audited financial statement.     

 

Members are requested to further note that the transactions entered into between the related parties for sale, purchase or supply 
of any goods or materials, leasing property of any kind and availing or rendering of services shall be material in nature and 
hence unrelated shareholders approval shall be required. 
 

The proviso to section 188 also states that nothing in section 188(1) will apply to any transaction entered into by the company in 
its ordinary course of business and at arm’s length basis. All the proposed transactions put up for approval are in ordinary 
course of business and at arm’s length.  
 

The details as per the provisions of Rule 15 of the Companies (Meeting of Board and its Power) Rules, 2014 for the related party 
transactions are as under: 
 

S 
No. 

Name of 
Related 

Name of the director 
or key managerial 

Nature of 
relationship  

Nature, material terms, 
monetary value and 

Any other 
information 
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Party  personnel who is 
related, if any. 

particulars of the 
contract or arrangement  

relevant or 
important for the 
members to take  
decision on the 
proposed 
resolution 

1 ACB 
(India) 
Limited 

 Sh. Rudra Sen 
Sindhu, Sh. Vir Sen 
Sindhu and Sh. Vrit 
Pal Sindhu are 
common directors. 

 Sh. Satya Pal 
Sindhu, Director of 
the Company is 
relative of the 
above-mentioned 
Directors. 

Enterprise is a 
Related party / 
Group Company 
as per 
Companies 
Act,2013 

Contract involving sale, 
purchase or supply of 
any goods or materials, 
leasing property of any 
kind and availing or 
rendering of services 
(transportation and 
allied services). The said 
transactions are material 
in nature aggregating to 
approx. Rs. 300 Crores. 

All transactions 
carried are on arms 
length basis in the 
ordinary course of 
business. 

2 Sainik 
Mining 
And Allied 
Services 
Limited 

 Sh. Rudra Sen 
Sindhu, Sh. Vir Sen 
Sindhu and Sh. Vrit 
Pal Sindhu are 
common directors. 

 Sh. Kuldip Singh 
Sindhu is a common 
independent 
director. 

 Sh. Satya Pal 
Sindhu, Director of  
the Company is 
relative of the 
above-mentioned 
Directors 

Enterprise is a 
Related party / 
Group Company 
as per 
Companies 
Act,2013 

Contract involving sale, 
purchase or supply of 
any goods or materials, 
leasing property of any 
kind and availing or 
rendering of services 
(transportation and 
allied services). The said 
transactions are material 
in nature aggregating to 
approx. Rs. 350 Crores. 

All transactions 
carried are   on 
arms length basis in 
the ordinary course 
of business. 

 
The above Contracts/arrangements/transactions are approved by the Audit Committee and the Board. 
 
As per the Second proviso to Section 188(1) of the Act and Regulation 23(4) of the Listing Regulations, if any member is a related 
party in any contract or arrangement, then that party shall not vote on the ordinary resolution, whether the party is a related 
party to the particular transaction or not. Therefore, the promoter groups will not vote on the above resolutions. 
 
None of the Directors or Key Management Personnel or their relatives are, in any way, deemed to be concerned or interested 
except those mentioned above and to the extent of their shareholding in the Company. 
 
The relevant documents and registers shall be made available at the registered office as well as corporate office of the Company 
for inspection during the business hours 09.30AM to 06.00 PM Monday to Saturday and also at the meeting. 
 
The Board recommends the resolution as set out at Item No. 5 & 6 of the Notice for approval by the unrelated shareholders. 
 
                                                                                                                                                                      By order of the Board of Directors 
                                                                                                                                                                    For Sindhu Trade Links Limited 

 
Place: New Delhi            Sd/-   
Date: 04.12.2020                     Suchi Gupta 

                    Company Secretary 
                                                                                                                                                                                                        ACS No.-26066
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Details of Directors seeking appointment and re-appointment at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting (in pursuance of regulation 
36(3) of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015. Brief Profile of Director being appointed or re-
appointed: 

 

Name of Director Mr. Rudra Sen Sindhu 
Date of Birth 02.02.1956 

Date of Appointment 01.12.2012 

Experience 38 years 
Expertise in specific functional areas He joined the Indian Army in the year 1977. After completing short service commission period of 5 Years, 

he joined his family concern M/s Mitter Sen & Company which was then engaged in Iron-ore Mining.  
 

He has approximately 37 years of experience in the field of Coal Mining and Mining Logistics and setting up 
of operations of Power Plants and Non Banking Finance Business. He has business interest in a number of 
Companies engaged mainly in the business of mining and logistics, coal beneficiations, power generation, 
manufacturing of sponge iron and steel, stock broking, print media, finance and tourism. He has been the 
Chairman of Expert Committee on coal since 2008 and the Co-Chairman of the National Coal Committee of 
ASSOCHAM since 2009. He is also engaged in several charitable activities in the rural area.  

Qualifications Bachelor’s Degree in Arts  

Directorship in other Public Limited
Companies   excluding foreign
companies and Section 8 companies) 

 ACB (India)Limited 
 ACB (India) Power Limited 
 Aryan Energy Private Limited 
 Sainik Mining And Allied Services Limited 
 Paramitra Holdings Limited 
 Sainik Finance & Industries Limited 
 Hari Bhoomi Communications Private Limited 
 Legend Travels Private Limited 

 
Memberships/ Chairmanships of
committees of other Public
companies (includes only Audit
Committee and Stakeholders’
Relationship Committee) 

Audit Committee : 
 Sainik Finance & Industries Limited - Member 
 Aryan Energy Private Limited – Chairman 
 

 

b) Share transfer And Investor 
Grievance Committee 

Stakeholder’s Relationship Committee 
 ACB(India) Limited - Member 
 Sainik Finance & Industries Limited - Member 

No. of Shares held 2930300 
Relationship with any other 
Director(s) of the Company 

He is the brother of the following director: 
 Satya Pal Sindhu 
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STATUS OF SUBSIDIARY COMPANIES, JOINT VENTURES AND ASSOCIATE 

The subsidiaries in which the shareholding of the Company is presently more than 
half of the nominal capital of the Company as per section 2(87) of the Companies 
Act, 2013 are: 

 Hari Bhoomi Communications Private Limited is a Private Limited 
Company incorporated on 08.05.2007 by Registrar of Companies, National 
Capital Territory of Delhi and Haryana. The company is engaged in 
Publication of daily newspaper of Hindi in the State of Chhattisgarh, Madhya 
Pradesh, Delhi and Haryana, Bhopal under the name “Hari Bhoomi” and a 
TV channel namely “JANTA TV”. 

Specialised Areas: 

This newspaper contains news of current events, informative articles, diverse 
features and advertising. It has contributed immensely in the field of media 
through its eye-opening articles and independent views. “Hari Bhoomi” was 
started initially as a Weekly in 1996 but later on in 1998 it became a Daily .It 
was the first Daily to be published from Rohtak (Haryana). “Hari Bhoomi” 
launched its first edition in Chhattisgarh in 2001 from Bilaspur and added 
Raipur in 2002. Hari Bhoomi started its Jabalpur Edition in 2008. Very 
recently, Hari Bhoomi started its edition from Raigarh (Chhattisgarh) and 
Bhopal. 

Hari Bhoomi is a member of Indian Newspaper Society, Audit Bureau of 
Circulations (Two esteemed organizations of 
Newspapers/Magazines/Advertising Agencies/Advertisers) and also 
member of MRUC (Media Research Users Council), an organization 
conducting Indian Readership Survey.  

% of Holding by the Company: 

The present authorised share capital of the company is Rs. 3,10,00,000/- 
divided into 31,00,000 equity shares of Rs. 10/- each. The present paid- up 
share capital of the company is Rs. 3,03,57,000/- divided into 30,35,700 equity 
shares of Rs. 10/- each. STLL is holding 84.68% of the nominal capital of 
HBCPL. 

 Indus Automotives Private Limited: A Private Limited Company 
incorporated on July 05, 2010 by Registrar of Companies, National Capital 
Territory of Delhi and Haryana. The company acts from manufacturers to 
retailers, storers and wharehousers, importers, exporters, repairers, hirers in 
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all types of automotive vehicles usable on land, sea or air and to do all the 
allied activities relating thereto. 

Specialised Areas: 

The Company is engaged in the business of trading of genuine automobiles 
spare parts, heavy   earthmoving equipment parts, lubricants, tyres, tubes and 
flaps. The Company holds authorised dealership of Asia Motor Works Ltd 
(AMW Ltd) for commercial vehicles, for Tyres tube and flaps of Birla Tyre, 
Ceat Ltd., MRF Limited, J.K Tyre & Industries Ltd., Apollo Tyres Ltd., for 
dealership for Lubricant of Valvoline Cummins Pvt. Ltd., Total Oil India Pvt 
Ltd., dealership for genuine automobiles spare parts of Ashoka Leyland, Tata 
Motors, Mahindra, Mico, TVS, Bosch, Telco, and Turbo and dealership for 
spare parts of heavy earthmoving parts with machinery parts of Liebherr 
India Ltd, Tata Hitachi, Hindustan Motors. The Company also has LMV 
workshop located at Dipka, korba, C.G. for repairs & maintenance of Light 
motor vehicles. 

Present Financial Structure and % of holding of STLL: 

The present authorised share capital of the company is Rs. 55,00,000/- 
divided into 5,50,000 equity shares of Rs. 10/- each. The present paid- up 
share capital of the company is Rs. 52,50,000/- divided into 5,25,000 equity 
shares of Rs. 10/- each. STLL is holding 98.10% of the nominal share capital of 
In APL. 

 Sudha Bio Power Private Limited, A Private Limited Company incorporated 
on 21st July, 2011 by Registrar of Companies, Hyderabad. The Company is 
engaged in the business of generating, harnessing, developing, accumulating, 
distributing and supplying of electricity by setting up Bio mass power plants 
by use of liquid, gaseous or solid fuels for the purpose of light, heat motive 
power and for all other purposes for which electric energy can be employed. 
However due to all operational and management activities were carried out 
from New Delhi and keeping in view the administrative convenience, cost 
effectiveness, growth potential and opportunities existing, the Company 
shifted its registered office from Andhra Pradesh to New Delhi on 25.02.2016. 

Specialised Areas: 

It is presently engaged into the business of generating, distributing and 
supplying of electricity through its Bio Mass Power Plant by use of liquid, 
gaseous or solid fuels and to generate Power supply either by hydro, solar, 
thermal gas, diesel, oil or through Renewable Energy Sources such as solar, 
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photo voltaic, and wind mill and or any other means and to Transmit, 
distribute, supply and sell such power either directly or through 
Transmission lines and facilities of central/State Governments or private 
Companies or Electricity Boards to industries and to Central/ State 
Governments to be proved other consumers or electricity including for 
captive consumption for any other industrial projects promoted by this 
company or promoter Companies, and generally to develop, generate 
accumulate power at any other place or places and to transmit, distribute sell 
and such supply such power and to acquire coal mines in India and/or 
abroad and to acquire concessions or licenses granted by or to enter into 
contracts with the Government of India or any other  

government authority for the construction, operation and maintenance of any 
electric installation for the production, transmission or use electric power of 
lighting, heating, signalling and other allied activities thereto. 

Present Financial Structure and % of holding of STLL 

During the year under review, the present authorized share capital of the 
company is Rs. 360,000,000/- divided into 36,000,000 equity shares of Rs. 10/- 
each. The present paid- up share capital of the company is Rs. 90,100,000/- 
divided into 9,010,000 equity shares of Rs. 10/- each. STLL is holding 100% of 
the nominal share capital of In SBPPL. 

 Param Mitra Resources Pte. Ltd. (“PMR” or “Company” or “Param Mitra”), 
is a leading Coal and Power player in Indonesia, promoted by the Sindhu 
Family, a leading coal-mining, coal logistics, coal beneficiation, power 
generation and power distribution in India with over 30 years of experience in 
the coal and energy sector under the flagship of Sainik-Aryan Group (SAG). 

Specialised Area: 

PMR has proven expertise in conducting exploration, mining & logistics 
operations in India and abroad and the same allows the company to 
understand and manage the operations of mines in the most cost effective 
manner. The company has its presence over many counties. Some of them are 
described below: 

Australia: Param Mitra has recently entered into a mine management 
agreement with an operating mine in Western Australia for producing 3 mn 
tons per annum. 
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Indonesia: Param Mitra is presently operating four mines, giving it access to 
over 1.5 bn tonnes of reserves in East Kalimantan. 

Marketing Strategy : Param Mitra has a multi dimensional marketing and end 
use strategy for coal which will be produced by several mines in Indonesia. 
Param Mitra is currently supplying and exploring more opportunities of 
supply in South and East Asia. Strategically looking at a combination of 

 Long term relationships with commodity players and off-take 
agreements 

 Domestic Market strategy 
 Power sector in Indonesia 

Present Financial Structure and % of holding of STLL 

During the year under review, the present paid up share capital of the 
company is 7,11,98,425 Equity Shares of USD $ 1 each.  STLL is holding 
96.16% of the nominal share capital In PMR Pte. Ltd.  

The below mentioned list of Companies are subsidiaries of Hari Bhoomi & 
PMR Pte. Ltd. which itself are subsidiaries of STLL: 

Subsidiary of Hari Bhoomi: 

 Legend Travels Private Limited, A Private Limited Company 
incorporated on 21st October, 1997 by Registrar of Companies, National 
Capital Territory of Delhi and Haryana. The company was 
incorporated with a view to carry on the business of Media & 
Entertainment including running of T.V. Channel, IPTV, Radio 
Channel & Publishing of News Paper.  

Specialised Areas: 

Currently it is engaged in the support services to Media Companies. 

Present Financial Structure and % of holding of Hari Bhoomi: 

During the year under review, the present authorized share capital of 
the company is Rs. 10,00,00,000/- divided into 1,00,00,000 equity shares 
of Rs. 10/- each. The present paid- up share capital of the company is 
Rs. 9,67,97,790/- divided into 96,79,779 equity shares of Rs. 10/- each. 
Hari Bhoomi is holding 100% of the nominal share capital in LTPL 
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SUBSIDIARIES OF PARAM MITRA RESOURCES PTE. LTD. (OVERSEAS SUBSIDIARIES) 

The overseas subsidiaries are presently engaged in coal mining and allied activities thereto. The 
details of the Companies are mentioned below: 

PARAM MITRA RESOURCES PTE. LTD. 
 

Param Mitra Coal Resources 
Pte Limited (PMCR Pte Ltd.) 

Oceania Resources Pty 
Limited (OR Pty Ltd.) 

Param Mitra Power Pte Ltd. Sukarma Coal Resources 
Pte Ltd (SCR Pte Ltd) 

The paid up share capital of 
the Company is USD 
3,00,00,000 divided into 
3,00,00,000 equity shares of 
USD 1/- each. 
 
PMR Pte Ltd (Subsidiary of 
STLL) is holding 60% of the 
share capital of PMCR Pte 
Ltd. 

The paid up share capital of 
the Company is 100,000 USD 
divided into 100,000 equity 
shares of USD 1/- each. 
 
PMR Pte Ltd (Subsidiary of 
STLL) is holding 65% of the 
share capital of OR Pty Ltd. 

The paid up share capital of 
the Company is 10,000 USD 
divided into 10,000 equity 
shares of USD 1/- each. 
 
PMR Pte Ltd (Subsidiary of 
STLL) is holding 70% of the 
share capital of PMP Pte Ltd. 

The paid up share capital 
of the Company is 
16,00,000 USD divided 
into 16,00,000 equity 
shares of USD 1/- each. 
 
PMR Pte Ltd (Subsidiary 
of STLL) is holding 100% 
of the share capital of SCR 
Pte Ltd. 

 

Param Mitra Coal Resources 
Pte. Two Limited (PMCR Pte. 
Two Ltd.) 

Param Mitra Coal Resources 
Pte. One Limited (PMCR Pte. 
One Ltd.) 

Unity Holding Business 
Singapore Pte. Ltd (UHBS 
Pte. Ltd.) 

Dragon Power Investment 
Limited (DPIL) 

The paid up share capital of 
the company is USD 
55,30,000 divided into  
55,30,000 equity shares of 
USD 1/- each. 
 
Param Mitra Coal Resources 
Pte Limited (Subsidiary of 
PMR Pte Ltd) is holding 
100% of the nominal share 
capital of PMCR Pte. Two 
Ltd. 

The paid up share capital of 
the company is USD 
1,48,75,000 divided into 
1,48,75,000 equity shares of 
USD 1/- each. 
 
Param Mitra Coal Resources 
Pte Limited (Subsidiary of 
PMR Pte Ltd) is holding 
100% of the nominal share 
capital of PMCR Pte. One 
Ltd. 

The paid up share capital of 
the Company is USD 
15,00,000 divided into 
15,00,000 equity shares of 
USD 1/- each. 
 
Param Mitra Coal Resources 
Pte Limited (Subsidiary of 
PMR Pte Ltd) is holding 
100% of the share capital of 
UHS Pte. Ltd. 

The Paid up Share Capital of 
the Company is USD 1 
divided into 1 Equity Share 
of USD 1/- each. 
 
Param Mitra Coal Resources 
Pte Limited (Subsidiary of 
PMR Pte Ltd) is holding 
100% of the share capital of 
DPIL. 

 
Pt Rencana Mulia Baratama (Pt. RMB) Pt. Param Mitra Coal Movers(Pt. 

PMCM) (Earlier Pt. Mesra Prima Coal 
(Pt. MPC) 

Pt. Param Mitra Coal Resources (Pt. 
PMCR) 

The paid up share capital of the 
company is IDR 5,00,00,00,000 divided 
into 50,000 equity shares of IDR 
1,00,000/- each. 
 
PMCR Pte. Two Ltd.(Subsidiary of 
PMCR Pte Ltd.) is holding 93.80 % of 
the share capital of Pt. RMB. 

The paid up share capital of the 
company is IDR 5000,00,00,000 divided 
into 400000 equity shares of 125,000 IDR  
each. 
 
PMCR Pte One Limited (Subsidiary of 
PMCR Pte Limited) is holding 99% of 
the share capital of Pt. PMCM. 

The paid up share capital of the 
company is IDR 893,20,00,000 divided 
into 1,000,000 equity shares of 8932 IDR 
each. 
 
UHBS Pte. Ltd. (Subsidiary of PMCR 
Pte Ltd) is holding 99% of the share 
capital of Pt. PMCR. 

 

Pt Rencana Mulia Baratama (Pt. RMB) Pt. Param Mitra Coal Movers(Pt. 
PMCM) (Earlier Pt. Mesra Prima Coal 
(Pt. MPC) 

Pt. Param Mitra Coal Resources (Pt. 
PMCR) 

The paid up share capital of the 
company is IDR 5,00,00,00,000 divided 
into 50,000 equity shares of IDR 
1,00,000/- each. 
 

PMCR Pte. Two Ltd.(Subsidiary of 
PMCR Pte Ltd.) is holding 93.80 % of 
the share capital of Pt. RMB. 

The paid up share capital of the 
company is IDR 5000,00,00,000 divided 
into 400000 equity shares of 125,000 IDR  
each. 
 

PMCR Pte One Limited (Subsidiary of 
PMCR Pte Limited) is holding 99% of 
the share capital of Pt. PMCM. 

The paid up share capital of the 
company is IDR 893,20,00,000 divided 
into 1,000,000 equity shares of 8932 IDR 
each. 
 

UHBS Pte. Ltd. (Subsidiary of PMCR 
Pte Ltd) is holding 99% of the share 
capital of Pt. PMCR. 

 

Pt. Krida Makmur Bersama (Pt. KMB) Pt. Brillian Alam Sejahtera(Pt. BAS) 
The paid up share capital of the Company is IDR 
10,00,00,00,000 divided into 10,000 equity shares of 10,00,000 
IDR each. 
 

Pt. PMCM (Subsidiary of PMCR Pte. One Ltd.) is holding 
99.99% of the share capital of Pt. KMB. 

The paid up share capital of the Company is IDR 
1000,00,00,000 divided into 10,000 equity shares of IDR 
10,00,000 each. 
 

Pt. PMCM (Subsidiary of PMCR Pte. One Ltd.) is holding 
99.99% of the share capital of Pt. BAS 
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PT Global Bumi Lumbung Indonesia 
(Pt. GBLI) 

PT Jaya Jasamandiri (Pt. JJ) PT Indo Bara Pratama (Pt. IBP) 

The paid up share capital of the 
company is IDR 1,34,60,00,00,000 
divided into 1,34,600 equity shares of 
IDR 10,00,000/- each. 
 
DPIL (Subsidiary of PMCR Pte Ltd.) is 
holding 99.95 % of the share capital of 
Pt. GBLI. 

The paid up share capital of the 
company is IDR 1,31,41,00,00,000 
divided into 131,410 equity shares of 
10,00,000 IDR each. 
 
DPIL (Subsidiary of PMCR Pte Limited) 
is holding 99.92% of the share capital of 
Pt. JJ. 

The paid up share capital of the 
company is IDR 1,00,00,00,000 divided 
into 1,000 equity shares of 10,00,000 IDR 
each. 
 
DPIL (Subsidiary of PMCR Pte Ltd) is 
holding 99.90% of the share capital of 
Pt. IBP. 

 

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY  

The Company has planned to undertake the various projects in accordance with the 
Schedule VII of the Companies Act, 2013. The details of the proposed CSR activities 
to be undertaken by the company and the disclosures as per section 135 of the 
Companies Act read with Companies ( Corporate Social Responsibility ) Rules,2014 
is disclosed separately as Annexure –A. 

NUMBER OF MEETINGS OF BOARD  

During the year 2019-20, the Board of Directors met in each quarter and the 
proceedings of the meeting are as per the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 
alongwith all other applicable provisions. The details of the meeting of the Board of 
Directors have been set out separately in Corporate Governance Report. 

DECLARATION BY INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS  

The Company has received necessary declaration from each Independent Director 
under section 149(7) of Companies Act 2013 that he/she meets the criteria of 
independence laid down in section 149(6) of Companies act 2013 and as per the 
prescribed regulation of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 
regulations, 2015. 

DIVIDEND 

Your Directors recommend no amount of dividend for the financial year 2019-20. 

DETAILS OF DIRECTORS, KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL 

 Re-appointment of Director :  
o Pursuant to the provisions of the Section 152 and other applicable 

provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013, Sh. Rudra Sen Sindhu 
(DIN: 00006999), Director of the Company retire by rotation and being 
eligible, have offered themselves for re-appointment. Your director 
recommends his re-appointment. 
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PUBLIC DEPOSITS  

The Company has not invited/ accepted any deposits from the public during the 
year ended March 31, 2020. There were no unclaimed or unpaid deposits as on 
March 31, 2020. 

AUDITOR’S REPORT  

Auditors’ Report on the financial statements for the year ended on March 31, 2020 
together with notes thereon is attached separately in this annual report. A perusal of 
the statement reflects that it certifies true and fair view of state of affairs of the 
Company. Further, the report also contains the prescribed annexure (known as 
CARO). In the said annexure, Auditors are required to give their observations on 
prescribed items. In the said Annexure, Auditors while quoting the observations in 
respect of all the items, have not made any qualification in respect any item. 

The observations made in the Auditors’ Report are self-explanatory and therefore do 
not call for any further comments. 

AUDITOR 

Statutory Auditor : 

M/s Divyank Khullar & Associates, Chartered Accountants (FRN No. 025755N) has 
been appointed as the Statutory Auditor of the Company to hold office till the 
thirtieth Annual General Meeting of the Company.  

Secretarial Auditor : 

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 204 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the 
Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, 
Secretarial Audit has been carried out by SVR & Co., Practicing Company Secretary. 

The Secretarial audit report does not contain any qualification, reservation and 
adverse remarks and the report is attached as “Annexure B”. 

CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION & FOREIGN 
EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTGO  

The details of conservation of energy, technology absorption & foreign exchange 
earnings and outgo are as follows: 

(A) Conservation of energy: 
Your Company carries out its operations in an environmental friendly manner and is 
on the look-out for different ways & means to reduce the consumption of energy in 
its operations. Fuel & electricity consumption in different stages were monitored 
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regularly and suitable corrective actions were taken wherever possible. 
     
(B) Technology Absorption: 
The Company continues to use the latest technologies for improving the 
productivity and quality of its services and products. The Company’s operations do 
not require significant import of technology. 
 
(C) Foreign exchange earnings and Outgo: 
 

During the financial year the Foreign Exchange outflow is Rs. 42,17,94,075/- and 
there was no inflow of foreign exchange. 

PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEE  

Information as required under the provisions of Rules 5(2) & 5(3) of the Companies 
(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, is set out in 
Annexure C to the Directors’ Report. 

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT 

Pursuant to the requirement under section 134(3)(C) of the Companies Act, 2013 
with respect to Directors’ Responsibility Statement, it is hereby confirmed that: 

 in the preparation of the annual accounts for the financial year ended 31st 
March, 2020, the applicable accounting standards had been followed along 
with proper explanation relating to material departures;   

 the directors had selected such accounting policies and applied them 
consistently and made judgments and estimates that are reasonable and 
prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the company 
as at March 31, 2020 and of the profit and loss of the company for that period. 

 the directors had taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of 
adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the 
Companies Act, 2013 for safeguarding the assets of the company and for 
preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities; 

 the directors had prepared the annual accounts on a going concern basis; 
 the directors have laid down internal financial controls to be followed by the 

Company and such internal financial controls are adequate and were 
operating effectively; and 

 the directors had devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the 
provisions of all applicable laws and that such systems were adequate and 
operating effectively 
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RISK MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE: OVERVIEW  

In terms of SEBI (LODR) Regulation, 2015, the Company has constituted a Risk 
Management Committee on 13 November, 2014 for framing, implementing and 
monitoring the risk management policy of the Company. 

The Committee has adopted a Charter that outlines the role, responsibilities and 
power of the Committee and the procedure for organizing the meeting of the 
Committee. Further, Risk Management Plans and Policies of the Company 
stimulates the development, review, and revision of the organization’s practices and 
protocols in light of identified risks and chosen loss prevention and reduction 
strategies. Principles of the Plan provide the foundation for developing key policies 
and procedures for day-to-day risk management activities. 

VIGIL MECHANISM/ WHISTLE BLOWER POLICY  

In accordance with the section 177(9) of the Act read with Regulation 22 of the SEBI 
(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulation, 2015, Company has 
formulated a Vigil Mechanism / Whistle Blower Policy for its Directors and 
employees to report concerns about unethical behaviour, actual or suspected fraud 
or violation of the Company’s fundamental code of conduct. The details of the same 
are made available on the Company’s website www.sindhutrade.com. 

BOARD EVALUATION  

The board of directors has carried out an annual evaluation of its own performance, 
Board committees and Individual directors pursuant to the provisions of the 
Companies Act, 2013 and the corporate governance requirements as prescribed 
under SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulation, 2015, 
which has been set out in the Corporate Governance Report. 

COMPANYS’ POLICY ON DIRECTORS’ APPOINTMENT AND 
REMUNERATION INCLUDING CRITERIA FOR DETERMINING 
QUALIFICATIONS, POSITIVE ATTRIBUTES, INDEPENDENCE OF A 
DIRECTOR AND OTHER MATTERS PROVIDED UNDER SUB-SECTION (3)OF 
SECTION178 

A brief report on the criteria of selection of Executive and Non-executive 
Directors/Chairman, CEO, Senior Management employees their Remuneration 
policy including criteria for determining qualifications, positive attributes, 
independence of director and other matters provided under sub-section (3) of section 
178 has been set out separately in Corporate Governance Report. 
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PARTICULARS OF LOANS, GUARANTEE OR INVESTMENTS UNDER 
SECTION 186 

Particulars of loans, guarantees given and investments made during the year in 
accordance with Section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 is annexed to this report as 
“Annexure D”. 

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTION  

All related party transactions entered during the year were on arm’s length basis 
and in the ordinary course of business. Prior omnibus approval was taken at the 
audit committee for the transactions which are foreseen and/or repetitive in nature.  
The policy on the related party transactions duly approved by the Board is uploaded 
on company’s website and can be accessed at www.sindhutrade.com. 

During the year under review, all the transactions with the related party Particulars 
of the contracts or arrangements with related parties referred to in sub-section (1) of 
section 188 read with Rules as applicable is annexed herewith as “Annexure E”. 

 EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN  

Pursuant to section 92(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 12(1) of the 
Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014, extract of annual return 
in Form MGT-9 is enclosed herewith as Annexure-F. 

FAMILARIZATION PROGRAMME FOR INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS  

The Company keeps its Directors informed of the activities of the Company, its 
management and operations and provides an overall industry perspective as well as 
issues being faced by the industry. The details of various familiarization 
programmes provided to the Independent Directors of the Company is available on 
the Company’s website www.sindhutrade.com. 

INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEMS AND THIR ADEQUACY  

The Company has an Internal Control System which ensures that all transactions are 
authorised, recorded and reported correctly, and assets are safeguarded and 
protected against loss from unauthorized use or disposition. In addition there are 
operational controls and fraud risk controls, covering the entire spectrum of internal 
financial controls. The Internal Audit is being done by the independent Chartered 
Accountants who monitors and evaluates the efficacy and adequacy of internal 
control system in the Company, its compliance with operating systems, accounting 
procedures and policies at all locations of the Company and its subsidiaries. All 
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these measures facilitate timely detection of any irregularities and early remedial 
steps.  

No significant audit observations and recommendations have been received from 
the Internal Auditors of the Company. 

PREVENTION OF SEXUAL HARASSMENT OF WOMEN AT WORKPLACE  

The company has formulated and adopted a Sexual harassment policy in line with 
the provisions of the Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, 
Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013 and the Rules thereunder to redress and 
prevent all the complaints of sexual harassment at workplace. An Internal 
Complaints Committee has been set up to redress complaints received regarding 
sexual harassment. All female employees (permanent, contractual, temporary, 
trainees) as well as any woman visiting the Company’s office premises or women 
service providers are covered under this policy.  

During the year 2019-20, no complaints were received by the Company related to 
sexual harassment. 

INSIDER TRADING REGULATIONS  

The Company has adopted a Code of Conduct for Prevention of Insider Trading 
with a view to regulate the trading in securities by the Directors and designated 
employees of the Company. The purpose of the Code is to prevent the misuse of any 
price sensitive information through dealing in the shares of the company by 
directors, officers and employees of the company. Further the company has adopted 
the trading window closure policy, to prevent the directors, officers and employees 
of the company from trading in the securities when there is unpublished price 
sensitive information. 

 All Board Directors and the designated employees have confirmed compliance with 
the Code 

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT  

The company firmly believes in the principles of the good Corporate Governance A 
detailed report on corporate governance in accordance with the Listing Agreement 
separately forms part of this annual report. 

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS STATEMENT  

The Management Discussion and Analysis Statement as required under Regulation 
34 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulation, 2015 is 
disclosed separately in this annual report. 
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LISTING OF SHARES  

The Equity Shares of the Company is listed on Bombay Stock Exchange. These 
shares were traded during the year under review at the Exchange. The Status of 
Listing of shares at these Stock Exchanges is given in the Corporate Governance 
Report. 

ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS  

Your Directors place on record their deep appreciation to the shareholders, business 
associates, and financial institutions at all levels for their consistent support and 
encouragement of the Company. The enthusiasm and beneficent efforts of the 
employees have enabled the Company to remain at the leading- edge of the 
Industry. Your Directors would also like to acknowledge the constructive 
suggestions from the statutory auditors for ensuring the accurate and authentic 
compliances for the Company. 

By Order of the Board of Directors 
For Sindhu Trade Links Limited 

 
                                                                                                                                                                 
Place: New Delhi                    (Satya Pal Sindhu)                         (Rudra Sen Sindhu)    
Dated: 04.12.2020                 Managing Director                                    Director 
                                                  Din no.-00218355                          Din No.-00006999 
 



 

Annexure –A: 
 
FORMAT FOR THE ANNUAL REPORT ON CSR ACTIVITIES TO BE INCLUDED IN 
THE BOARD'S REPORT: 

 
1. A brief outline of the company's CSR policy, 

including overview of projects or programs 
proposed to be undertaken and a reference to 
the web-link to the CSR policy and projects or 
programs. 
 

Company’s focus areas under CSR: 
• Health 
• Education 
• Environment 
• Sports 
 Disaster relief 

 
The principle aim and objective of the policy is to 
undertake, promote any project/ activity for the 
promotion and growth of the rural economy, socio- 
economic development and upliftment of people in 
rural areas. 
The Company's CSR policy is available on the Company 
website: www.sindhutrade.com 

2. The Composition of the CSR Committee 
 

1. Sh. Usha Sindhu -Chairman 
2. Sh. Ramesh Shah -Member 
3. Sh. Satya Pal Sindhu-Member 

3. Average net profit of the company for last three 
financial years 
 

 Rs. 98,04,78,962/- 

4. Prescribed CSR Expenditure (two per cent. Of 
the amount as in item 3 above) 

Rs. 1,96,09,579/- 

5. Details of CSR spent during the financial year.  
 
a) Total amount to be spent for the financial 
year 2019-2020 
 
b) Amount unspent , if any;  
 

 
 
Rs. 1,96,09,579/- 
 
 
Rs. 1,23,49,579.24/- 

          c)  Manner in which the amount spent during the financial year is detailed below 
S 
No 

CSR 
project 
or 
activity 
identifi
ed 

Sector 
in 
which 
the 
project 
is 
covere
d 

Projects or 
programs 

1) Loc
al area or 
other 
2) Spe
cify the 
State and 
district 
where 
projects or 
program 
was 
undertake
n 

 

Amount 
outlay(budg
et) project or 
programs 
wise 

Amount 
spent on 
the projects 
or program 
Sub heads: 
(1) Dir
ect 
expenditur
e on 
projects or 
programs 
(2) overhe
ads 

Cumulative 
expenditure 
upto the 
reporting 
period 

Amount spent: 
Direct or through 
implementing agency 

CSR REPORT: 



1. Educati
on of 
Girls in 
Rural 
Areas 

Educati
on 

Local 2,50,00,000/- 72,60,000/- 72,60,000/- Implementing Agency 
(Sindhu Education 
Foundation) 
(Param Mitra Manav 
Nirman Sansthan) 

6. In case the company has failed to 
spend the two percent of the 
average net profit of the last three 
financial years or any part thereof, 
the company shall provide the 
reasons for not spending the 
amount in its Board Report. 

The Company is in the process of finalizing the expenditure 
process for the same and has already started the process in the area 
of Girls Education in the rural areas through M/s Sindhu 
Education Foundation, A Trust incorporated under the Trust Act, 
1882.  
 

7. A responsibility statement of the 
CSR Committee that the 
implementation and monitoring of 
CSR policy, is in compliance with 
CSR objectives and Policy of the 
company. 

The implementation and monitoring of the CSR Policy will be in 
compliance with CSR objectives and Policy of the Company. 

                             
By Order of the Board of Directors 

For Sindhu Trade Links Limited 
       

                                                                 
                                                                                                                                                   
                     
                           
      Satya Pal Sindhu                                 Usha Sindhu  

                                                Managing Director               Chairman CSR Committee 
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FORM MR‐3 
SECRETARIAL	AUDIT	REPORT	

FOR	THE	FINANCIAL	YEAR	ENDED	31.03.2020	
	

[Pursuant	to	section	204(1)	of	the	Companies	Act,	2013	and	rule	No.9	of	the	Companies	(Appointment	
and	Remuneration	of	Managerial	Personnel)	Rules,	2014]	

	
To,	
	
The	Members,	
SINDHU	TRADE	LINKS	LIMITED	
(CIN:	L63020DL1992PLC121695)	
129,	TRANSPORT	CENTRE,	ROHTAK	ROAD,		
PUNJABI	BAGH,	NEW	DELHI	110035	
	
I	have	conducted	the	secretarial	audit	of	the	compliance	of	applicable	statutory	provisions	and	the	
adherence	to	good	corporate	practices	by	SINDHU	TRADE	LINKS	LIMITED	(hereinafter	called	 the	
company).	Secretarial	Audit	was	conducted	in	a	manner	that	provided	me/us	a	reasonable	basis	for	
evaluating	the	corporate	conducts/statutory	compliances	and	expressing	my	opinion	thereon.	
	
Based	 on	our	 verification	of	 the	 SINDHU	TRADE	LINKS	LIMITED	books,	papers,	minute	 books,	
forms	 and	 returns	 filed	 and	other	 records	maintained	by	 the	 company	 and	 also	 the	 information	
provided	by	the	Company,	its	officers,	agents	and	authorized	representatives	during	the	conduct	of	
secretarial	audit,	We	hereby	report	that	 in	our	opinion,	the	company	has,	during	the	audit	period	
covering	 the	 financial	 year	 ended	 on	 	31.03.2020	 complied	with	 the	 statutory	provisions	 listed	
hereunder	and	also	that	 the	Company	has	proper	Board‐processes	and	compliance‐mechanism	 in	
place	to	the	extent,	in	the	manner	and	subject	to	the	reporting	made	hereinafter:	
	
I	 have	 examined	 the	 books,	 papers,	minute	 books,	 forms	 and	 returns	 filed	 and	 other	 records	
maintained	by	the	Company	for	the	financial	year	ended	on	31.03.2020	according	to	the	provisions	
of:	
	
i. The	Companies	Act,	2013(the	Act)	and	the	rules	made	there	under;	
ii. The	Securities	Contracts	(Regulation)	Act,	1956	(‘SCRA’)	and	the	rules	made	there	under;		
iii. The	Depositories	Act,	1996	and	the	Regulations	and	Bye‐laws	framed	there	under;		
iv. Foreign	Exchange	Management	Act,1999	and	the	rules	and	regulations	made	there	under	to	

the	 extent	 of	 Foreign	 Direct	 Investment,	 Overseas	 Direct	 Investment	 and	 External	
Commercial	Borrowings;	‐	Not	Covered	in	report	

v. The	 following	Regulations	 and	 Guidelines	 prescribed	 under	 the	 Securities	 and	 Exchange	
Board	of	India	Act,	1992	(‘SEBI	Act’):‐	

	
a) The	Securities	and	Exchange	Board	of	India	(Substantial	Acquisition	of	Shares	and	

Takeovers)	Regulations,	2011;		
b) The	 Securities	 and	 Exchange	 Board	 of	 India	 (Prohibition	 of	 Insider	 Trading)	

Regulations,1992;		
c) The	 Securities	 and	Exchange	Board	 of	 India	 (Listing	Obligations	 and	Disclosure	

Requirements)	Regulations,	2015.	–		
	
	
	
The	Company	failed	to	comply	with	the	following	clauses:	
	



S.No.	 Regulation	 Deviation	 Observations/Remarks	
1.	 Regulation	

33(3)	 of	 SEBI	
(LODR),	
2015,	
reporting	 of	
Annual	
results	within	
60	 days	 of	
closure	 of	
Financial	year	

Consolidated	 financials	
for	 financial	 year	 2018‐
19	 were	 filed	 on	
02.09.2019,	 as	 informed	
by	the	Management.	

Consolidated	 Financial	
Statements	 for	Financial	
Year	 2019‐20	 are	 not	
filed	 within	 the	
prescribed	 time,	 only	
Standalone	 Financial	
Statements	 were	
uploaded	within	60	days	
of	 closure	 of	 Financial	
Year.	
	

2.	 Regulation	
33(3)(e)	 of	
SEBI	 (LODR),	
2015,	

The	 listed	 entity	 shall	
also	 submit	 the	 audited	
financial	 results	 in	
respect	 of	 the	 last	
quarter	 along	 with	 the	
results	 for	 the	 entire	
financial	year	with	a	note	
stating	that	the	figures	of	
last	 quarter	 are	 the	
balancing	 figures		
between	 audited	 figures	
in	 respect	 of	 the	 full	
financial	 year	 and	 the	
published	 year	 to	 date	
figures	 up	 to	 the	 third	
quarter	 of	 the	 current	
financial	year.	

The	 note	 stating	 the	
figures	 of	 last	 quarter	
are	 the	 balancing	
figures	 between	 audited	
figures	 in	 respect	 of	 the	
full	 financial	 year	 and	
the	 published	 year	 to	
date	 figures	 up	 to	 the	
third	 quarter	 of	 the	
current	financial	year.	

	
d) The	Securities	and	Exchange	Board	of	India	(Employee	Stock	Option	Scheme	and	

Employee	 Stock	 Purchase	 Scheme)	 Guidelines,	 1999;‐	 Not	 Applicable	 as	 the	
Company	has	not	granted	any	Options	to	its	employees	during	the	financial	
year	under	review.	

e) The	Securities	and	Exchange	Board	of	India	(Issue	and	Listing	of	Debt	Securities)	
Regulations,	2008;‐	Not	Applicable	as	 the	Company	has	not	 issued	any	debt	
securities	during	the	financial	year	under	review.	

f) The	 Securities	 and	 Exchange	 Board	 of	 India	 (Registrars	 to	 an	 Issue	 and	 Share	
Transfer	Agents)Regulations,1993	regarding	the	Companies	Act	and	dealing	with	
client;	

g) The	 Securities	 and	 Exchange	 Board	 of	 India	 (Delisting	 of	 Equity	 Shares)	
Regulations,	 2009;‐	Not	Applicable	 as	 the	 Company	 has	 not	 get	 delisted	 its	
equity	 shares	 from	 any	 stock	 exchange	 during	 the	 financial	 year	 under	
review.	

h) The	Securities	and	Exchange	Board	of	 India	(Buyback	of	Securities)	Regulations,	
1998;‐	 Not	 Applicable	 as	 the	 Company	 has	 not	 bought	 back	 any	 of	 its	
securities	during	the	financial	year	under	review.	

	
We	have	also	examined	compliance	with	the	applicable	clauses	of	the	following:		
	

(i) Secretarial	Standards	issued	by	The	Institute	of	Company	Secretaries	of	India.	
	



S.No.	 Clause	No.	 Deviation	 Observations/Remarks	
1.	 SS‐2,	 Clause	

No	17.2.1.2	
Chairman	 name	 is	 not	
given	 on	 top	 in	minutes	
of	General	Meeting	

Name	 of	 Chairman	 was	
not	 given	 on	 top	 in	
Minutes	 of	 General	
Meeting	 held	 on	
30.09.2019,	 as	 attached	
with	Form	MGT‐15	

2.	 SS‐2,	 Clause	
17.5.2	

Along	 with	 Chairman's	
signature	 date	 and	 place	
should	also	be	mentioned	

Date	 and	 Place	was	 not	
mentioned	 in	 the	
Minutes	 of	 General	
Meeting	 held	 on	
30.09.2020,	 as	 attached	
with	Form	MGT‐15.	

	
During	 the	period	under	review	the	Company	has	complied	with	 the	provisions	of	 the	Act,	Rules,	
Regulations,	Guidelines,	Standards,	etc.	mentioned	above.	
	
This	report	 is	 to	be	read	with	our	 letter	of	even	date	which	 is	annexed	as	 ‘Annexure	–A–1’	and	
form	an	integral	part	of	this	report.	

	
We	further	report	that	
		
The	 Board	 of	 Directors	 of	 the	 Company	 is	 duly	 constituted	 with	 proper	 balance	 of	 Executive	
Directors,	Non‐Executive	Directors	and	Independent	Directors.	The	changes	 in	the	composition	of	
the	 Board	 of	 Directors	 that	 took	 place	 during	 the	 period	 under	 review	 were	 carried	 out	 in	
compliance	with	the	provisions	of	the	Act.	
	
Adequate	notice	is	given	to	all	directors	to	schedule	the	Board	Meetings,	agenda	and	detailed	notes	
on	agenda	were	sent	at	least	seven	days	in	advance,	and	a	system	exists	for	seeking	and	obtaining	
further	 information	and	clarifications	on	the	agenda	 items	before	the	meeting	and	 for	meaningful	
participation	at	the	meeting.	
	
Majority	 decision	 is	 carried	 through	 while	 the	 dissenting	 members’	 views	 are	 captured	 and	
recorded	as	part	of	the	minutes.	
	
We	 further	report	 that	there	are	adequate	systems	and	processes	 in	 the	company	commensurate	
with	 the	 size	and	operations	of	 the	 company	 to	monitor	and	ensure	 compliance	with	applicable	
laws,	rules,	regulations	and	guidelines.	

	
FOR	SVR	&	Co.	

COMPANY	SECRETARIES	
DATE:	04.12.2020	
PLACE:	NOIDA	

CS.	SHIVAM	RASTOGI	
M.NO:	A39199	
CP.	NO:	14600	

UDIN:	
	
Note:		

i. This	report	 is	to	be	read	with	our	 letter	of	even	date	which	 is	annexed	as	Annexure	A	
and	forms	an	integral	part	of	this	report	
	



ii. Due	 to	 restricted	movement	 amid	 COVID‐19	 pandemic,	we	 conducted	 the	 secretarial	
audit	 by	 examining	 the	 Secretarial	 Records	 including	Minutes,	 Documents,	 Registers	
and	other	records	etc.,	provided	by	way	of	electronic	mode	by	the	Company	and	could	
not	 be	 verified	 from	 the	 original	 records.	 The	management	 has	 confirmed	 that	 the	
records	submitted	to	us	are	true	and	correct.	

	
iii. This	Report	 is	 limited	to	 the	Statutory	Compliances	on	 laws	/	regulations	/	guidelines	

listed	 in	our	report	which	have	been	complied	by	 the	Company	up	 to	 the	date	of	 this	
Report	pertaining	to	Financial	Year	2019‐20.	We	are	not	commenting	on	the	Statutory	
Compliances	whose	 due	 dates	 are	 extended	 by	Regulators	 from	 time	 to	 time	 due	 to	
COVID‐19	or	still	there	is	time	line	to	comply	with	such	compliances.	

	
	
	

	
	

	 	



Annexure	A‐1	
To,	
	
The	Members,	
SINDHU	TRADE	LINKS	LIMITED	
(CIN:	L63020DL1992PLC121695)	
129,	TRANSPORT	CENTRE,	ROHTAK	ROAD,		
PUNJABI	BAGH,	NEW	DELHI	110035	
		
My	Secretarial	Audit	Report	of	even	date	is	to	be	read	along	with	this	letter.	
	
Management	Responsibility		
	
1. Maintenance	of	Secretarial	records	is	the	responsibility	of	the	Management	of	the	Company.	

Our	responsibility	is	to	express	an	opinion	on	these	Secretarial	records	based	on	our	audit.		
	
Auditors	Responsibility	

	
2. I	have	 followed	 the	audit	practices	and	processes	as	were	appropriate	 to	obtain	reasonable	

assurance	about	 the	correctness	of	the	contents	of	 the	Secretarial	records.	The	verifications	
were	 done	 on	 test	 basis	 to	 ensure	 that	 correct	 facts	 are	 reflected	 in	 secretarial	 records.	 I	
believe	that	the	processes	and	practices,	I	followed	provide	a	reasonable	basis	for	our	opinion.		

	
3. I	 have	 not	 verified	 the	 correctness	 and	 appropriateness	 of	 financial	 records	 and	 Books	 of	

Accounts	of	the	company.	
	
4. Where	ever	required,	I	have	obtained	the	Management	representation	about	the	compliance	

of	Laws,	Rules	and	Regulations	and	happening	of	events	etc.	
	
5. The	compliance	of	the	Provisions	of	Corporate	and	other	applicable	Laws,	Rules,	Regulations,	

standards	 is	 the	 responsibility	 of	 the	 Management.	 My	 examination	 was	 limited	 to	 the	
verification	of	procedures	on	test	basis.	
	

Disclaimer		
	
6. The	Secretarial	Audit	Report	is	neither	an	assurance	as	to	the	future	viability	of	the	Company	

nor	of	the	efficiency	or	effectiveness	with	which	the	Management	has	conducted	the	affairs	of	
the	Company.	

	
FOR	SVR	&	Co.	

COMPANY	SECRETARIES	
DATE:	04.12.2020	
PLACE:	NOIDA	

	
CS.	SHIVAM	RASTOGI	

M.NO:	A39199	
CP.	NO:	14600	

UDIN:	
	

 



Annexure-C 

Details of Ratio of Remuneration of Director [Section 197(12), r/w Rule 5 of Companies 
(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel), Rules, 2014] 

the ratio of the remuneration of each director to 
the median remuneration of the employees of the 
company for the financial year; 

Name of the 
Director 

Ratio to the median 

Satya Pal Sindhu 50:1 

the percentage increase in remuneration of each 
director, Chief Financial Officer, Chief Executive 
Officer, Company Secretary or Manager, if any, in 
the financial year; 

Name of 
Director/CS/CFO 

% increase 

Satya Pal Sindhu 0% 

Suchi Gupta 10.00% 
Vikas Singh Hooda 0% 

the percentage increase in the median 
remuneration of employees in the financial year; 

15.72% 

the number of permanent employees on the rolls 
of Company; 

2100(Approx) 

the explanation on the relationship between 
average increase in remuneration and company 
performance; 

The decrease in PAT between financial year 2019 
and 2020 is 45.61% and the average increase in 
total remuneration given to employees is 10.0%. 
The average increase in remuneration is based on 
performance, market data; the increase given by 
peer companies and other factors. 

comparison of the remuneration of the Key 
Managerial Personnel against the performance of 
the Company; 

( in Lakhs) 
Particulars 2019-20 2018-19 % inc. 
Remuneration 
of KMP 

153.29 152.41 1.54% 

PAT of 
Company 

5654.80 7010.93 (45.61)% 

variations in the market capitalisation of the 
company, price earnings ratio as at the closing 
date of the current financial year and previous 
financial year and percentage increase over 
decrease in the market quotations of the shares of 
the company in comparison to the rate at which 
the company came out with the last public offer 
in case of listed companies, and in case of 
unlisted companies, the variations in the net 
worth of the company as at the close of the 
current financial year and previous financial year; 

( in crores) 

Particulars 2019 2018 

Market 
Capitalization* 

82.23 79.15 

PE Ratio 4.30:1 6.36:1 

*The variation in the market capitalisation is 
negligible. 

average percentile increase already made in the 
salaries of employees other than the managerial 
personnel in the last financial year and its 
comparison with the percentile increase in the 
managerial remuneration and justification thereof 
and point out if there are any exceptional 
circumstances for increase in the managerial 
remuneration; 

The average % increase is 10.5% for all 
employees based on the fixed and variable 
components. The increase in the percentile of 
managerial personnel is 9.63% which is slightly 
less than other employees.  

the key parameters for any variable component of 
remuneration availed by the directors; 

Not applicable. 
 

the ratio of the remuneration of the highest paid 
director to that of the employees who are not 
directors but receive remuneration in excess of 
the highest paid director during the 
year; 

Not applicable. 
 

Affirmation that the remuneration is as per the 
remuneration policy of the company. 

Yes; the remuneration is as per the remuneration 
policy of the company 

List of Top Ten Employees of the Company List Attached 



 

S.No  Employee Name 

Salary Per 
annum FY 19‐

20         

         

1  SATYAPAL SINDHU 12000000.00       

2  ABHIMANYU SINDHU 5000000.00       

3  HIMANSHU DWIVEDI 6121680.00       

4  DHRUV KHOD 3398400.00       

5  POONAM SAHARAN 2850000.00       

6  VIVEK VERMA 2700000.00       

7  VIKAS SINGH HOODA 2400000.00       

8  NAFE SINGH 2198640.00       

9  SURENDER SAHU 1500000.00       

10  ALBERT VIKAS JOHNSON 1069864.00       

 



Annexure D 
(Rs. In Lakhs) 

                                      
Particulars of loans, guarantees given and investments made during the year in accordance with Section 
186  

 
Name of Entity  Relation  Amount  Particulars of 

loans, guarantees 
given or 
investments made 

Purpose for 
which the loans, 
guarantees and 
investments are 
proposed to be 
utilized 

Param Mitra 
Resources Pte. Ltd  

Related pursuant 
to section 
2(76)(viii)A 

101.85 Lakhs Investment in 
Equity Shares  

Business Purpose 

Param Mitra 
Resources Pte. Ltd  

Related pursuant 
to section 
2(76)(viii)A 

4218.64 Lakhs Inter Corporate 
Deposit given  

Business Purpose 

Sindhu Realtors 
Limited 
 

Related pursuant 
to Section 2(76)(v) 

11.61 Lakhs Inter Corporate 
Deposit given  

Business Purpose 

One Point Realty 
Private Limited 

Related pursuant 
to Section 
2(76)(iv) 

87.28 Lakhs Inter Corporate 
Deposit given  

Business Purpose 

 



 
 

Annexure-E 
FORM NO. AOC-2 

(Pursuant to clause (h) of sub-section (3)of section 134 of the Act and Rule 8(2) of the Companies (Accounts) 
Rules, 2014) 
 
Form for disclosure of particulars of contracts/arrangements entered into by the company with related parties 
referred to in sub-section (1) of section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 including certain arms-length transactions 
under third proviso thereto 
 
1. Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions not at arm’s length basis: Nil 
 

Name(s) of 
the related 
party and 
nature of 
relationship 

Nature 
of 
contract
s/arrang
ements/
transact
ions 

Duration 
of the 
contracts 
/ 
arrange
ments/tra
nsactions 

Salient terms 
of the contracts 
or 
arrangements 
or transactions 
including the 
value, if any 

Justificatio
n for 
entering 
into such 
contracts or 
arrangeme
nts or 
transaction
s 

date(s) 
of 
approv
al by 
the 
Board 

Amo
unt 
paid 
as 
adva
nces, 
if 
any: 

Date on which 
the special 
resolution was 
passed in 
general meeting 
as required 
under first 
proviso to 
section 188 

NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL 
 
2. Details of material contracts or arrangement or transactions at arm’s length basis:  

Name(s) of the 
related party and 
nature of 
relationship 

Nature of 
contracts 
/arrangement 
/transactions  

Duration of the 
contracts / 
arrangements/tra
nsactions 

Salient terms of the 
contracts or 
arrangements or 
transactions including 
the value, if any: 

Date(s) of approval 
by the Board, if 
any: 

Amount paid as 
advances, if any: 

Sindhu Farms  
Private Limited 
 
Related pursuant to 
section 2(76)(iv) 

Rent received  1 year subject to 
renewal 

Rent received 
amounting to Rs.8.50 
Lakhs  
 
Tenure:1  year subject 
to renewal 

Duly Approved by 
Audit Committee 

NA 

V.V. Transport 
 
Related pursuant to 
section 2(76)(iii) 

Rent received  1 year subject to 
renewal 

Rent received 
amounting to Rs. 1.18 
Lakhs 
 
Tenure:1  year subject 
to renewal 

Duly Approved by 
Audit Committee 

NA 

Indus Best Mega 
Food Park Private 
Limited 
 
Related pursuant to 
section 2(76)(iv) 

Rent received  1 year subject to 
renewal 

Rent received 
amounting to Rs. 2.40 
Lakhs 
 
Tenure:1  year subject 
to renewal 

Duly Approved by 
Audit Committee 

NA 

Hari Bhoomi 
Communications  
Private Limited 
 
Related pursuant to 
section 2(76)(viii)A 

Rent received  1 year subject to 
renewal 

Rent received 
amounting to 1.98 
Lakhs 
 
Tenure:1  year subject 
to renewal 

Duly Approved by 
Audit Committee 

NA 

ACB(India) Limited 
 
Related Pursuant to 
Section 2(76)(v) 

Rent received 1 year subject to 
renewal 

Rent Received  
amounting to Rs. 57.25 
Lakhs 
 
Tenure:1  year subject 
to renewal 

Duly Approved by 
Audit Committee 

NA 

Sainik Mining And 
Allied Services 

Rent Received  1 year subject to 
renewal 

Rent received  
amounting to 14.93 

Duly Approved by 
Audit Committee 

NA 



Limited 
 
Related Pursuant to 
Section 2(76)(v) 

Lakhs 
 
Tenure:1  year subject 
to renewal 

Sindhu Farms  
Private Limited 
 
Related pursuant to 
section 2(76)(iv) 

Inter Corporate 
Deposit 
refunded 

NA Inter Corporate 
Deposit refunded 
amounting to Rs. 
448.60 Lakhs 
 
Tenure:1  year subject 
to renewal 
 
Interest rate:10% 

Duly Approved by 
Audit Committee 

NA 

Sindhu Farms  
Private Limited 
 
Related pursuant to 
section 2(76)(iv) 

Inter Corporate 
Deposit 
received  

NA Inter Corporate 
Deposit received 
amounting to Rs. 
1408.60 Lakhs 
 
Tenure:1  year subject 
to renewal 
 
Interest rate:10% 

Duly Approved by 
Audit Committee 

NA 

Sainik Mining & 
Allied Services 
Limited 
 
Related pursuant to 
IND AS - 24  

Support 
Services to 
Mining Charges 

1 year subject to 
renewal 

Support Services to 
Mining Charges 
amounting to Rs. 
5057.04 Lakhs 
 
 

Duly Approved by 
Audit Committee 

NA 

S. S. Transport 
 
Related pursuant to 
Section 2(76)(viii)(A)
  

Support 
Services to 
Mining Charges 

1 year subject to 
renewal 

Support Services to 
Mining Charges 
amounting to Rs. 
5057.04 Lakhs 
 
 

Duly Approved by 
Audit Committee 

NA 

M. S & Sons 
 
Related pursuant to 
section 2(76)(iii)  

Support 
Services to 
Mining Charges 

1 year subject to 
renewal 

Support Services to 
Mining Charges 
amounting to Rs. 
5057.04 Lakhs 
 
 

Duly Approved by 
Audit Committee 

NA 

ACB India Limited 
 
Related pursuant to 
IND AS - 24 

Construction 
Receipts  

1 year subject to 
renewal 

Construction  Receipts 
amounting to Rs. 
232.46 Lakhs 

Duly Approved by 
Audit Committee 

NA 

Sainik Mining and 
Allied Services 
Limited 
 
Related pursuant to 
IND AS - 24  

Construction 
Receipts  

1 year subject to 
renewal 

Construction  Receipts 
amounting to Rs. 9.79 
Lakhs 
 
 

Duly Approved by 
Audit Committee 

NA 

Indus Automotives 
Private Limited 
 
Related pursuant to 
Section 2(76)(viii)(A) 

Purchase of 
Spare parts 

1 year subject to 
renewal 

Purchase of spare parts 
amounting to Rs. 
426.72 Lakhs 
 
 

Duly Approved by 
Audit Committee 

NA 

V V Transport 
 
Related pursuant to 
Section 2(76)(viii)(A) 

Purchase of Fuel 1 year subject to 
renewal 

Purchase of Fuel 
amounting to Rs. 
3137.46 Lakhs 

Duly Approved by 
Audit Committee 

NA 

S.S. Transport 
 

Transportation 
Expense 

1 year subject to 
renewal 

Transportation 
Expense amounting to 

Duly Approved by 
Audit Committee 

NA 



Related pursuant to 
Section 2(76)(viii)(A) 

Rs. 930.00 Lakhs 

Rudra Sen Sindhu 
 
Related pursuant to 
section 2(76)(i) 

Loan From 
Director 
received  

1 year subject to 
renewal 

Loan from Director  
received amounting to 
Rs. 964.00 Lakhs 
 
Tenure:1  year subject 
to renewal 
 
Interest rate:10% 

Duly Approved by 
Audit Committee 

NA 
 

Vrit Pal Sindhu 
 
Related pursuant to 
section 2(76)(i) 

Loan From 
Director 
received  

1 year subject to 
renewal 

Loan from Director  
received amounting to 
Rs. 326.00 Lakhs 
 
Tenure:1  year subject 
to renewal 
 
Interest rate:10% 

Duly Approved by 
Audit Committee 

NA 

Vir Sen Sindhu 
 
Related pursuant to 
section 2(76)(i) 

Loan From 
Director 
received  

1 year subject to 
renewal 

Loan from Director  
received amounting to 
Rs. 1715.00 Lakhs 
 
Tenure:1  year subject 
to renewal 
 
Interest rate:10% 

Duly Approved by 
Audit Committee 

NA 

Satya Pal Sindhu 
 
Related pursuant to 
section 2(76)(i) 

Loan From 
Director 
received  

NA Loan from Director 
received amounting to 
Rs. 3178.50 Lakhs 
 
Tenure:1  year subject 
to renewal 
 
Interest rate:10% 

Duly Approved by 
Audit Committee 

NA 

Dev Suman Sindhu 
 
Related pursuant to 
section 2(76)(i) 

Loan From 
Relatives of 
KMP received  

NA Loan from Director 
received amounting to 
Rs. 5.50 Lakhs 
 
Tenure:1  year subject 
to renewal 
 
Interest rate:10% 

Duly Approved by 
Audit Committee 

NA 

Saurabh Sindhu 
 
Related pursuant to 
section 2(76)(i) 

Loan From 
Relatives of 
KMP received  

NA Loan from Director 
received amounting to 
Rs. 20.00 Lakhs 
 
Tenure:1  year subject 
to renewal 
 
Interest rate:10% 

Duly Approved by 
Audit Committee 

NA 

Satya Pal Sindhu 
 
Related pursuant to 
section 2(76)(i) 

Unsecured 
Loan Refunded 

NA Unsecured Loan 
Refunded amounting 
to Rs. 3547.10 Lakhs 
 
Tenure:1  year subject 
to renewal 
 
Interest rate:10% 

Duly Approved by 
Audit Committee 

NA 

Vir Sen Sindhu 
 
Related pursuant to 

Unsecured 
Loan Refunded 

NA Unsecured Loan 
Refunded amounting 
to Rs. 1,706.78 Lakhs 

Duly Approved by 
Audit Committee 

NA 



section 2(76)(i)  
Tenure:1  year subject 
to renewal 
 
Interest rate:10% 

Vrit Pal Sindhu 
 
Related pursuant to 
section 2(76)(i) 

Unsecured 
Loan Refunded 

NA Unsecured Loan 
refunded amounting 
to Rs. 752.78 Lakhs 
 
Tenure:1  year subject 
to renewal 
 
Interest rate:10% 

Duly Approved by 
Audit Committee 

NA 

Rudra Sen Sindhu 
 
Related pursuant to 
section 2(76)(i) 

Unsecured 
Loan Refunded 

NA Unsecured Loan 
Refunded amounting 
to Rs. 1250.58 Lakhs 
 
Tenure:1  year subject 
to renewal 
 
Interest rate:10% 

Duly Approved by 
Audit Committee 

NA 

Satya Pal Sindhu 
 
Related pursuant to 
section 2(76)(ii) 

Managerial 
Remuneration 
Paid 

NA Managerial 
Remuneration paid  
amounting to Rs. 
120.00 Lakhs 

Duly approved by 
shareholder 

NA 

Vikas Singh Hooda 
 
Related pursuant to 
section 2(76)(ii) 

Salary Paid to 
CFO 

NA Salary Paid to CFO  
amounting to Rs.24.00 
Lakhs 

Duly Approved by 
Audit Committee 

NA 

Suchi Gupta 
 
Related pursuant to 
section 2(76)(ii) 

Salary Paid to 
CS 

NA Salary Paid to CS  
amounting to Rs. 9.29 
Lakhs 

Duly Approved by 
Audit Committee 

NA 

Rudra Sen Sindhu 
 
Related pursuant to 
section 2(76)(i) 

Transportation 
Expense 

1 year subject to 
renewal 

Transportation 
Expense paid 
amounting to Rs. 
170.00 Lakhs 

Duly Approved by 
Audit Committee 

NA 

Satya Pal Sindhu 
 
Related pursuant to 
section 2(76)(i) 

Transportation 
Expense 

NA Transportation 
expense amounting to 
Rs. 273.00 Lakhs. 

Duly Approved by 
Audit Committee 

NA 

Dev Sindhu 
 
Related pursuant to 
section 2(76)(i) 

Transportation 
Expense 

1 year subject to 
renewal 

Transportation 
expense amounting to 
Rs. 375.00 Lakhs 

Duly Approved by 
Audit Committee 

NA 

Abhimanyu Sindhu 
 
Related pursuant to 
section 2(76)(i) 

Transportation 
Expense 

1 year subject to 
renewal 

Transportation 
expense amounting to 
Rs. 384.00 Lakhs 
 

Duly Approved by 
Audit Committee 

NA 

Abhimanyu Sindhu-
HUF 
 
Related pursuant to 
IND AS - 24 

Transportation 
Expense 

1 year subject to 
renewal 

Transportation 
expense amounting to 
Rs. 520.00 Lakhs 

Duly Approved by 
Audit Committee 

NA 

Anika Sindhu 
 
Related pursuant to 
section 2(76)(i) 

Transportation 
Expense 

1 year subject to 
renewal 

Transportation 
expense amounting to 
Rs. 300.00 Lakhs 
 
 

Duly Approved by 
Audit Committee 

NA 

Rudra Sen Sindhu-
HUF 

Transportation 
Expense 

1 year subject to 
renewal 

Transportation 
expense amounting to 

Duly Approved by 
Audit Committee 

NA 



 
Related pursuant to 
IND AS - 24 

Rs. 417.00 Lakhs 
 
 

Dev Sindhu-HUF 
 
Related pursuant to 
section 2(76)(i) 

Transportation 
Expense 

1 year subject to 
renewal 

Transportation 
expense amounting to 
Rs. 366.00 Lakhs 
 
 

Duly Approved by 
Audit Committee 

NA 

Satya  Pal Sindhu-
HUF 
 
Related pursuant to 
IND AS - 24 

Transportation 
Expense 

1 year subject to 
renewal 

Transportation 
expense amounting to 
Rs. 400.00 Lakhs 
 
 

Duly Approved by 
Audit Committee 

NA 

Mitter Sen Sindhu-
HUF 
 
Related pursuant to 
IND AS - 24 

Transportation 
Expense 

1 year subject to 
renewal 

Transportation 
expense amounting to 
Rs. 107.00 Lakhs 
 

Duly Approved by 
Audit Committee 

NA 

Parmeshwari Devi 
 
Related pursuant to 
section 2(76)(i) 

Transportation 
Expense 

1 year subject to 
renewal 

Transportation 
expense amounting to 
Rs. 48.00 Lakhs 

Duly Approved by 
Audit Committee 

NA 

Rachna  Sindhu 
 
Related pursuant to 
section 2(76)(i) 

Transportation 
Expense 

1 year subject to 
renewal 

Transportation 
expense amounting to 
Rs. 501.00 Lakhs 
 

Duly Approved by 
Audit Committee 

NA 

Samriti Sindhu 
 
Related pursuant to 
section 2(76)(i) 

Transportation 
Expense 

1 year subject to 
renewal 

Transportation 
expense amounting to 
Rs. 278.00 Lakhs 
 

Duly Approved by 
Audit Committee 

NA 

Saroj Sindhu 
 
Related pursuant to 
section 2(76)(i) 

Transportation 
Expense 

1 year subject to 
renewal 

Transportation 
expense amounting to 
Rs. 314.00 Lakhs 
 

Duly Approved by 
Audit Committee 

NA 

Sarvesh Sindhu 
 
Related pursuant to 
section 2(76)(i) 

Transportation 
Expense 

1 year subject to 
renewal 

Transportation 
expense amounting to 
Rs. 71.00 Lakhs 
 

Duly Approved by 
Audit Committee 

NA 

Ekta Sindhu 
 
Related pursuant to 
section 2(76)(i) 

Transportation 
Expense 

1 year subject to 
renewal 

Transportation 
expense amounting to 
Rs. 339.00 Lakhs 
 

Duly Approved by 
Audit Committee 

NA 

Shreya Sindhu 
 
Related pursuant to 
section 2(76)(i) 

Transportation 
Expense 

1 year subject to 
renewal 

Transportation 
expense amounting to 
Rs. 298.00 Lakhs 
 

Duly Approved by 
Audit Committee 

NA 

Satvik Sindhu 
 
Related pursuant to 
section 2(76)(i) 

Transportation 
Expense 

1 year subject to 
renewal 

Transportation 
expense amounting to 
Rs. 72.00 Lakhs 
 

Duly Approved by 
Audit Committee 

NA 

Sonal Sindhu 
 
Related pursuant to 
section 2(76)(i) 

Transportation 
Expense 

1 year subject to 
renewal 

Transportation 
expense amounting to 
Rs. 257.00 Lakhs 
 

Duly Approved by 
Audit Committee 

NA 

Shaurya Sindhu 
 
Related pursuant to 
section 2(76)(i) 

Transportation 
Expense 

1 year subject to 
renewal 

Transportation 
expense amounting to 
Rs. 147.00 Lakhs 
 

Duly Approved by 
Audit Committee 

NA 

Saurabh Sindhu 
 
Related pursuant to 

Transportation 
Expense 

1 year subject to 
renewal 

Transportation 
expense amounting to 
Rs. 166.00 Lakhs 

Duly Approved by 
Audit Committee 

NA 



section 2(76)(i)  
Saurabh Sindhu-
HUF 
 
Related pursuant to 
IND AS - 24 

Transportation 
Expense 

1 year subject to 
renewal 

Transportation 
expense amounting to 
Rs. 104.00 Lakhs 
 

Duly Approved by 
Audit Committee 

NA 

Shashi Sindhu 
 
Related pursuant to 
section 2(76)(i) 

Transportation 
Expense 

1 year subject to 
renewal 

Transportation 
expense amounting to 
Rs. 387.00 Lakhs 
 

Duly Approved by 
Audit Committee 

NA 

Shahista Sindhu 
 
Related pursuant to 
section 2(76)(i) 

Transportation 
Expense 

1 year subject to 
renewal 

Transportation 
expense amounting to 
Rs. 3.00 Lakhs 

Duly Approved by 
Audit Committee 

NA 

Somvir Sindhu 
 
Related pursuant to 
section 2(76)(i) 

Transportation 
Expense 

1 year subject to 
renewal 

Transportation 
expense amounting to 
Rs. 224.00 Lakhs 
 

Duly Approved by 
Audit Committee 

NA 

Sumati Sindhu 
 
Related pursuant to 
section 2(76)(i) 

Transportation 
Expense 

1 year subject to 
renewal 

Transportation 
expense amounting to 
Rs. 64.00 Lakhs 
 

Duly Approved by 
Audit Committee 

NA 

Sumedha Sindhu 
 
Related pursuant to 
section 2(76)(i) 

Transportation 
Expense 

1 year subject to 
renewal 

Transportation 
expense amounting to 
Rs. 226.00 Lakhs 
 
 

Duly Approved by 
Audit Committee 

NA 

Sweta Sindhu 
 
Related pursuant to 
section 2(76)(i) 

Transportation 
Expense 

1 year subject to 
renewal 

Transportation 
expense amounting to 
Rs. 292.00 Lakhs 
 

Duly Approved by 
Audit Committee 

NA 

Surbhi Sindhu 
 
Related pursuant to 
section 2(76)(i) 

Transportation 
Expense 

1 year subject to 
renewal 

Transportation 
expense amounting to 
Rs. 50.00 Lakhs 
 

Duly Approved by 
Audit Committee 

NA 

Usha Sindhu 
 
Related pursuant to 
section 2(76)(i) 

Transportation 
Expense 

1 year subject to 
renewal 

Transportation 
expense amounting to 
Rs. 375.00 Lakhs 
 

Duly Approved by 
Audit Committee 

NA 

M S & Sons 
 
Related pursuant to 
section 2(76)(iii) 

Transportation 
Expense 

1 year subject to 
renewal 

Transportation 
expense amounting to 
Rs. 3099.00 Lakhs 
 

Duly Approved by 
Audit Committee 

NA 

Vir Sen Sindhu-HUF 
 
Related pursuant to 
IND AS - 24 

Transportation 
Expense 

1 year subject to 
renewal 

Transportation 
expense amounting to 
Rs. 458.00 Lakhs 
 

Duly Approved by 
Audit Committee 

NA 

Vir Sen Sindhu 
 
Related pursuant to 
section 2(76)(i) 

Transportation 
Expense 

1 year subject to 
renewal 

Transportation 
expense amounting to 
Rs. 141.00 Lakhs 
 

Duly Approved by 
Audit Committee 

NA 

Vrit Pal Sindhu 
 
Related pursuant to 
section 2(76)(i) 

Transportation 
Expense 

1 year subject to 
renewal 

Transportation 
expense amounting to 
Rs. 272.00 Lakhs 
 

Duly Approved by 
Audit Committee 

NA 

Vrit Pal Sindhu-HUF 
 
Related pursuant to 
IND AS - 24 

Transportation 
Expense 

1 year subject to 
renewal 

Transportation 
expense amounting to 
Rs. 573.00 Lakhs 

Duly Approved by 
Audit Committee 

NA 
 

Sainik Mining & 
Allied Services 

Transportation 
Expense 

1 year subject to 
renewal 

Transportation 
Charges amounting to 

Duly Approved by 
Audit Committee 

NA 



Limited 
 
Related Pursuant to 
Section 2(76)(v) 

Rs. 288.06 Lakhs 
 
 

Param Mitra 
Investments Limited 
 
Related Pursuant to 
Section 2(76)(v) 

Transportation 
Expense 

1 year subject to 
renewal 

Transportation 
Charges amounting to 
Rs. 93.00 Lakhs 
 
 

Duly Approved by 
Audit Committee 

NA 

Paramitra Holdings 
Limited 
 
Related Pursuant to 
Section 2(76)(v) 

Transportation 
Expense 

1 year subject to 
renewal 

Transportation 
Charges amounting to 
Rs. 90.00 Lakhs 
 
 

Duly Approved by 
Audit Committee 

NA 

Sainik Mining And 
Allied Services 
Limited 
 
Related Pursuant to 
Section 2(76)(v) 

Loading  
Charges 

1 year subject to 
renewal 

Loading Charges  
amounting to Rs. 5.78 
Lakhs 
 
Tenure:1  year subject 
to renewal 

Duly Approved by 
Audit Committee 

NA 

Delhi Public School - 
Durg 
 
Related pursuant to 
IND AS - 24 

Rent Received NA Rent received 
amounting to 4.16 
Lakhs 
 
Tenure:1  year subject 
to renewal 
 

Duly Approved by 
Audit Committee 

NA 

Param Mitra 
Resources Pte. Ltd 
 
Related pursuant to 
IND AS - 24 

Interest on Inter 
Corporate 
deposits 
received 

NA Interest on Inter 
Corporate Deposit 
received amounting to 
Rs. 1900.87 Lakhs 
 
Tenure:1  year subject 
to renewal 
 
Interest rate:10% 

Duly Approved by 
Audit Committee 

NA 

Hari Bhoomi 
Communications  
Private Limited 
 
Related pursuant to 
section 2(76)(viii)A 

Advertisement 
Expenses 

1 year subject to 
renewal 

Advertise Expenses 
paid amounting to 1.70 
Lakhs 
 
Tenure:1  year subject 
to renewal 

Duly Approved by 
Audit Committee 

NA 

Sudha Bio Power 
Private Limited 
 
Related pursuant to 
section 2(76)(viii)A 

Loading 
receipts 

1 year subject to 
renewal 

Loading Receipts  
amounting to Rs. 13.35 
Lakhs 
 
Tenure:1  year subject 
to renewal 

Duly Approved by 
Audit Committee 

NA 

ACB(India) Limited 
 
Related Pursuant to 
Section 2(76)(v) 

Loading 
Receipts 

1 year subject to 
renewal 

Loading Receipts  
amounting to Rs. 
5739.49  Lakhs 
 
Tenure:1  year subject 
to renewal 

Duly Approved by 
Audit Committee 

NA 

ACB(India) Limited 
 
Related Pursuant to 
Section 2(76)(v) 

Transportation 
Receipts 

1 year subject to 
renewal 

Transportation 
Receipts  amounting to 
Rs. 26187.16 Lakhs 
 
Tenure:1  year subject 
to renewal 

Duly Approved by 
Audit Committee 

NA 

ACB(India) Limited Water Sprinkler 1 year subject to Water Sprinkler Duly Approved by NA 



 
Related Pursuant to 
Section 2(76)(v) 

Receipts renewal Receipts  amounting to 
Rs. 660.00 Lakhs 
 
Tenure:1  year subject 
to renewal 

Audit Committee 

Sainik Mining And 
Allied Services 
Limited 
 
Related Pursuant to 
Section 2(76)(v) 

Loading  
Receipts 

1 year subject to 
renewal 

Loading Receipts  
amounting to Rs. 
878.69 Lakhs 
 
Tenure:1  year subject 
to renewal 

Duly Approved by 
Audit Committee 

NA 

M.S. & Sons 
 
Related Pursuant to 
Section 2(76)(iii) 

Loading  
Receipts 

1 year subject to 
renewal 

Loading Receipts  
amounting to Rs. 
295.16  Lakhs 
 
Tenure:1  year subject 
to renewal 

Duly Approved by 
Audit Committee 

NA 

Sainik Mining And 
Allied Services 
Limited 
 
Related Pursuant to 
Section 2(76)(v) 

Transportation  
Receipts 

1 year subject to 
renewal 

Transportation 
Receipts  amounting to 
Rs. 629.97 Lakhs 
 
Tenure:1  year subject 
to renewal 

Duly Approved by 
Audit Committee 

NA 

M.S. & Sons 
 
Related Pursuant to 
Section 2(76)(iii) 

Transportation  
Receipts 

1 year subject to 
renewal 

Transportation 
Receipts  amounting to 
Rs. 587.56 Lakhs 
 
Tenure:1  year subject 
to renewal 

Duly Approved by 
Audit Committee 

NA 

ACB (India) Limited 
 
Related Pursuant to 
Section 2(76)(V) 

Grading 
Receipts 

1 year subject to 
renewal 

Transportation 
Receipts  amounting to 
Rs. 25.20 Lakhs 
 
Tenure:1  year subject 
to renewal 

Duly Approved by 
Audit Committee 

NA 

Sainik Mining And 
Allied Services 
Limited 
 
Related Pursuant to 
Section 2(76)(v) 

Sale Of Diesel 1 year subject to 
renewal 

Sale of Diesel   
amounting to Rs. 
3602.68 Lakhs 
 
Tenure:1  year subject 
to renewal 

Duly Approved by 
Audit Committee 

NA 

S.S. Transport 
 
Related Pursuant to 
Section 2(76)(v) 

Sale Of Diesel 1 year subject to 
renewal 

Sale of Diesel   
amounting to Rs. 87.91 
Lakhs 
 
Tenure:1  year subject 
to renewal 

Duly Approved by 
Audit Committee 

NA 

M.S. & Sons 
 
Related Pursuant to 
Section 2(76)(iii) 

Sale Of Diesel 1 year subject to 
renewal 

Sale of Diesel   
amounting to Rs. 
151.54 Lakhs 
 
Tenure:1  year subject 
to renewal 

Duly Approved by 
Audit Committee 

NA 

ACB(India) Limited 
 
Related Pursuant to 
Section 2(76)(v) 

Rent Paid 1 year subject to 
renewal 

Rent Paid  amounting 
to Rs. 7.74 Lakhs 
 
Tenure:1  year subject 
to renewal 

Duly Approved by 
Audit Committee 

NA 
 

Rudra Sen Sindhu 
 
Related Pursuant to 

Rent Paid 1 year subject to 
renewal 

Rent Paid  amounting 
to Rs. 1.20 Lakhs 
 

Duly Approved by 
Audit Committee 

NA 
 



Section 2(76)(i) Tenure:1  year subject 
to renewal 

Vrit Pal Sindhu 
 
Related Pursuant to 
Section 2(76)(i) 

Rent Paid 1 year subject to 
renewal 

Rent Paid  amounting 
to Rs. 1.20 Lakhs 
 
Tenure:1  year subject 
to renewal 

Duly Approved by 
Audit Committee 

NA 
 

Abhimanyu Sindhu 
 
Related Pursuant to 
Section 2(76)(i) 

Rent Paid 1 year subject to 
renewal 

Rent Paid  amounting 
to Rs. 1.20 Lakhs 
 
Tenure:1  year subject 
to renewal 

Duly Approved by 
Audit Committee 

NA 
 

Dev Suman Sindhu 
 
Related Pursuant to 
Section 2(76)(i) 

Rent Paid 1 year subject to 
renewal 

Rent Paid  amounting 
to Rs. 1.20 Lakhs 
 
Tenure:1  year subject 
to renewal 

Duly Approved by 
Audit Committee 

NA 
 

Param Mitra 
Resources Pte. Ltd. 
 
Related pursuant to 
section 2(76)(viii)A 

Investment in 
Equity Share  

NA Investment in Equity 
Shares amounting to 
Rs. 101.85 Lakhs 

 NA 

Rudra Sen Sindhu 
 
Related pursuant to 
section 2(76)(i) 

Interest Paid NA Interest Paid on 
unsecured loan 
amounting to Rs. 56.53 
Lakhs 
Tenure:1  year subject 
to renewal 
 
Interest rate:10% 

Duly Approved by 
Audit Committee 

NA 

Satya Pal Sindhu 
 
Related pursuant to 
section 2(76)(i) 

Interest Paid NA Interest Paid on 
unsecured loan 
amounting to Rs. 
273.22 
 
Tenure:1  year subject 
to renewal 
 
Interest rate:10% 

Duly Approved by 
Audit Committee 

NA 

Vir Sen Sindhu 
 
Related pursuant to 
section 2(76)(i) 

Interest Paid NA Interest Paid on 
unsecured loan 
amounting to Rs. 
343.28 Lakhs 
 
Tenure:1  year subject 
to renewal 
 
Interest rate:10% 

Duly Approved by 
Audit Committee 

NA 

Vrit Pal Sindhu 
 
Related pursuant to 
section 2(76)(i) 

Interest Paid NA Interest Paid on 
unsecured loan 
amounting to Rs. 82.71 
Lakhs 
 
Tenure:1  year subject 
to renewal 
 
Interest rate:10% 

Duly Approved by 
Audit Committee 

NA 

Sindhu Farms  
Private Limited 
 
Related pursuant to 

Interest on Inter 
Corporate 
Deposit Paid  

NA Interest on Inter 
Corporate Deposit 
Paid amounting to Rs. 
4.14 Lakhs 

Duly Approved by 
Audit Committee 

NA 



section 2(76)(iv)  
Tenure:1  year subject 
to renewal 
 
Interest rate:10% 

Indus Infra Built 
Private Limited 
 
Related pursuant to 
section 2(76)(iv) 

Interest on Inter 
Corporate 
Deposit Paid  

NA Interest on Inter 
Corporate Deposit 
Paid amounting to Rs. 
0.90 Lakhs 
 
Tenure:1  year subject 
to renewal 
 
Interest rate:10% 

Duly Approved by 
Audit Committee 

NA 

Rudra Sen Sindhu 
 
Related pursuant to 
section 2(76)(i) 

Sale of Shares  NA Sale of Shares 
amounting to Rs. 40.93 
Lakhs 
 

Duly Approved by 
Audit Committee 

NA 

Sainik Mining & 
Allied Services 
Limited 
 
Related pursuant to 
IND AS - 24  

Support 
Services to 
Mining Income 

1 year subject to 
renewal 

Support Services to 
Mining Income 
amounting to Rs. 
2706.86 Lakhs 
 
 

Duly Approved by 
Audit Committee 

NA 

SS Mining JV 
 
Related pursuant to 
IND AS - 24  

Support 
Services to 
Mining Income 

1 year subject to 
renewal 

Support Services to 
Mining Income 
amounting to Rs. 
3345.84 Lakhs 
 
 

Duly Approved by 
Audit Committee 

NA 

Indus Portfolio 
Private Limited 
 
Related pursuant to 
IND AS - 24  

Dividend 
Income 

N.A Dividend Income 
received amounting to 
Rs. 1.46 Lakhs 

Duly Approved by 
Audit Committee 

NA 

M S & Sons 
 
Related pursuant to 
section 2(76)(iii) 

Sale of Spares 1 year subject to 
renewal 

Sale of Spares  
amounting to Rs. 
360.67 Lakhs 
 

Duly Approved by 
Audit Committee 

NA 

Indus Automotives 
Private Limited 
 
Related pursuant to 
Section 2(76)(viii)(A) 

Sale of Spares 1 year subject to 
renewal 

Sale of Spares  
amounting to Rs. 25.24 
Lakhs 
 

Duly Approved by 
Audit Committee 

NA 

Sainik Mining Allied 
Services Private 
Limited 
 
Related pursuant to 
section 2(76)(v) 

Sale of Spares 1 year subject to 
renewal 

Sale of Spares  
amounting to Rs. 52.25 
Lakhs 
 

Duly Approved by 
Audit Committee 

NA 

V. V. Transport 
 
Related pursuant to 
section 2(76)(iii) 

Sale of Spares 1 year subject to 
renewal 

Sale of Spares  
amounting to Rs. 26.55 
Lakhs 
 

Duly Approved by 
Audit Committee 

NA 

S. S. Transport 
 
Related pursuant to 
section 2(76)(iii) 

Sale of Spares 1 year subject to 
renewal 

Sale of Spares  
amounting to Rs. 
223.86 Lakhs 
 

Duly Approved by 
Audit Committee 

NA 

ACB India Limited 
 
Related pursuant to 

Sale of Spares 1 year subject to 
renewal 

Sale of Spares  
amounting to Rs. 
1053.95 Lakhs 

Duly Approved by 
Audit Committee 

NA 



section 2(76)(v)  
Indus Public School 
 
Related pursuant to 
IND AS - 24 

Sale of Spares 1 year subject to 
renewal 

Sale of Spares  
amounting to Rs. 0.26 
Lakhs 
 

Duly Approved by 
Audit Committee 

NA 

Sudha Bio Power 
Private Limited 
 
Related pursuant to 
Section 2(76)(viii)(A) 

Sale of Spares 1 year subject to 
renewal 

Sale of Spares  
amounting to Rs. 1.07 
Lakhs 
 

Duly Approved by 
Audit Committee 

NA 

 
By Order of the Board of Directors 

For Sindhu Trade Links Limited 
 
                                                                                                                    

Place: New Delhi                                                                                  (Satya Pal Sindhu)                   (Rudra Sen Sindhu)    
Dated: 04th December, 2020                                                                            Managing Director                           Director 

                                                                                                                  Din no.-00218355                     Din No.-00006999 



I REGISTRATION & OTHER DETAILS:

i CIN
ii Registration Date
iii Name of the Company
iv Category/Sub-category of the Company

v Address of the Registered office
 & contact details

vi Whether listed company(Yes/No)
vii Name , Address & contact details of the Registrar  & 

Transfer Agent, if any.

II PRINCIPAL BUSINESS ACTIVITIES OF THE COMPANY

SL No Name & Description of  main products/services NIC Code of the 
Product /service

% to total turnover 
of the company

1 FINANCIAL AND RELATED SERVICES 9971 3.79
2 FREIGHT TRANSPORT SERVICES 9965 51.06
3 RETAIL TRADE SERVICES 9962 12.01
4 CONSTRUCTION SERVICES 9953 0.37
5 SUPPORTING TRANSPORT SERVICE 9967 32.78

III PARTICULARS OF HOLDING , SUBSIDIARY & ASSOCIATE COMPANIES

Sl No Name & Address of the Company CIN/GLN HOLDING/
SUBSIDIARY/
ASSOCIATE

% OF 
SHARES 
HELD

APPLICAB
LE 
SECTION

1 Hari Bhoomi Communication Pvt Ltd                        
Add:129, Transport Centre, Rohtak Road, Punjabi 
Bagh, New Delhi - 110035

U64204DL2007PTC163105 Subsidiary 84.68 2(87)(ii)

2 Indus Automotives Pvt Ltd                                             
Add:16A, Third Floor, Najafgarh Road, Shivaji 
Marg, Moti Nagar, New Delhi-110015

U34100DL2010PTC205265 Subsidiary 98.10 2(87)(ii)

3 Sudha Bio Power Pvt Ltd                                    
Add:16A, Third Floor, Najafgarh Road, Shivaji 
Marg, Moti Nagar, New Delhi-110015

U40100DL2011PTC291622 Subsidiary 100 2(87)(ii)

4 Legend Travels Private Limited                                      
Add: 129, Transport Centre, Rohtak Road, Punjabi 
Bagh, New Delhi - 110035

U74300DL1997PTC090325 Subsidiary of Subsidiary NA 2(87)(ii)

5 Param Mitra Resources Pte. Ltd                           
Add:1, Philip Street,# 11-01, Royal One Philip, 
Singapore-048692

NA Subsidiary 96.16 2(87)(ii)

6 Param Mitra Coal Resources Pte. Limited  Add:1, 
Philip Street,# 11-01, Royal One Philip, Singapore-
048692

NA Subsidiary of Subsidiary NA 2(87)(ii)

7 Param Mitra Power Pte. Limited                                     
1, Philip Street, #11-01, Royal One Philip, Singapore 
048692                             

NA Subsidiary of Subsidiary NA 2(87)(ii)

8 Ocenia Resources PTY Ltd                                 Add: 
C/o DW CORPORATE PTY LTD, G , 20 Kings Park 
Road, WEST PERTH WA 6005

NA Subsidiary of Subsidiary NA 2(87)(ii)

9 Sukarma Coal Resources Pte. Limited                           
1, Philip Street, #11-01, Royal One Philip, Singapore 
048692                             

NA Subsidiary of Subsidiary NA 2(87)(ii)

10 Unity  Holding Business Singapore Pte. Limited 
Add:1, Philip Street,# 11-01, Royal One Philip, 
Singapore-048692

NA Subsidiary of Subsidiary NA 2(87)(ii)

129, Transport Centre, Rohtak Road, Punjabi Bagh, New Delhi-110035                         
Telephone:01147634400                                                                 

email:corporatecompliance@sindhutrade.com

Yes
INDUS PORTFOLIO PRIVATE LIMITED                                                  

G-65, Bali Nagar, New Delhi-110015                                                      
Contact No-47671200, 47671214

All the business activities contributing 10% or more of the total turnover of the company shall be stated

Annexure-F

EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN
as on financial year ended on 31.03.2020

Pursuant to  Section 92 (3) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 12(1) of the Company (Management & Administration ) Rules,  2014.

 L63020DL1992PLC121695

FORM NO. MGT 9

22/07/1992
SINDHU TRADE LINKS LIMITED

Company limited by shares/Indian Non Government Company



11 Param Mitra Coal Resources One Pte. Limited 
Add:1, Philip Street,# 11-01, Royal One Philip, 
Singapore-048692

NA Subsidiary of Subsidiary NA 2(87)(ii)

12 Param Mitra Coal Resources Two Pte. Limited 
Add:1, Philip Street,# 11-01, Royal One Philip, 
Singapore-048692

NA Subsidiary of Subsidiary NA 2(87)(ii)

13 Dragon Power Investment Limited                                
1101A-4, 11/F, China Evergrande Centre, 38, 
Gloucester Road, Hong Kong

NA Subsidiary of Subsidiary NA 2(87)(ii)

14 Pt Param Mitra Coal Resources                             
Add:The East Tower, Suite 1705, 17th floor Jl. DR. 
Ide Anak Agung Gde Agung Kav. E3.2 No. 1, 
Kuningan Timur, Jakarta.

NA Subsidiary of Subsidiary NA 2(87)(ii)

15 Pt Rencana Mulia Baratama                               
Add:The East Tower, Suite 1705, 17th floor Jl. DR. 
Ide Anak Agung Gde Agung Kav. E3.2 No.1, 
Kuningan Timur, Jakarta.

NA Subsidiary of Subsidiary NA 2(87)(ii)

16 Pt Param Mitra Coal Movers                              
Add:The East Tower, Suite 1705, 17th Floor, Jl. DR. 
Ide Anak Agung Gde Agung Kav. E.3.2 No. 1, 
Kuningan Timur, Jakarta.

NA Subsidiary of Subsidiary NA 2(87)(ii)

17 Pt Krida Makmur Bersama                                     
Add:17th Floor Jl. DR. Ide Anak Agung Gde Agung 
Kav. E3.2 No.1, Kuningan Timur, Jakarta.

NA Subsidiary of Subsidiary NA 2(87)(ii)

18 Pt Brilian Alam Sejahtera                                    
Add:17th floor, Jl. Lingkar Mega Kuningan
Kav. E 3.2 No. 1, Kuningan, Jakarta Selatan 12950.

NA Subsidiary of Subsidiary NA 2(87)(ii)

19 Pt. Global Bumi Lumbung                                               
Add: The East Tower, Suite 1705, 17th Floor, Jl DR 
Ide Anak Agung Gde Agung Kav E3.2 No.1, Jakarta 
12950

NA Subsidiary of Subsidiary NA 2(87)(ii)

20 Pt. Jaya Jasamandiri                                                          
Add: The East Tower, Suite 1705, 17th Floor, Jl DR 
Ide Anak Agung Gde Agung Kav E3.2 No.1, Jakarta 
12950

NA Subsidiary of Subsidiary NA 2(87)(ii)

21 Pt. Indo Bara Pratama                                                       
Add: Jl. Danau Uwis RT 28, Kel Loa Ipuh, Kel., Kec., 
Kab. Kutai Kartanegara, Kalimantan Timur

NA Subsidiary of Subsidiary NA 2(87)(ii)

22 Param Mitra Investments  Limited                          
Add: 16A, Third Floor, Najafgarh Road, Shivaji 
Marg, Moti Nagar, New Delhi-110015

U67190DL2013PLC251048 Associate 45.59 2(6)

23 Tandem Commercial Pvt Ltd                                   
Add: Office No. 1, Room No. 22, 4th Floor, 2, 
Hanspukurlane, Kolkata, West Bengal- 700007

U55109WB1994PTC064530 Associate 50.00 2(6)

24 Indus Best Mega Food Parks Pvt ltd                          
Add:16A, Third Floor, Najafgarh Road, Shivaji 
Marg, Moti Nagar, New Delhi-110015

U74140DL2012PTC243741 Associate 42.06 2(6)

25 Shyam Indus Power Solutions Private Limited            
Add:16A, Second Floor, Najafgarh Road, Shivaji 
Marg, Moti Nagar, New Delhi-110015

U40300DL2004PTC127124 Associate 49.22 2(6)



IV SHAREHOLDING PATTERN (Equity Share capital Break up as % to total Equity)

Category of 
Shareholders

Demat Physical Total % of Total 
Shares

Demat Physical Total % of Total 
Shares

Number of 
Shares

Percentage

A. Promoters

(1) Indian
a) Individual/HUF 30857196 - 30857196 60.036 30857196 - 30857196 60.036 0 0.00
b) Central Govt.or
 State Govt.

- - - - - - - - - -

c) Bodies Corporates 7675000 - 76,75,000 14.933 7675000 - 76,75,000 14.933 0 0.00
d) Bank/FI - - - - - - - - - -
e) Any other - - - - - - - - - -

SUB TOTAL:(A) (1) 38532196 38532196 74.969 38532196 38532196 74.969 0 0.00

(2) Foreign
a) NRI- Individuals - - - - - - - - - -
b) Other Individuals - - - - - - - - - -
c) Bodies Corp. - - - - - - - - - -
d) Banks/FI - - - - - - - - - -
e) Any other… - - - - - - - - - -

SUB TOTAL (A) (2) 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Total Shareholding of 
Promoter 
(A)= (A)(1)+(A)(2)

38532196 38532196 74.96882444 38532196 38532196 74.969 0 0.00

B. PUBLIC SHAREHOLDING

(1) Institutions
a) Mutual Funds - - - - - - - - - -
b) Banks/FI - - - - - - - - - -
C) Cenntral govt - - - - - - - - - -
d) State Govt. - - - - - - - - - -
e) Venture Capital Fund - - - - - - - - - -
f) Insurance Companies - - - - - - - - - -
g) FIIS - - - - - - - - - -
h) Foreign Venture
 Capital Funds

- - - - - - - - - -

i) Others (specify) - - - - - - - - - -

SUB TOTAL (B)(1): 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

(2) Non Institutions
a) Bodies corporates 12473 5863740 5876213 11.433 1 5863740 5863741 11.409 -12472 -0.024
i) Indian - - - - - - - - - -
ii) Overseas - - - - - - - - - -
b) Individuals
i) Individual 
shareholders holding  
nominal share capital 
upto Rs.1 lakhs

39175 4,88,412 527587 1.026 53407 4,83,452 5,36,859 1.045 9272 0.018

ii) Individuals 
shareholders holding 
nominal share capital in 
excess of Rs. 1 lakhs

144500 6320330 6464830 12.578 144500 6320330 6464830 12.578 0 0.000

c) Others (specify) - - - - - - - - - -
Clearing House 0 0 0.000 0 0 0 0 0

SUB TOTAL (B)(2): 183675 1,26,72,482 12868630 25.037 197907 1,26,67,522 1,28,65,430 25.031 -3,200 0

Total Public 
Shareholding
(B)= (B)(1)+(B)(2)

183675 1,26,72,482 12868630 25.037 197907 1,26,67,522 1,28,65,430 25.031 -3,200 0

C. Shares held by 
Custodian for 
GDRs & ADRs

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Grand Total (A+B+C) 3,87,15,871 1,26,72,482 5,14,00,826 100 3,87,30,103 1,26,67,522 5,13,97,626 100 0 0

No. of Shares held at the beginning of the year No. of Shares held at the end of the year % change during the year



(ii) SHARE HOLDING OF PROMOTERS

Sl No. Shareholders Name Shareholding 
at the 

begginning 
of the year

Shareholdin
g at the 

end of the 
year

% change in 
share 
holding 
during the 

NO of shares % of total shares
 of the company

% of shares 
pledged
 encumbered to 

NO of shares % of total 
shares
 of the company

% of shares 
pledged
 encumbered to 

1 ABHIMANYU SINDHU 2725800 5.30 2725800 5.30 - -
2 ABHIMANYU SINDHU (HUF) 1018130 1.98 1018130 1.98 - -
3 ANIKA SINDHU 540600 1.05 540600 1.05 - -
4 DEV SUMAN SINDHU (HUF) 653360 1.27 653360 1.27 - -
5 DEV SUMAN SINDHU 2908840 5.66 2908840 5.66 - -
6 EKTA SINDHU 1080460 2.10 1080460 2.10 - -
7 KULBIR SINGH 108000 0.21 108000 0.21 - -
8 MITTER SEN SINDHU (HUF) 170700 0.33 170700 0.33 - -
9 PARMESHWARI DEVI 573300 1.12 573300 1.12 - -
10 R S SINDHU 1933186 3.76 1933186 3.76 - -
11 RUDRA SEN SINDHU 997114 1.94 997114 1.94 - -
12 RUDRA SEN SINDHU HUF 735000 1.43 735000 1.43 - -
13 RACHNA SINDHU 1063820 2.07 1063820 2.07 - -
14 RAJBIR SINGH 22500 0.04 22500 0.04 - -
15 SAROJ SINDHU 312960 0.61 312960 0.61 - -
16 SARVESH SINDHU 630900 1.23 630900 1.23 - -
17 SATYA PAL SINDHU HUF 228900 0.45 228900 0.45 - -
18 SATYA PAL 3366780 6.55 3366780 6.55 - -
19 SAURABH SINDHU 177300 0.34 177300 0.34 - -
20 SAHISTA SINDHU 472800 0.92 472800 0.92 - -
21 SHASHI SINDHU 529320 1.03 529320 1.03 - -
22 SHREYA SINDHU 11100 0.02 11100 0.02 - -
23 SWETA SINDHU 113700 0.22 113700 0.22 - -
24 SINDHU FARMS P LTD. 75000 0.15 75000 0.15 - -
25 SMRITI SINDHU 175400 0.34 175400 0.34 - -
26 SOMVIR SINDHU 414000 0.81 414000 0.81 - -
27 SRIJANA SINDHU 9600 0.02 9600 0.02 - -
28 SUMATI SINDHU 408300 0.79 408300 0.79 - -
29 SURABHI SINDHU 552600 1.08 552600 1.08 - -
30 USHA SINDHU 684150 1.33 684150 1.33 - -
31 VIR SEN SINDHU HUF 569460 1.11 569460 1.11 - -
32 VIR SEN SINDHU 3603250 7.01 3603250 7.01 - -
33 VRIT PAL SINDHU HUF 354890 0.69 354890 0.69 - -
34 VRIT PAL SINDHU    3710976 7.22 3710976 7.22 - -
35 PARAMITRA HOLDINGS P LTD. 7600000 14.79 7600000 14.79 - -

Total 38532196 74.97 38532196 74.97

(iii) CHANGE IN PROMOTERS' SHAREHOLDING ( SPECIFY IF THERE IS NO CHANGE)

Sl. No. Share 
holding at 

th  

Cumulative Share 
holding during the 

No. of Shares % of total shares 
of the company

No of shares % of total 
shares of the 
company

At the beginning of the year 3,85,32,196 74.97 3,85,32,196 0.00
Allotment 0 0.00 0 0
At the end of the year 3,85,32,196 74.97 3,85,32,196 0.00



(iv) Shareholding Pattern of top ten Shareholders (other than Direcors, Promoters & Holders of GDRs & ADRs)

Sl. No Shareholding 
at the 

BEGNING of 
the year

Date wise 
increase/decrease 
in  Share holding 
during the year 
specifying the 

reasons for 

Cumulative 
Shareholding 

during the year

For Each of the Top 10 Shareholders No.of shares % of total shares 
of the company

reason date No of shares No of shares % of total 
shares of the 

company
1 MANAK VANIJAYA PVT LTD 1804900 3.51 - - 1804900 1804900 3.51
2 MEGHDOOT VANIJYA  PRIVATE 

LIMITED
1776360 3.46 - - 1776360 1776360 3.46

3 FINE GROW BUILDCON PRIVATE 
LIMITED

1154700 2.25 - - 1154700 1154700 2.25

4 GOOD WORTH INFRACON PRIVATE 
LIMITED

1125000 2.19 - - 1125000 1125000 2.19

5 VAISHALI 250000 0.49 - - 250000 250000 0.49
6 Angoori Devi 238900 0.46 - - 238900 238900 0.46
7 Sanjay Singh 234260 0.46 - - 234260 234260 0.46
8 MANJU DHAKA 228280 0.44 - - 228280 228280 0.44
9 SHIKSHA DHAKA 225310 0.44 225310 225310 0.44

10 PREETI MALIK 225100 0.44 225100 225100 0.438

(v) Shareholding of Directors & KMP

Sl. No Shareholding 
at the 

Cumulative 
Shareholding 

For Each of the Directors & KMP No.of shares % of total shares 
of the company

No of shares % of total 
shares of the 

company
At the beginning of the year 13611306 26.48 13611306 26.48
Date wise increase/decrease in 
Promoters Share holding during the 
year specifying the reasons for 
increase/decrease (e.g. 
allotment/transfer/bonus/sweat 
equity etc) 

0 0.00 0 0.00

At the end of the year 13611306 26.48 13611306 26.48



V INDEBTEDNESS
Rs. In Lakhs

Indebtedness of the Company including interest outstanding/accrued but not due for payment
Secured 
Loans

 excluding 
deposits

Unsecured 
Loans

Deposits Total 
Indebtedness

i) Principal Amount 29988.33 7352.71 - 37341.04
ii) Interest due but not paid - - - -
iii) Interest accrued but not due - - - -

-
Total (i+ii+iii) 29988.33 7352.71 - 37341.04

- -

252.01 741.79 - 993.8
8896.33 393.56 - 9289.89
-8644.32 348.23 - -8296.09

- - 0

21344.01 7700.9 - 29044.95
ii) Interest due but not paid - - -
iii) Interest accrued but not due - - -

Total (i+ii+iii) 21344.01 7700.94 29044.95

VI REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL

A. Remuneration to Managing Director, Whole time director and/or Manager:

Sl.No
Satya Pal Sindhu

1 Gross salary
12000000 12000000

NIL NIL

NIL NIL

2 Stock option NIL NIL
3 Sweat Equity NIL NIL
4 Commission NIL NIL

as % of profit NIL NIL
others (specify) NIL NIL

5 Others, please specify NIL NIL
Total (A) 12000000 12000000
Ceiling as per the Act 10% of net profit 10% of net profit

Change in Indebtedness during the 
financial year

Indebtness at the beginning of the 
financial year

i) Principal Amount

Indebtedness at the end of the financial 
year

Net Change
Reduction
Additions

Total AmountName of the MD/WTD/ManagerParticulars of Remuneration 

(a) Salary as per provisions 
contained in section 17(1) of 
the Income Tax. 1961.

(b) Value of perquisites u/s 
17(2) of the Income tax Act, 
1961

(c ) Profits in lieu of salary 
under section 17(3) of the 
Income Tax Act, 1961



B. Remuneration to other directors:

Sl.No Total Amount
1 Independent Directors Kuldip Singh 

Sindhu
Samay Ram Ram Niwas 

Hooda
Promila 
Bhardwaj

165000 75000 165000 75000 480000

(b) Commission 0 0 0 0
(c ) Others, please specify 0 0 0 0
Total (1) 165000 75000 165000 75000 480000

2 Other Non Executive Directo Rudra Sen Sindhu
0 0 0 0

(b) Commission 0 0 0
(c ) Others, please specify. 0 0 0 0
Total (2) 0 0 0 0 0
Total (B)=(1+2) 165000 75000 165000 75000 480000
Total Managerial Remuneration NIL NIL NIL NIL
Overall Cieling as per the Ac1 % of net prof1 % of net profit 1 % of net prof1 % of net prof1 % of net profit

C. REMUNERATION TO KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL OTHER THAN MD/MANAGER/WTD

Sl. No. Total
1 Gross Salary CEO Company 

Secretary
CFO Total

NA Suchi Gupta Vikas Singh 
Hooda

928800 2400000 3328800

0 0

0 0

2 Stock Option 0 0
3 Sweat Equity
4 Commission

as % of profit
others, specify

5 Others, please specify

Total NIL 928800 2400000 3328800

(c ) Profits in lieu of salary 
under section 17(3) of the 
Income Tax Act, 1961

Key Managerial Personnel

Particulars of Remuneration

Particulars of Remuneration

(a) Salary as per provisions 
contained in section 17(1) of 
the Income Tax Act, 1961.

(b) Value of perquisites u/s 
17(2) of the Income Tax Act, 
1961

(a) Fee for attending board 
/ committee meetings

(a) Fee for attending 
board committee meetings

Name of the Directors



VII PENALTIES/PUNISHMENT/COMPPOUNDING OF OFFENCES

Type Section of 
the 
Companies 
Act

Brief 
Description

Details of 
Penalty/Punishment/
Compounding fees 
imposed

Authority 
(RD/NCLT/Cou
rt)

Appeall made if any 
(give details)

Penalty
Punishment
Compounding

Penalty
Punishment
Compounding

 
Penalty
Punishment
Compounding

Date: 04.12.2020
Place: New Delhi For Sindhu Trade Links Limited

Satya Pal Sindhu Rudra Sen Sindhu
Managing Director Director
Din:00218355 Din:00006999

A.  COMPANY                                                                          NIL

B. DIRECTORS                                                                        NIL

C. OTHER OFFICERS IN DEFAULT                                 NIL

For and on behalf of Board of Directors



ahry an fr'l{fru [[ar {, n s s o ciate s
Chartered Accountants

lndependent Auditors' Report

Opinion

We have arditsd tho eomp'tying Standabne Financial Staternenls of Shdhu Trade Lhks Umited ('the
Co.npary) whl* lrcludss loart operdoE, whbh compris€ the BCarE stEet as at Marcn 31, n2o tE
Statsment ol Proft srd Loss, irrluding the stat.mert of Otn€r CotrPreher6ive lftome, the Csh Flow Stdelhellt
.od the Statem.nl of Changes in E+ny tor ths ysar th6n .nded. and notes to lhe Starldalone Fir}anclal
Statemenls, inclucling a summary of signinc.nl eolntrng polici€s and dler eplanatory ir{ormsion. ( herein
afr€r rsfoned to 6 Standdom FinatEBl Stdemer$).

TO THE MEMEERS OF SIi!DHU TRADE LINKS LIMITED

1. Key audlt irattet

The Compary has invested in cqu,ty and Felerence shs6 aid governmerd bonds 3s well lhe carying .mount

of which ts calcuE 6d by the management in dordarEc with lnd ,s 32, 107 and 109 provi.jed in Nole 5 and

N.t 15 ot the inancial statemen6

Coftidenng ths mate.i.lity of the amomts rvotued, the sEnirrc€nt manaoement ludgment E reqired in

sslimatirE th€ qrantum of dmflnjon in th€ value of hvestmcnts ad sudr estmdes and judgm€nts bdng

inh.rently sijec-t,ve, lhis matter h6 been idedified as a k€v audit mdter whbh is d€s.nbed in Nor. 20) io the

stsndalone llnancial stalements ,\s at 31st Msrch 2m0, $e compdry has mad€ i6tal forergn inveslrnents n
subsidiary or RB 43,416 La&tE

J-36/5 Ganoa Ram Vatika,'lilak Nagar. New Delhi 110018

E-mail : khiullardivyank@gmail.con Mob . 8860094942

ln our opinion and to the best of our information and a6ordi.9 to the explanatiorE given to !6, the afore$id
Strndalone Finencial Statements giv€ ule informalim requred by th€ CompanEs lct, 2013, 6 amended ('tte
A.f) in the mann.r so requred and give a tue and fair vjew in confo.mity wilh the accouiting principl.6
g.n.rdt *ccptcd h lndla, of tie stde of afi,irs of the Corpany 6 at March 31 , 2020, ib proft irluding c{h.t
co.npreh€nsns income, iE c6h flo\r/s and the changes in equity for ttu year ended on ihEt (l]at!

BASiS FOR OPINIOI.J

We conducied ou ardit of tlp Standalone Finar.ial Statem€nts in accordance with the Stardards on turdrting

{SAs). 6 specri.d und6r Secton 143(10) of tha Act Our resPotd}ilitres under those Standads ar. turther
de!.rbed in th€ Audrtors' Responsibiliti€s for the Ardit of the Standslooe Finarcial Stat mcnts' s€cton ol ou(

r€pot W. r. ind€pendent of the Company in eordanca wnh the 'Code d Et*:s' E$.d bv the llBlilJte of
Chart€red Lccountants ol lndia together with the ethic.l r€quir€ments that are relevant to our audit of the
frnarciel slstements under lh. provisio6 ol rhe A.t ,ld the Rules thereunder, and we have tufiilled olf other

ethical r€sporBibilities in accordance with ihese re$iremeflts and lhe Cod€ of Ettics We b€liilv. thst th€ audit

sviience $€ ha\,€ obtained b sdficiert rd approp{iate to provklo a b6b for dn audt opnion on tre
Standalone Financid Staemenls

KEY AUDiT I\lATTERS

Key audt matters (KAM') are tho6e matefs that, n our profes.icnal judomstt, were of most significame in olrr

alait 6f ttp slandalone financial slatements of lhe cun.flt peiod These maters were addressed in th€ context of
our audit of llle staMalon€ linahcial statemsnts as a shole, r]d in fotming our opinion lh.rcon, and we do not
provil6 a 6.prtt€ ottnion on ihes€ mders

1. Key Audlt [,latt€I



Our ardn procedures assessed tne appropnat€ness 6f melhodologv and v.lualioo model used by m aoement

to Elinate t|e value of invc6t nerlts

Eased on our proc.dures we considered tle adequacy or disclosLres in rsspect of investments h t1e notes to
ihe standalone inancial statements

2. Kry Ardlt filalter

Evdudion ol Urrcrtain Tax Pcitions & Other Conlingent Uabilti€s

The comparry has matedal uncertaa tex pocnions including maters under clsplne whEh i.volvss signf€-tt

ludgmertto det rmns the pcs6l€ artcome of hese @ut€s

The Compary atso has matalal cortinge{t habilaties including outstanding guarant€es, counter guar*t# and

omnbus counter guarante€s io varous banks and claims a!6irEt [re compaiv under d6pute which involve'

egnrficant judgm.ri to deiennine the possible outcome of these d6pdes as mernion€d in Noie 40 to the

standalon€ tuancial EtaterEnE.

Obt*ned d.taE of corYpleted tax ass€ssments eld d.mands till t'!e year ended March 31, 2020 rrom lhe

manag6ment we hvolved 6ur ht.mal experts to chdleng€ the managemetrts underlving assumPtrorE in

sstm;ng the tax provision and the poGslble outcome of tte dbpules Otr iterrEl exp.rts also conider€d legal

prececlenc. and other rulings jn evalualing management's pcfion on th.ss urEertah tax po6iiio.rs

Our audit procedre on contnlpnt li*ilines induded -
. Ol,tainins an understanding of the q/stems and cornrob implem.nt€d bv m,nag.ment for recognizng

tt€ glarantees.
. Evduation of p{rrpos6 for which the variolE bank gwrantees are provi,ed

. Our antsmal€)a.rb read dU andvsed extemal l6gal opinions/ corEutarions bv managem6d for lhe

disputes pendng in variousforums
. Discrlssed wth appropriate serior manag.m€nl reqarding the claims sgdnst the companv and

ass€ssmenl ofders
. AEs€soed managameds eslimate ol th€ possible outcom. ol ltre @'n€d cas€r

3. Kry audlt irafter

R€aat d Party TErEacrixll

DLning thc )€ar, lhe ComPary has generated major Porlion of revenue and has incuned significad amdnt of

e)aerce wih the rebt€d padies

lndAS2.1'RelatedPartyDisclosre6',requaesslb$antivedisclosuresfortherelatedpttvlr,ls'c1!ffiwhich
ar. dEclo€ed in Note 46 to th€ standdom f mrcidslstemenls

Oct.rminaton ot sub€tarce of the lrar6actio6 and trans*lion Price for qrch related p tv tansacto's is a kev

auait mattcr consdering tte sllninaance of the tarEacton value aM the significd{ judgments hv'tued in

dst.mhi.g the lrdEaclton !el!E

Aulilor'5 Re.Doiae

. Olll sudn procedu6 inclu.l€d cbrBid.rhg the cornplEnce with th. vaiol,s rcquirements for entefiO in to

$ch rd.t d Prty r.rEa.tiorB
. We performed test of oontrob over related prtv lrmsactions through insp€cton ol evidence of performance

ofttEse..ntroh.
. Ws p€rfomedthe following tests of detdh:

- w. hde eval€led he rels./allt woft orders and mrket prae

: W. have read the apgrcvah obtained lrom Ardit Commilte€, Botrd of Oirectors and Sh"holders
for fie naisa.lions



INFORN1ATION OTHER THAN THE FINANCIAL STATEI,,IENTS AND AUDITORS' REPORT

THEREON
The Company's Board of Oiectols b r€spo.Eible fot the oth€r informaton. The other information compr6's the

l.lfomardn i'fou&d h ths Annual Repo( bd does not include the Stardabna Findcial Stat.m.nb and our

auditors' rePonfiereon.

Our oFrnion on tle Standalone Financial Statemsnts does not cover tre other infonnaijon and we do not .Pr€ss
any form of ssurarce conclusion ther€on.

ln conneclion wfi our audn of th. Standdone Financial Statementq our r.GpoEibilitv is to read the other

informdix and, in doing so, consider wtEther suci other infomalio. E materBlt i.conristent with the fmrEral
stat.inents or our knoyvi;dge obtahed ir the audit or otheMse .ppe-s to be maleri.lly micstated lf, b6ed on

th€ work we have performed, we condude thd there is a material mbstaiement o, thas other infomstion,
we ,e requirad to roport f]at fad. We have not ng to repod in this regErd

RESPONSIBILITIES OF I\4ANAGE[4ENT FOR THE STANOALONE FINANCIAL STATEIT4ENTS

The Company6 Bord of Dr€ciors b resporEible for tle mater6 gtated ir Seclbn 134i5) of the Act wih respe6l

to tre o.e;ar;ton ofd|€6e Standdona Frnanc6lSt em.nts fiat give atsu€ andfai.vi* ofthe financial posinon'

finarErat ierformar'ce ncludng other comprehdEive incoms, c€6h ffos,s e$ cMng€€ in equrty of tne Comparry

in accoriancc wth the .ccounting Pirripl€s generdly accatsd n lndia including the lndian Accounting

Stan(tards (lnd AS) specitEd und€r Section 133 of the Act read wih the Companios (lndian A'counting
Stanaarasi hutes, iO1 5. 6 tnended ths resporEibilirv also irEludes mantenance oJ ad€qude accotnting

records h-acccdance ,niol th€ provEions of $e A.'! fo( safcgpardirE of tnc ass€ts oI the Comparry snd for
prevsrning .nd dstecting fiau6 and other irregulartesi s€lectbn ard apPlication ot aPoropriate accouiting

i:oticreg. iarrns rLrOgements and eslimdeG tiat ,e re6on bl€ and Prudatti and the derign, impl€molltrion and
'nrr'ntimn.u oi 6ae-q.ra" int"mal fin r|cd controb, that were operating efi.ct velv for ensuring ths acoJracy and

comolet€nes6 of dE'accounhg recordq lelevant to the pr€Pdation and pre66fitalon ofthe Standdone Fimrbial

Srairments ret give a tu. t'J far vlew ald are free fiom material misstdement, wh€ther dle to fraud or eror

l. oreoanno ihs Slandalone Financral Stat€.nents, maag€tnont and Board of OaeclorE are responsible for
aieiino 6e ComoarVs abliv td contrnue as a gohg corEem, discloling, a applicable, mders 

'elated 
to

soins coiem anO irsin'g tns gohg concem bas6 ol a..ouiting unless mEnagemenl either ntends to liquidate

itre Compary or o ccase oPerabons, or has no redrstc .rtemrtw Un b do so

fhc€ Bo-d of Dieclo.s ,s *o responsibla for overseeng the Cdnpanys fnarEial reponmg proc€ss

We have assess€d the dis.losures to be made in accordarEe with lnd AS 24 "Rel6ted P tv Dbclosures"

AUDITORS' RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE STANOALONE FINANCIAL

STATEMENTS

our obEcwes ,e to obtan r€asorEble EsuraEe dout whether the Stadalone Financial Statemeds 6 a

slble ie free from matild mEstatemen( whether &e io frard o. enor, and to Esrle ,1 audilors' repod thd
rcludes our opinion Re-onable assu.arre is a high level of asslrame, bln rs not a guarantee lhat a aud

condicted in ;ordance with SAs will always d€tect a mslerial misstatemeni when il e'sts Misstateh'nls can

init" rroln t"rA or unor ard are consirered mat€ial if, hdividually or in the aggregate trcy cd.Id reGonablv be

;aected to bnuerEe the €conomic dectsiorE ol users taken on the basis of th€s€ stardalme Fimncial

As p*t ol an audt in ...ordarEe with SAs, we e)(ercls€ profecslonal ludgement and mahtajn professi'ntl

s..plssrn {hroughorn the audt We atsor

.ld.ntitandassessthedsksofmaierialmsstatementofiheStandalon€FinarcialStatemerts,whether
6ie 6 ftald or enor. deEgn and perform audit procedures re+ottsive t6 lhos€ nsks, and obteh audit

;vrderc. lhat .E sutfci€nt ;nd appiopdate to provrde a basis for our oPhion' The risk ot not deteding a

maleflal misstatem€nt .esdting from traud E hioher than fo. one .e€ullino from enor, as rEUd mav

invotve coltLrsioo, forgery, internional omissions, misrePresentaiiom, or the ovenide of int'malcontrol

. Obtan an understanding of intemd conrolrelevant to the audit in order to dedgn audil Procedure' that

;; apropdate h the .-ncumstanc€s Under Seclbn 143(3Xi) of the 'Act, we are dso re+666b lo'
eprel;,ti our oprnion on *hether the companv has adeqrate intemEl finarcial coniols with refderce

to fttan El staterents in place and the oPemling efiectiveness of qrch controb

.:

d



. Evduale the +propriateness of accounting polici€s used and the reasonablen€ss of accomtng
.slimates and related disclo6lr.s made bv manaqement.

. Conclude on the appropriataess of managemenfs use of the going concem basB of accountidg srd,
based on lhe aldit 6/idence obtain€d, whe$s a matenal urE€rtairry eisE rslated to events or

condfioG that may cast signilbant doubt ot\ the Comp tys ability lo contnue 6 a going concem lf we
conafude tEt a materid u;cedainty exists, we de r.quied to draw attention in ou auditors report lo
the rclated dscbsures m the finarcial statements or, rf such disdosures are inadequatc, to modify our

opinioo. Our conclusaorE are bas€d on the aurlit evid.nce obtained up to lhe date of ou audto6 report

Horever, frrtue events or coodrtions mav calE€ lhe comparry to ce6e lo conlnue as a going concem

. Evduat. the overall presertaton, struclure and content ol the Standslone Financial Staiements,
including the disclostr€s. ad whether th€ Staxlahne Fimncaal Staternents repres€nt the 

'nd.rlving
trarcacliorE and .v.nts in a md1n.r that achieves faf pr€s€nlalion

W. commudcate wilfl those charged with governarEe regarding, among other mde.q tre Planned scop€ and

timing ol th€ audit and s€nificart ardit nndings, includftg arv srgnfrcant defEieicies in intemal corilrd lh'l w'
identrry during d,r audit.

We abo provide tho6s cha.ged with govemance wih a staternent that we have complied wilh relevam 
'mical

reqursm;nE regardrg andePendence, and to coomunilate with ttEm all rslatjoBhips 'ld 
olher natt'6 lhat

mjy reGonsly L. utought to be, on our hdep€ndence, and wh€re applicable, related sefeguacb

REPORT ON OTHER LEGAL ANO REGULATORY REOUIREIlIlENTS

r As reoured W he ComoanEs tAudiois Repod) Order, 201 6 ("tle Order"), lssued bv the C€nEal Govemment

oJ hdia ; t.rm; ot sub-slcnon ('il) or Secion 1/B of ih. Act, we give in Al. 'Annexue 1' a {atement on tha

matt rE 6p€crli.d rn paragraPhs 3 and 4 of th€ Order.

2. As requi.ed by S.cton 143(3) 6f lhe Acl we report tlat

(a) We havs sougrlt and obtahed allt\e irtomalion aE splanati6ns which to the besl of our knowledg' and

belief w.r€ necc.crv lor the prrpces of our aldt;

(b) ln ollr opinion, proper books ot account as required by lat,v have been kspl bv tle Company so far as it

appea6 from our c:amintlion of those books;

(c) The Bdance Sheet, the Statem€nt of ftdt and Loss incMing the Slatement of OtlE Comprehondve

i;om.. als Cash Fbllv Statement ad Stetem.nt ot Changps in EqJitv deali wih by thb Report st' in ageem€nt
wth the books ol eounti

adr ln our ooirlon the aforesad Standalon€ Frmrcial Statsmonts compty with the A.courtirE StgldEr(ls

ipcor"C rnd€r S"aim 133 ot the Act read sft companGs (lndian A.rourting Stadards) Rd6, 2015, as

(.1 On the b66 of th. waden reDr€s€ntatorB rec.iv.d from the direclor6 6 on Mdch 31, 2m0 t*en 6n recotd

;; th. Eoard ot D'.c1ors, none of rle diectors 6 disqlaffi.d 6 on Mar.$ 31, 20z) t'om b€ing appo'nt€d 6 a

diiscror h i.rms of Secton 1 64 (2) of the Act.

rn wih rseci to the admuacl/ of lhe rntemal fnancial connoE ove. fnancial repodng of the Company wilh

ijre'"*. i6 trese S*aa"n€ i'na.E€l Sr.iements and th€ opsrdno efiecliv€fle$ of$rch corrtros, r8fet to our

separde Rsport in "Annexure 2' to this reporti

(g) ln our opjnbn, provsions of Seclion 197 of tlie Companies A.t 2013 Wih respect to maag€ri'l
r€muneraton, b not applisbl€ on the co,npmyi

lhl Wih reso€cl to $€ otrer matters to be hcludsd in the Auditors' Reporl in accor.Ianc' wtth Rule 11 of the

L6moinrcs inlO,t ano,Cuoitors) Rules, 2'0 t4. 6 amended in our oPinion and to the b'st of our iflromEtron and

accordng to the eplanaltorB glven to tls

i The Company h6 clsclos€d fie impact of pending litigations on its financial postDn 
'n 

(s Stsdalone
FinarEial Slatg1rents - Reler Note 40 to the Standdone Financial Stat.m8ntsi

New e
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ii. The Company do not have any longlerm coniracts ancludng dsrivative co racts for whbh lhere were
arry matenal for€€€€ade lossesi

iii. The Compary do not have any dues m accoul of lrv€stor Educatron and Prot€caon Fund

For Divyank Khull & Assodates
Charter.d Accorntsrts

025755N

Kh!llar

M No:' 528399
uolN.-fo5r3lcl AAAAB

N€wDelhr
orre- 02./09/2020

New Delhi



ANNEXURE I
TO TIG INDEPENDENT AUOITORS REPORT OF EVEN DATE ON -rHE STANDALO'IE FINANCIA STAIEMENIS oF slNllu

The Annexure refened to in the hclependent Auditor's Report to ihe members of the Company on the FinatEl
staements for the year end.d 31' March 2020, We report thd:

1 . (a) Th€ ComPany has maintained Proper records sholving tull padicularc, rr1cluding q.rantitative details

and situetion oftued assels

(b) Accordhg to tne lnlo.mdon & Explanation gven to us, Ihe Compary has a reguld prolreme for

idFijal venr'catjon n a phased perbdb maner, whid, in our opnion, ts reaondle having regar6 to
ini sze ot ttre compary and the nature of its assets. No mdenal dar.repaEies were nolced on such

(c) A.cording to hformdon and explanatioE given by fte mamgement, the fi16 deeds/l€ase d"d6 ol
immovdl€ prop€rri.ts included n Property, plaf atd equipmsm are h€ld in the nam€ of the Compdry'

2. The manaoement has conducted physical ver icatron of inventory at re6onable intervds during the
year and no material discreparEies were noticed on such pttvsical v.rincatun

3. ln our opinion and accordhg to lhe irfomation and e)elanaions given to us, th€ Comp,ry has granted

loans to partits listed in a|e regider mairtained under S€clbn 189 cf the Companies Ac1, 2013

(a) Ihe terfiE and conditions of th€ grant ol such loans are, in our opinion, pimafaci€, not Prejudb'alto

the CompanYs interesl.

(b) The schedule of repayrn€rt of princhal and pavment of trterGl has been slipulated and repavmertg

or rec€ipts of frincpal anosts and int.rest have been regular 6 pe. stFuhltolB

(c) fte prirEipd and interest are not overdue rn respect oI loans grarted to comPanies, lirms or other

parlies l6ted in the regster masrlain€d under section 189 ol Ale CornPanies Acl, 2013

4. A.cording to the informaiion and eplanation6 gNen lo us and on the bas6 of otll examnation of lhe

rec6.d6; ttte Company, U€ Compary has complBd wth the ProMsions ot Secnon 185 and 166 or the

A.1, wilh respecl to loalE and inwslrnents made

5. The Compry has not acc€pt€d *ly depcits wi$in the mealing of seclions 73 to 76 d the A't and tl€
Conprlis (icceptarce ot Deposi6) Rutes, 2014 (as amendcd) Accordhglv, he provbions ol cb@
3(v) ol th€ Ord€r are not epplicdle to tho ComParry

6- pacordng to the informaton and explanatons gavon to t6, the Compatry b nol requited to mairtein the

cost records under sub scction ( 1 ) of Sectiin 146 of the Coftpariss Act 2013 A..ordiEt, parataph

3ir1) of lhe ofd.r E not eppla€ble to the companv

7. (al T}le Comptry 6 senerally tegular n depciting wth approPriate auhorilies undrspded Etatrtory

i,€€ urruo,ni prtvioe-nt t,nd, EmPbyees Slate l.isurance, lrEome-tax, Sale6'tar, Goocb and Servbes

ta(, Outy of C-ustoff, Dl.ty ot ErcEe, Value Added Tax, Cess drd Otl.r Staltnory Dues 4Plbable 10 it

rbr Accordno to $e lrlfomaton dxl erplamtions Provi,ed to us, no undispded nounts Pavable in

;espect of P;ovrdenl tltrld. EmPloy€es State lnslranc€, l.com€_tax, Sal* Ta}q Goods and s'rv'e ttr.
OutV oi custom, or.rty of excis;, Value added tax cess .rd other Statutory Dues were outslanding, at

the y€ar end, for a Period ol more than six months fiom tte dale th€y became psvaue

(c) A.rordng to the rntormaton and explanations given to uq there ee no dues of lncome Tar, Sal6s

Tax, Value Added Tax, Service Tax, Outv of Cttstoms, Dutv of Excise, Goods anl Serv'e Ta! and Cess

$tEh have noi been deposled with the approPriate autho.ities on account of arry disrute except the

following.-

PERIOD
(A.Y) lRs- ln trkh) dl9pute ls

p€ndhg

200744
2008 09

1892 92 Hrgh Coud, Oelhi

at&

':

1961



8 ln ou opanion and eordng to the information and erPlsnations provided bv the manaoemenl the

Company h6 noi defaulted in repayment of loa6 or borrowing to a financial instdulon, bank or
govefnment or dues to d€benture hotsefs.

9. Aeordng to the irfomaton and e4rlanatjons given to u6. the Companv did not raEe any monev bv
way of inrtial publ€ ofer or turther public off€r (includino debt insEuments) and tl€ term loans takef by

th€ Company have b€en applied for the Puryose for whch thev were rdsed.

10 Ac.ording io the informaiion and explanatims provided by the managemert we rePorl that no lraud bv

the Company or no mateflal fraud on the Company by i,]e offc€rs and emplovees of the Companv has
been noticed or repoded during th€ yed

1 1 . To ltE best of oul knowledse ard a.cording to the hform.lion and e)elrnatior]s grv.n to c mdlagerial
remunerai,on has been paid or govided in accordanc. wih ihe requEite approvah mandated bv the
provsiorE of sectbn 1 97 read wih Sciedul€ V to the Compales Act

12. ln our opinion, the Compa.y ls not a nidhr @mpany. Therefore, the provasiorE ot clause 3(xn) of the

Order are not applicable to the Company and hence not commented upon.

13 pacor.rng to the infomation and explanatiorE given t6 !E and bas€d on off examhation ot he re'or'ls
of ltE Company. taisadions wih the related prtas are h compliance wih seclion 188 of the A.l
where applicable and deEb of $ch lraEactons have been disclos€d in lhe Standalone lnd As
tinarEaal stat€ments d requred by ute 4plicable lndian Accohting Standa..b Furthor, according to
ttE idormation ard erplanadorE siven to us an.l ba*d on our examinalion of the records of Ol.
Comparry, provisiom of seclion 177 ofthe A.t are not applicable to the Companv.

14. Accordng to the rformatitn and eplanaliorE provded to lls and on an overall examnatlon of the

balanc€ ;heei, fie compary has not made arry preferential allotment or ptivate dacement of shares or

tully or partty conve(ble debenures during he ysar under reuew and hence, reponing requirements
u er ciaus; 3{\,v) of U'e Order are not +Prc*le io Ihe ConP3rry .no, not comment.d upofl

15. Accordng to the n ormalion ard erylanalions provided by the maiagement,lh€ ComPary has ml
ernered into any norcGh lransaclions witl dacctoB ot pensons connectd with hm as refared to in

S.cln '192 of lhe Act

16. A..ordng to the informrto.! and expbnsl,ons provrded to us, the provisroris ol Sectron 45-lA oI he
R.s€rve Benk ol lndaa Act, 1 934 ,e not 4plica6le to th6 ComPanv

For Di!ryank Khullar & Associates
Chart€red Accor.t ts
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ANNEXURE 2
TO TIC INO€PENOENT AUOITOFS' FEPORI OF E!€N DATE ON THE STANDALOI.IE FINANCIAI STATEMENTS OF SIIIOI-]U

REPORT ON THE INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS UNDER CLAUSE (i) OF SUB-sECTION 3

OF S€CTION 143 OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013 ("THE ACI")
W. lEv! audted the int.rml linancial conlrots ov.l linaicbl reporting of Sir(nu Trad€ Links Liml.d ('he Colnpany")
as ol Mar.h 31 , 2020 in coninction wllh otr adit of lh. Slandarona Fioa.sal s4enenls of lhe Cdnpany ro. Ule year

]\,IANAGEMENT'S RESPONSIBILiIY I.OR INTERNALFINANCIAL CONTROLS
The Comp.ny's Managemenl is resPoBiue Ior establEhing and mainlaining inldnal thanciaL cdnrots b&d on rhe
internal contol ov.r fmancial reFortiE crteria esrablish.d by the comPary @Bidering the essenli.l cornPomnis of
illtrnal conlrol sl.t.d in lhe Guidar Note on Ault of lnlernal Fjnarcial conitolE Ove, Friarcial R€P61i.g (lhe
'Guidanoe Nol€') issued by th6 lndtune ol Chanered AccoJdanrs of lndia The respomibilities incl'lde the d6En,
impEm.ntatron and maidenance of adequate irtrtnal fnancial conlrols lhat were oPerrlino el,eclrv.ly lot e.suri.g lhe
ordeny and etrEied condu.t ot its b6in6s, in luding adh.t.nc. to ihe comP6nys polici.6,lhe saleguardhg ol rs
6s€ts lhe pr.ventio. .nd deleclion ot lrauds and trors, the acclra.y and comddffi o,lhe ,ccounaing r..ords
and th. limely pr.p.ralion ot r6liabl€ lhancbl tformation, as required un&r the Aci

AUDITORS' RESPONSIBILITY
ou r.spoBib ay b to expfBs an opinio. on lhe co.nPany'3 inlmd fhamial cnlrob ov.r liiarcbl rePo.rin! wlh
r€r.f.rce to lhe6€ standabne FinancEl staiements based on our ardit. we conducted our audn i. .@ddance wnh the
Gudan e Note and lhe 9andar.l6 oD Audling as specm.d und.r S€clion 14q10) ofthe Acl, to lhe extern aPplicabb lo
an .udit of jntemal finarci.l cornrob and, bolh isued by Ihe h6litule of Chart*ed Aeountad6 ol hdb Th@
Standar6 and lfi€ Gua&nc. Note requie lhat t€ comPly wlh elhEal requiements and Plan and P€rform lhe ardit to
obtain reas.nabh asErce about wielher adequale intemal finamial @lrots @er tinancial reponing wnh te,ererce
ro rh& standald6 FiMeial slalemenis {s estsblished and marnlained and il su.h controts orer.t6d .ffEtivelv in

Ow audil anvolve6 p.rforming P.@dur6 lo otlain audi 6vilene about the adequacy ot the rdsnal lhancial.odrols
over fhancial r.poning wnh reference lo lh6e Slandahn. Financi.l sal.m4ts and lheir op.ralino .ff€cliv..a oul
aldi ol i.ndMl ,Mncial controls over financial repo,hg bcluded obtaining an tlnder6tanding ot inldnal linancial
conrrols over rrnancial reponing wth retdM. lo th@ slandalone Finarcial std.me.ts. 69sing the rEk lha a

matedal weakne$ erEts, and le€ting and evaluanng the design and op.rating efialivene6s ol inlernalontrol ba*d on

lhe ass€.sed risk. The procedur6 sel€cted *pend on lh. aldtoB judgement, including the ass$smed ot lhe rilks ot
maledal mEdateoenl ol fte fnarcial stde.nents, stleIhs du. lo traud d €.rd

We b€lieve lhai the audil eviddce re have ouained b s!fficienl aDd appropriate to provire a basis tor our audt
opinion on the int.rnal linanoal @rn.oE over nnarlcial reporling \,\ilh r.fe.erce lo these Slandalone Fhancial

i,EANING OF INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONiROLS OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING WTH
REFERENCE TO THESE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A companys i.lehalfrnancial conlrol over fhancial r.pMing wilh rel*ence to lhe6. stand.lone Financial Slatements
is a proc*s il6En.d to prdije ret6.nable 6suar rega.ding lh€ reliabilily or fnarElal repoding and th. P.ePar.taon
or tiancial slale;eds li exlernal PUrpcE h accordance N/th g.nsralry .eeBed *couriing Ptit'ciPle6 A companv'6

intefiallin rci.l cont ol ov.r frlarcbl r.pdtiro wth rete.eE lo the* Slan&lorl€ Fin.rci.l StatemenlB irclud€3 the
polbiF and pro.edures 0ral (l) penai. to the mai enance of .rordB lhai, in reasonable d6ra[ a.d]rnery and feirlv

ivtea thc traraaions and dispo6dioB or lhe ass.ts or tE companyi (2) Fovide reaaombl. .33uram th6l
transdbrB are r€co.d.d d ne€$ary to p€rmt Pr.Pdalion of nnanoial saat€ttr€d6 In accordanc. wilt' gen..ally

.cc€pled r.cdrntin! p.imipl6, and U|at re.€i6s and erpehdiiur6 of the compa.v ar. b.ing made only h accordance

wrh ;dhorbariorB of maiaoem6nt and die.tors ofthe comP y; ad (3) pro/ide reaenabl€ a6suranc. regrrding
p.ev.ntion or iilely dete.tion of lnaulhorised -quishion, @, or di6po6itlon of ih. Companv s asseis thal coud hav. a

maletul elLcl on lh.linrncial stal.ment3

INHERENT LII\4ITAIIONS OF INTERNAL FINANC AL CONTROLS OVER FINANCIAL
REPORTING WITH REFERENCE TO THESE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEIIEi\,iIS

Be.ause of ihe inher.rn [mit.tions oI ini€hd nmrcid conlrob over nMncial reporting fith rclseice to lhE
Slen.lslone Finaicial stalmenls, irl.luding the po6srblity of @lllsion or impop.r management override ot @rnroh
marerial mi6stal€m.ot3 due to ei.of or fraud Fav oca, aod not b€ del.ct€d. Abo, p.titdions ol anv .v.lu.tbn of the

idternd r..n i.l cd{rob over financial reponhg wih reference to th.s€ gandalone Fmartoial slate.nenls to ftnl'6
p6 o.h are BuU.cI lo lhe risk lrBt the intem;l fihancbl co rol ov.r fman ial r.Porlrng wnh rereren e to the€e
'Slandalone 

Finarci€l Stai.m.nt6 may becorn€ ina.lequale becau6e ot chang6 in condlions, or lhat th. d.gr€. of
6mpli6ic. wlh lh. Pol.cas of p.ooc.lu6 may d.i.riode



OPINION
ln ol' ofinion. the Cdnpany has, in all rnaterial resp€cls. acl€quale iiernal lhancial controb over rhancEl rcpoittng
wih r6fd.rc. to Ih*e Stendelono FinarcEl St.l.m6rb a.d such inl.rnal fiE,lcial conlroh o!e. fnancaal ref'oning
wlh r.t ..m. lo th6c Sian lalon. FiMrci.l Sl.r.m.ls wr6 op€r.li{ .[€cliv€ly a6 al M.rch 3, , 2020, ba3.d on lhe
inl€rnal oonliol ove. fmarcial reportirE critsia establrshed by the Comparry considering the ess€.tial co.nFnents of
idernalc.nuol Elaled in lh. Guidance Note on Audil oI lnl$nal Financial Conlrob Over Finaicial R8po.ting r66!€d by
lh. ln !lut. ot Charl.red Accountanls of lrdia.

For Divasnk Khullar & Associaies
Chartered A.courtats

025755N

M No:- 528399
uDrN.-)e5 ar3clAAA4
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Corporate Governance is all about ethical conduct, openness, integrity and accountability of 
an enterprise. Healthy Corporate Governance enjoins a commitment of the Company to run 
the business in legal, ethical and transparent manner. It involves a set of relationships 
between a Company’s Management, its Board, Shareholders and Stakeholders. It is one of the 
key elements in improving the economic efficiency of the enterprise. Credibility generated by 
sound Corporate Governance enables an enterprise in enhancing the confidence of the 
investors – both domestic and foreign, and in establishing productive and lasting business 
relationship with all stakeholders. 
 
To Sindhu Trade Links Limited, Corporate Governance is more a way of business life than a 
mere legal obligation. Besides complying with the prescribed Corporate Governance Practices 
as per Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 
Requirements), Regulations, 2015 (hereinafter referred to as `Listing Regulations`) the 
Company has voluntarily adopted various practices of Governance conforming to highest 
ethical and responsible standards of business, globally benchmarked.  
 
Sindhu Trade Links Limited views Corporate Governance principles as an important pivot to 
decision making process. It forms part of business strategy which includes, inter-alia, creating 
an organization intended to maximise wealth of shareholders, establish productive and 
lasting relationship with all stakeholders with emphasis laid on fulfilling the responsibility 
towards entire community and society. 
 
Being a value driven organization the Company envisages attainment of the highest level of 
transparency, accountability, co-ordination and equity in all facets of its operations including 
everyone it works with, the community it is in touch with and the environment it has an 
impact on. 
 
The Company has established systems and procedures to ensure that its Board of Directors is 
well informed and well equipped to discharge its overall responsibilities and provide the 
Management with the strategic direction catering to exigency of long term shareholders 
value. It`s initiatives towards adhering to highest standards of Governance include self-
governance, professionalization of the Board, fair and transparent processes and reporting 
systems and going beyond the mandated Corporate Governance requirements of SEBI. The 
Corporate Governance Principles implemented by Sindhu Trade Links Limited seeks to 
protect, recognize and facilitate shareholders rights and ensure timely and accurate disclosure 
to them.  
 
The Corporate Governance refers to set of the transparent procedures and practices, 
enactment of legalised policies, pursuance of applicable laws, exhaustive and appropriate 
disclosure of all the relevant financial data and operational information in the best interest of 
stakeholders i.e. Shareholders, Consumers, Banks, financial institutions and employees etc. 
through which a corporation is directed, controlled or administered.  
The Board of Directors (“The Board”) is constituted as per the statutory provisions of the 
Companies Act, 1956, and Companies Act, 2013, Listing Agreement and other applicable 
provisions. The members of our board have diverse backgrounds having expertise in areas 

COMPANY’S PHILOSOPHY ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE: 
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like finance, entrepreneurship and General Management. They all have worked in senior 
positions with an extensive knowledge of the Indian Business environment. 
 
The Board reviews its strength and composition from time to time to ensure that it remains 
aligned with the statutory as well as business requirements. As per the Good Governance 
Policy, any new director is being appointed with unanimous consent from the board with the 
affirmation of the provisions of the applicable laws. Whereas the non-independent 
directors/shareholders’ representative directors are nominated by the respective 
shareholders, independent directors are selected from diverse academic, professional 
background. 

In compliance with the Listing Regulations, Directors of the Company do not serve as 
Independent Director in more than seven Listed Companies or in case he/she is serving as a 
Whole- Time Director in any Listed Company, does not hold such position in more than three 
Listed Companies. 

None of the Non-Executive Directors hold any shares in the Company. Further, the Company 
has not issued any convertible instruments hence disclosure in this respect is not applicable. 
 

As mandated by the Listing Regulations, the Independent Directors on STLL’s Board:  
 are persons of integrity and possess relevant expertise and experience, in the opinion 

of the Board of Directors; 
 are not a Promoter of the Company or its holding, subsidiary or associate Company; 
 are not related to Promoters or Directors in the Company, its holding, subsidiary or 

associate Company; 
 apart from receiving Director’s remuneration, have or had no material pecuniary 

relationship with the Company, its holding, subsidiary or associate Company, or their 
Promoters or Directors, during the two immediately preceding financial years or 
during the current financial year; 

 have no relative, who has or had pecuniary relationship or transaction with the 
Company, its holding, subsidiary or associate Company, or their Promoters, or 
Directors, amounting to two per cent or more of its gross turnover or total income or 
fifty lakh rupees or such higher amount as may be prescribed from time to time, 
whichever is lower, during the two immediately preceding financial years or during 
the current financial year;  

 neither themselves nor any of their relatives — 

Limit on the number of Directorships 

Shareholding of Non-Executive Directors 

Independent Directors 
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 hold or have held the position of a Key Managerial Personnel or are or have been 
employee of the Company or its holding, subsidiary or associate Company in any 
of the three financial years immediately preceding the Financial Year in which 
they were proposed to be appointed; 

 are or have been an employee or proprietor or a partner, in any of the three 
financial years immediately preceding the Financial Year in which they were 
proposed to be appointed, of —  
 a firm of Auditors or Company Secretaries in practice or Cost Auditors of the 

Company or its holding, subsidiary or associate Company; or 
 any legal or a consulting firm that has or had any transaction with the 

Company, its holding, subsidiary or associate Company amounting to ten per 
cent or more of the gross turnover of such firm; 

 hold together with their relatives two percent or more of the total voting power of 
the Company; or 

 is a Chief Executive or Director, by whatever name called, of any Non-Profit 
Organization that receives twenty-five percent or more of its receipts or corpus 
from the Company, any of its Promoters, Directors or its holding, subsidiary or 
associate Company or that holds two percent or more of the total voting power of 
the Company; 

 is a material supplier, service provider or customer or a lessor or lessee of the 
Company; 

 are not less than 21 years of age. 
 

The Independent Directors have confirmed that they meet the criteria of Independence laid 
down under the Companies Act, 2013 and the Listing Regulations. 
 

 
In accordance with Section 149(11) of the 
Companies Act, 2013, the current tenure 
of Independent Directors of the 
Company is for a term of 3 consecutive 
years from the date of Appointment 

upto the conclusion of AGM to be held in the Calendar Year 2020. 
 

The terms and conditions of appointment of 
Independent Directors have been disclosed 
on the website of the Company 
www.sindhutrade.com. 
 
 
The Board of Directors upon 
recommendation of Nomination and 
Remuneration Committee have laid down 
the criteria for performance evaluation of 
Board of the Company, its Committees and 

the individual Board Members, including Independent Directors. 
 
The performance evaluation of Independent Directors was done by the entire Board and in 
the evaluation the Director who was subject to evaluation did not participate. On the basis of 
performance evaluation done by the Board, it shall be determined whether to extend or 
continue their term of appointment, as and when their respective term expires. 
 
 

Maximum Tenure of Independent 
Directors 

Terms & Conditions of 
Appointment 

Performance evaluation of 
Independent Directors 
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All Independent Directors of the Company met 
virtually due to pandemic without the presence 
of Non-Independent Directors and Members of 
Management.  
 

 
 
In accordance with the Listing Regulations, 
following matters were, inter-alia, reviewed 
and discussed in the meeting: 
 
 

 Performance of Non-Independent Directors and the Board of Directors as a whole. 
 Performance of the Chairman of the Company taking into consideration the views of 

Executive and Non-Executive Directors. 
 Assess the quality, quantity and timeliness of flow of information between the 

Company Management and the Board that is necessary for the Board to effectively 
and reasonably perform their duties. 

 
The Board’s policy is to regularly have separate meetings with IDs, to update them on all 
business-related issues and new initiatives. At such meetings, the EDs and other members of 
the Management make presentations on relevant issues. 
 

 
The Company conducts Familiarization 
Programme for the Independent Directors 
to provide them an opportunity to 
familiarize with the Company, its 
Management and its operations so as to 

gain a clear understanding of their roles, rights and responsibilities and contribute 
significantly towards the growth of the Company. They have full opportunity to interact with 
Senior Management Personnel and are provided all the documents required and sought by 
them for enabling them to have a good understanding of the Company, its business model 
and various operations and the industry of which it is a part. 
 
The initiatives undertaken by the Company in this respect have been disclosed on the website 
of the Company at www.sindhutrade.com and the web link thereto is 
http://www.sindhutrade.com/2015/Familarization.pdf 
 

 
The Board has complete access to all 
information with the Company. All Board 
meetings are governed by a structured 
agenda which is backed by 

comprehensive background information. Since the year 2011-12, as a part of green initiative, 
the Company is holding and convening its Board (including Committee) meetings in 
paperless form. All agenda papers are uploaded in a web based programme for information, 
perusal and comments, etc. of the Board/ Committee Members. 
 
The information pertaining to mandatory items as specified in the Listing Regulations, 
Companies Act, 2013 and other applicable laws, along with other business issues, is regularly 
provided to the Board, as part of the agenda papers at least 1 weeks in advance of the Board 

Separate Meeting of the 
Independent Directors 

Discussions with Independent 
Directors 
 

Familiarization Programme for the 
Independent Directors 

Information Supplied to the Board 
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meetings (except for certain unpublished price sensitive information which is circulated at 
shorter notice). 
 
Post Meeting follow up system: The Company has an effective post Board meeting follow up 
procedure. Action taken report on the decisions taken in a meeting is placed at the 
immediately succeeding meeting for information of the Board 
 
The Board has established procedures to periodically review Compliance Report pertaining to 
all laws applicable to the Company as well as steps taken by the Company to rectify instances 
of non-compliance. 
 
Succession Plan: The Board of Directors has satisfied itself that plans are in place for orderly 
succession for outgoing Members of the Board of Directors and Senior Management 
Personnel. 
 

 
Sindhu Trade Links Limited has laid 
down a clear policy defining the 
structure and role of Board Members. 
The policy of the Company is to have a 
Non-Executive Chairman – presently 

Ex-Capt. Rudra Sen Sindhu, a Managing Director – presently Mr. Satya Pal Sindhu, and an 
optimum combination of Executive and Non-Executive Promoter/ Independent Directors. 
The duties of Board Members as a Director have been enumerated in Listing Regulations, 
Section 166 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Schedule IV of the said Act, the last being 
Independent Directors specific. There is a clear demarcation of responsibility and authority 
amongst the Board Members. 
 
 The Chairman: His primary role is to provide leadership to the Board in achieving 

goals of the Company in accordance with the charter approved by the Board. He is 
responsible for transforming the Company into a world-class organization that is 
dedicated to the well-being of each and every household, not only within India but 
across the globe, apart from leaving a fortunate legacy to posterity. 

 
Also, as the Chairman of the Board he is responsible for all the Board matters. He is 
responsible, inter-alia, for the working of the Board and for ensuring that all relevant 
issues are placed before the Board and that all Directors are encouraged to provide 
their expert guidance on the relevant issues raised in the meetings of the Board. He is 
also responsible for formulating the corporate strategy along with other members of 
the Board of Directors. His role, inter-alia, includes: 

 
 provide leadership to the Board & preside over all Board & General Meetings. 
 achieve goals in accordance with Company`s overall vision. 
 ensure that Board decisions are aligned with Company`s strategic policy. 
 oversee and evaluate the overall performance of Board and its Members. 
 ensure to place all relevant matters before the Board and encourage healthy 

participation by all Directors to enable them to provide their expert guidance. 
 monitor the core management team. 
 

 Managing Director’s & Executive Directors are responsible for implementation of 
corporate strategy, external contacts and other Management matters which are approved 

Roles and Responsibilities of Board 
Members 
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by the Board. They are also responsible for achieving the annual and long term business 
plans. Their role, inter-alia, includes: 

 crafting of vision and business strategies of the Company. 
 clear understanding and accomplishment of Board set goals. 
 responsible for overall performance of the Company in terms of revenues & profits 

and goodwill. 
 acts as a link between Board and Management. 
 ensure compliance with statutory provisions under multiple regulatory 

enactments. 
 
 Non-Executive Directors (including Independent Directors) play a critical role in 

balancing the functioning of the Board by providing Independent judgements on various 
issues raised in the Board meetings like formulation of business strategies, monitoring of 
performances etc. Their role, inter-alia, includes: 

 impart balance to the Board by providing independent judgement. 
 provide feedback on Company`s strategy and performance. 
 provide effective feedback and recommendations for further improvements 

 
 

The Nomination and Remuneration 
Committee in consultation with Directors 
/ others determine the appropriate 
characteristics, skills and experience for the 

Board as a whole, as well as its individual Members. The selection of Board Members is based 
on recommendations of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee. 
 
The skill profile of Independent Board Members is driven by the key performance indicators 
defined by the Board, broadly based on: 
 

 independent Corporate Governance  
 guiding strategy and enhancing shareholders’ value 
 monitoring performance, Management development & compensation 
 control & compliance 
 

 
 
The constitution of the Board is as follows: 
 
A Promoter Non-Executive Chairman Three Promoter family 
Members Four Non-Executive Independent Directors (including a 

Woman Director) constituting at least 50% of the Board The matrix below highlights the skills 
and expertise required from individuals for the office of Independent Directors of the 
Company. 
 
*As on March 31, 2020, STLL’s Board consists of 7 Members. Besides the Chairman, a Non-
Executive Promoter Director, the Board comprises of three Executive Promoter Directors, 
Three Non-Executive Independent Director (including Mrs. Promila Bhardwaj, a Woman 
Director). The composition of the Board is in conformity with the Listing Regulations 
enjoining specified combination of Executive and Non-Executive Directors with at least one 
Women Director, with not less than fifty percent of the Board comprising of Non-Executive 
Directors and at least one-half of the Board comprising of Independent Directors for a Board 
chaired by Non-Executive Promoter Director. 

Board Membership Criteria 

Composition 
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The Board has access to the following information/records: 
- Annual operating plans and budgets; 
- Quarterly results; 
- Minutes of the meetings of the Audit Committee, Nomination And Remuneration 

Committee , Stakeholders Relationship Committee , Risk Management Committee, 
Corporate Social Responsibility Committee; Finance Committee. 

 
Any other items/events of materially important nature 
 
During the financial year 2019-20, Five (05) Board Meetings were held on 29.05.2019, 
12.08.2019, 02.09.2019, 12.11.2019 & 13.02.2020. 
 
 

  
Details of remuneration paid to Directors for 
the Financial Year 2019-2020 is as under: 
 

Name of the Director Sitting Fees Salary & 
Perquisites 

Commission Total 

Satya Pal Sindhu - 120,00,000/- - 120,00,000/- 
Vir Sen Sindhu - - - - 
Rudra Sen Sindhu - - - - 
Vrit Pal Sindhu - - - - 
Ram Niwas Hooda 1,65,000/- - - 1,65,000/- 
Kuldip Singh Sindhu 1,65,000/- - - 1,65,000/- 
Samay Ram 75,000/- - - 75,000/- 
Promila Bhardwaj 75,000/- - - 75,000/- 
 
During the Financial Year 2019-20, the Company did not advance any loan to any of its 
Directors. 

 
The remuneration paid to Executive Directors of the 
Company is approved by the Board of Directors on the 
recommendations of the Nomination and 
Remuneration Committee. The Company’s 

remuneration strategy is market-driven and aims at attracting and retaining high calibre 
talent. The strategy is in consonance with the existing industry practice and is directed 
towards rewarding performance, based on review of achievements, on a periodical basis. 
 
Non-Executive Directors (including Independent Directors) 
 
Besides sitting fees, the Non-Executive Directors are also entitled to commission out of the 
profits of the Company, at a rate not exceeding 1% of the net profits per annum of the 
Company, calculated in accordance with the provisions of Sections 196, 197 and 198 of the 
Companies Act, 2013, as approved by the Board and within the overall limits prescribed by 
the Companies Act, 2013. 
 
Executive Directors 
 
Remuneration of the Executive Directors consists of a fixed component and a variable 
performance incentive. The Nomination and Remuneration Committee makes annual 

Remuneration paid to Directors 
 

Remuneration Policy 
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appraisal of the performance of the Executive Directors based on a detailed performance 
evaluation, and recommends the compensation payable to them, within the parameters 
approved by the shareholders, to the Board for their approval Board Meetings: 
 
In accordance with the relevant provisions of Companies Act, 2013 and the Listing 
Regulations, the following Policies/ Framework have been adopted by the Board upon 
recommendation of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee: 
 

1. Remuneration Policy relating to remuneration of Directors, Key Managerial Personnel 
and other employees. 

2. Framework for evaluation of the Board, its Committees and individual Board 
Members including Independent Directors. 

3. Policy on appointment of Board Members. The Remuneration Policy and the 
evaluation criteria have been disclosed in the Director’s Report which forms part of 
the Annual Report. 

 
Commitment to ethical professional conduct is a must 
for every employee, including Board Members and 
Senior Management Personnel of Sindhu Group. The 
Code is intended to serve as a basis for ethical 
decision-making in conduct of professional work. The 

Code of Conduct enjoins that each individual in the organization must know and respect 
existing laws, accept and provide appropriate professional views, and be upright in his 
conduct and observe corporate discipline. The duties of Directors including duties as an 
Independent Director as laid down in the Companies Act, 2013 also forms part of the Code of 
Conduct. 
 
The Code of Conduct is available on the website of the Company www.sindhutrade.com. All 
Board Members and Senior Management personnel affirm compliances with the Code of 
Conduct annually. The board meets on a regular basis for evaluating the performance and for 
the formulation and reinforcement of the comprehensive and strategic policies leading to the 
progressive advancement and expansion in the business areas of the Company. 
 
Commitment to ethical professional conduct is a must for every employee, including Board 
Members and Senior Management Personnel of Sindhu Group. The Code is intended to serve 
as a basis for ethical decision-making in conduct of professional work. The Code of Conduct 
enjoins that each individual in the organization must know and respect existing laws, accept 
and provide appropriate professional views, and be upright in his conduct and observe 
corporate discipline. The duties of Directors including duties as an Independent Director as 
laid down in the Companies Act, 2013 also forms part of the Code of Conduct. 
 
The Code of Conduct is available on the website of the Company www.sindhutrade.com. All 
Board Members and Senior Management personnel affirm compliances with the Code of 
Conduct annually. A declaration signed by the Chief Executive Officer (CEO) to this effect is 
placed at the end of this report 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

CODE OF CONDUCT 
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The Summarized details of the board of directors with their attendance in the board 
meetings are provided as below: 
 
Name  Din No. Category Details of Directorship in 

companies, membership and 
chairmanship in committees of 
companies 

Number 
of board 
meetings 
attended 

Presence 
in Last 
AGM i.e. 
30.09.2019 

 
Director 

 
Member  
 
 

 
Chairman 
 

Mr.  Rudra 
Sen Sindhu 

00006999 Non- 
Independent- 
Non-
Executive 
Director 

13 07 03 05 Yes 

Mr. Vir Sen 
Sindhu 

00034773 Non 
Independent- 
Executive 
Director 

14 04 0 03 Yes 

Mr. Vrit Pal 
Sindhu 

00033480 Non 
Independent- 
Executive 
Director 

16 01 0 01 Yes 

Mr. Satya 
Pal Sindhu 

00218355 Non 
Independent- 
Executive 
Director 

18 01 0 05 Yes 

Mr. Ram 
Niwas 
Hooda 

05137074 Independent  
– Non 
Executive 
Director 

02 02 02 05 Yes 

Mr. Kuldip 
Singh 
Sindhu 

00062063 Independent  
– Non 
Executive 
Director 

05 02 0 05 No 

Mr. Samay 
Ram 

00663816 Independent  
– Non 
Executive 
Director 

01 0 0 04 No 

Mrs. 
Promila 
Bhardwaj 

06428534 Independent  
– Non 
Executive 
Director 

05 0 0 05 No 

 
 Membership and Chairmanship in Committees represent only Audit Committeee and 

shareholders/ Investors’ Grievance Committee. 
Mr. Satya Pal Sindhu acts as the Chairman at the Annual General Meeting held during the 
period under review. 
 
In compliance with the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and 
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (“SEBI (LOADR), Regulations, 2015”) and 
Regulations of other Statutory Authorities, the Committees were constituted by the 
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COMMITTEES TO THE BOARD 

Company. Each Committee of the Board is guided by its Charter, which defines the scope, 
powers and composition of the Committee. 

 
The committees of the board as on 
31st March, 2020 are: 
 

1. Audit Committee. 
2. Nomination and Remuneration Committee. 
3. Stakeholders Relationship Committee.  
4. Corporate Social Responsibility Committee. 
5. Risk Management Committee. 
6. Finance Committee 

 
The composition of various Committees of the Board of Directors is available on the website 
of the Company at www.sindhutrade.com and web-link for the same is 
http://www.sindhutrade.com/management.html 
 
The Board is responsible for constituting, assigning, co-opting and fixing the terms of 
reference of various Committees. Details on the role and composition of these Committees, 
including the number of meetings held during the Financial Year and the related attendance 
are provided below. 
 

 
The Audit Committee set up by the board is 
as per the provisions of the Regulation 18 of 
SEBI (LOADR) Regulations, 2015 and as per 
Section 177 of the Companies Act 2013. The 

Audit Committee is developed for the reviewing of the following information: 
 

i. The recommendation for appointment , remuneration and terms of appointment of 
auditors of the Company; 

ii. Review and monitor the auditor’s independence and performance , and effectiveness 
of the audit process; 

iii. Examination of the financial statement and the auditor’s report thereon; 
iv. Scrutiny of inter- corporate loans and investments ; 
v. Valuation of undertaking or asset of the company, wherever it is necessary; 

vi. Approval of payment to statutory auditors for any other services rendered by the 
statutory auditors. 

vii. Reviewing, with the management, the annual financial statements before submission 
to the board for approval, with particular reference to: 
a) Matters required to be included in the Director’s Responsibility Statement to be 

included in the Board’s Report in terms of clause (2AA) of section 217 of the 
Companies Act, 1956. 

b) Changes, if any, in accounting policies and practices and reasons for the same. 
c) Major accounting entries involving estimates based on the exercise of judgment by 

management. 
d) Significant adjustments made in the financial statements arising out of audit 

findings. 
e) Compliance with listing and other legal requirements relating to financial 

statements. 
f) Disclosure of any related party transactions. 
g) Qualifications in the draft audit report. 

 

AUDIT COMMITTEE 



 

_________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
Sindhu Trade Links Limited 28t Annual Report 

 
 

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT 2019-20 
	

viii. Reviewing, with the management, the quarterly financial statements before 
submission to the board for approval; 

ix. Reviewing, with the management, the statement of uses / application of funds raised 
through an issue (public issue, rights issue, preferential issue, etc.), the statement of 
funds utilized for purposes other than those stated in the offer 
document/prospectus/notice and the report submitted by the monitoring agency 
monitoring the utilisation of proceeds of a public or rights issue, and making 
appropriate recommendations to the Board to take up steps in this matter. 

x. Approval or any subsequent modification of transactions of the Company with related 
parties; 

xi. Evaluation of internal financial controls and risk management systems; 
xii.  Reviewing, with the management, performance of statutory and internal auditors, 

and adequacy of the internal control systems; 
xiii. Reviewing the adequacy of internal audit function, if any, including the structure of 

the internal audit department, staffing and seniority of the official heading the 
department, reporting structure coverage and frequency of internal audit; 

xiv. Discussion with internal auditors any significant findings and follow up there on; 
xv. Reviewing the findings of any internal investigations by the internal auditors into 

matters where there is suspected fraud or irregularity or a failure of internal control 
systems of a material nature and reporting the matter to the board; 

xvi. Discussion with statutory auditors before the audit commences, about the nature and 
scope of audit as well as post-audit discussion to ascertain any area of concern; 

xvii. To look into the reasons for substantial defaults in the payment to the depositors, 
debenture holders, shareholders (in case of non payment of declared dividends) and 
creditors; 

xviii. Approval of appointment of CFO (i.e., the whole-time Finance Director or any other 
person  heading the  finance  function  or  discharging that  function) after  assessing 
the qualifications, experience & background, etc. of the candidate; 

xix. monitoring the end use of funds raised through public offers and related matter; 
xx. Any other function as may be mentioned in the terms of reference of Audit 

Committee. 
 
The Audit Committee invites such executives, as it considers appropriate (particularly the 
head of the Finance function), representatives of the statutory auditors and representatives of 
the internal auditors to be present at its meetings. The Company Secretary acts as the 
secretary to the Audit Committee.  
 
All Members of the Audit Committee have accounting and financial management expertise. 
The Chairman of the Committee attended the AGM held on September 29, 2018 to answer the 
shareholders` queries.  
 
The role of Audit Committee, the powers exercised by it pursuant to the terms of reference, 
and the information reviewed by it are in accordance with the requirements as specified in 
the Listing Regulations, Companies Act, 2013 and other applicable laws, if any. Apart from 
the above, the Audit Committee also exercises the role and powers entrusted upon it by the 
Board of Directors from time to time. 
 
During the year under review, the Committee discussed, review and executed all the 
responsibilities in a prudent manner as specified in the Audit Committee’s Charter. 
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The details of meetings attended by its members are given below: 
 
Name Category Designation in 

Committee 
Number of meetings 
during the year 2019-
20 
Held Attended 

Mr. Ram Niwas 
Hooda 

Independent, Non-
Executive  

Chairman 5 5 

Mr. Kuldip Singh 
Sindhu 

Independent, Non-
Executive 

Member 5 5 

Mr. Satya Pal 
Sindhu 

Non-Independent, 
Executive 

Member 4 4 

 
xxi. Five Audit Committee meetings were held during the year i.e. 29.05.2019, 12.08.2019, 

02.09.2019, 12.11.2019, 13.02.2020. 
 

xxii. The necessary quorum was present at the meeting. 
 
Audit Committee Report for the year ended March 31, 2020 
 

To the Board of Directors of Sindhu Trade Links Limited: 
 

The Committee comprises of two Non-Executive Independent Directors and one Executive 
Non Independent Director. The Management is responsible for the Company’s internal 
financial controls and financial reporting process. The Independent Auditors are responsible 
for performing an Independent audit of the Company’s financial statements in accordance 
with the IND - AS and for issuing a report thereon. The Committee is responsible for 
overseeing the processes related to financial reporting and information dissemination. 
 

In this regard, the Committee discussed with the Company’s Statutory Auditors the overall 
scope for their audit. The Committee also discussed the result of examinations made by 
Internal Auditors, their evaluation of the Company’s internal financial controls and the 
overall quality of financial reporting. The Management also presented to the Committee the 
Company’s financial statements and also represented that the Company’s financial 
statements had been drawn in accordance with the IND - AS. 
 

Based on its review and discussions conducted with the Management and the Independent 
Auditors, the Audit Committee believes that the Company’s financial statements are 
presented in conformity with IND - AS in all material aspects. The Committee has also 
reviewed Statement of contingent liabilities, management discussion and analysis, financial 
statements of subsidiary companies, investments made by subsidiary companies, Directors’ 
responsibility statement, financial results and audit/ limited review report thereon, financial 
statements and draft Auditors’ report, approval (including modification, if any) and review of 
Related Party Transactions and scrutinized inter corporate loans of the Company. The Risk 
assessment and minimization procedures were also reviewed. During the year, the 
Committee also approved amendments in the Policy on Related Party Transactions, 
evaluated the Internal Financial Control & Risk Management System of the Company. No 
Complaints were received under Whistle-Blower Policy/ Vigil Mechanism monitored by the 
Committee. The Committee affirms that in compliance with the Whistle-Blower Policy/ Vigil 
Mechanism no personnel had been denied access to the Audit Committee. The Committee 
has appointed M/s Anand Singh & Associates, Chartered Accountants, New Delhi as Internal 
Auditors of the Company for the period from 01st April, 2019 to 31st March, 2020 and 
discussed and approved their audit plan. The Committee is also recommended to the Board 
the re-appointment of M/s Divyank Khullar & Associates, Chartered Accountants, as 
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Statutory Auditors of the Company, to carry out audit of the accounts of the Company for the 
Financial Year 2019-20. 
 

In conclusion, the Committee is sufficiently satisfied that it has complied with the 
responsibilities as outlined in the Audit Committee’s responsibility statement. 
, 
 

SD/- 
Ram Niwas Hooda 
Chairman                                                                                                                    Place: New Delhi 
Audit Committee                                                                                                    Date: Dec 04, 2020 
 

 
The Nomination and Remuneration 
Committee (“NRC”) was incorporated as per 
the Regulation 19 of the SEBI (LOADR) 
Regulations, 2015 and as per the applicable 
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013. It 
was embodied with the 3 Non- Executive 

Directors having an Independent Chairman. The Committee is focused on the remuneration 
package of all the Executive Directors inclusive of salary and other perquisites, employment 
agreements, compensation or arrangements. The functions are: 
 

i. Formulation of the criteria for determining qualifications, positive attributes and 
independence of a Director and recommend to the board a policy, relating to the 
remuneration of the Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and other employees; 

ii. Evaluation of the Director’s performance and the appointment and removal of the 
Directors and senior management as per the criteria laid down; 

iii. To recommend/ review the remuneration of the Managing Director/ Whole-Time 
Director based on their performance and defined assessment criteria; 

iv. To perform such other functions as may be considered appropriate. 
 

 
The composition of the NRC and the details of meetings attended by its members are given 
below: 
 
Name Category Designation in

Committee 
Number  of meetings
during  the year 2018-19 

Held Attended 

Mr. Kuldip Singh 
Sindhu 

Independent, Non-
Executive 

 

Chairman 02 02 

Mr. Ram Niwas 
Hooda 

Independent, Non-
Executive 

Member 02 02 

Mr. Samay Ram* Independent, Non-
Executive 

 

Member 01 01 

Mr. Vrit Pal Sindhu Non Executive 
Director 

Member 01 01 

*Mr. Samay Ram Resigned on 12th January, 2020 
Two meeting of the NRC were held during the year on 02.09.2019 & 13.02.2020. The necessary 
quorum was present at the meeting. 

NOMINATION & 
REMUNERATION 
COMMITTEE 
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v. The Company does not have any Employee Stock Option Scheme. 

 
Board Evaluation 
 
Pursuant to the provisions of the Companies Act ,2013 and SEBI (LOADR), Regulations, 2015, 
the Board has carried out an annual evaluation of its own performance, performance of the 
Directors individually as well as the evaluation of the working of its Committees. 
 
The following process was adopted for Board Evaluation: 
 
Each Director completed the self- evaluation form. The feedback was sought from the director 
regarding their perspective about the performance of the board in fulfilling its responsibilities 
for the growth of the company, the provisions relating to the structure and composition of the 
board, establishment and responsibilities of the committees, effectiveness of Board and 
committee processes, quality of relationship between the Board and the Management and 
efficacy of communication with external stakeholders. Feedback was also taken from every 
director on his assessment of the performance of each of the other Directors. 
 
The NRC after receiving the feedback from the directors then discussed it with the Chairman 
of the board and make representation to the independent directors. 
The Board Chairman completed the self- evaluation form and the same was reviewed and 
discussed in the meeting of the independent directors.  
 
The Board Chairman reviewed the evaluation of the independent directors based on the self – 
evaluation form received by them. It was also presented to the Board for their consideration 
and evaluation. 
 
Every statutorily mandated committee of the Board conducted a self-assessment of its 
performance and these assessments were presented to the Board for consideration. Areas on 
which the Committees of the Board were assessed included degree of fulfilment of key 
responsibilities, adequacy of Committee composition and effectiveness of meetings. 
 
Feedback was provided to the Directors, as appropriate. Significant highlights, learning and 
action points arising out of the evaluation were presented to the Board. 
 
 
CRITERIA FOR SELECTION OF DIRECTORS AND THEIR REMUNERATION: 
 
In terms of the provisions of Section 178(3) of the Act and prescribed regulations of SEBI 
(LOADR) Regulations, 2015 the NRC is responsible for formulating the criteria for 
determining qualification, positive attributes and independence of a Director. The NRC is 
also responsible for recommending to the Board the guidelines relating to the remuneration 
of the Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and other employees.  
 
a) Selection criteria of Directors 

The Company shall consider the following aspects while appointing a person as a Director on 
the Board of the Company: 
 
Skill and Competence: the board should have a combination of educational qualifications, 
appropriate skills and experience in one or more fields of finance, law, management, sales, 
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marketing, administration, public administrative services, research, corporate governance, 
technical operations or any other discipline related to the Company’s business. 

 
Age Limit: They should have completed the age of twenty-one (21) years and should not 
have attained the age of seventy (70) years. 
 
Conflict of Interest: They should not hold Directorship which would create conflict of 
interest with the Company. 
 
Directorship: The number of companies in which the candidate holds Directorship should 
not exceed the number prescribed under the Act or under the SEBI (LOADR) Regulations, 
2015. 
 
Independence: The candidate proposed to be appointed as an Independent Director, should 
not have any direct or indirect material pecuniary relationship with the Company and must 
satisfy the requirements imposed under the Act or under the SEBI (LOADR) Regulations, 
2015. 
 
The additional consideration will be given to the following factors: 
 

i. The approvals of the Board and/or shareholders of the Company in accordance with 
the Act ; and 

ii. The directors should have sufficient time to deal with the affairs of the company. 
iii. The directors should not be involved in any unethical behaviour in their private or 

professional lives. 
iv. The directors should have an arm’s length relationship amongst them, employees and 

also with the employees, shareholders and  directors of the subsidiaries , associates, 
joint ventures for whom the relationship with these entities are material. 

 
b) Selection Criteria for Senior Management 
 
The Senior Management for the purpose of this policy shall mean employees hired at the level 
of Divisional Heads and Corporate Functional Heads or equivalent positions. The key 
principles will be the same as defined in the selection criteria of the Directors and as may be 
applicable. 
 
The NRC guidelines should also provide that the candidate should have appropriate 
qualifications, skills and experience for discharging the role. The qualifications, skills and 
experience of each such position shall be defined in the job description. 
 

Remuneration for Directors, KMP and other Employees 
 
The criteria for determining the remuneration of Directors, KMP and other employees shall 
be based on the following set standards by the Company: 
 
a) The directors may be paid sitting fees for attending the Board Meeting or any Committee 

Meeting. 
b) The basis for the payment of the sitting fees will be as per the provisions of the law and 

also as approved by the board or NRC. 
c) The quantum of sitting fees may be reviewed by the board periodically, if required. 
d) The remuneration will be composition of the sustainable growth of the Directors and 

employees and sufficient to attract, retain and motivate the Directors and employees of 
the Company and encourage behaviour that is aligned to value creation. 
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e) Basic salary alongwith the performance based incentives are provided to all the 
employees in line with their skill and experience. 

f) In addition to the basic/fixed salary and/or benefit, perquisites and allowances, if any, 
the Managing Director/ Executive Directors remuneration will be calculated as per the 
net profits of the company in a financial year as may be determined by the board, subject 
to the overall limits specified in section 197 read with schedule V of The Companies Act, 
2013. The amount payable to MD/ED would be based on the performance evaluated by 
the board or by NRC and approved by the board. 

g) Remuneration paid, if any, will be based on the industry benchmarks and the same shall 
be decided by the board. 

 
The NRC is responsible for the recommendation of the remuneration policy to the board. The 
board is responsible for approving and overseeing implementation of the remuneration 
policy. 
 
Mr. Satya Pal Sindhu, Managing Director of the Company is being paid remuneration as per 
the above standards set out by the NRC during the year 2018-19: 
 

(` In lacs) 
Name of 
Director 

Designation Salary Perquisites and 
allowances 

Total 

Mr. Satya Pal 
Sindhu 

Managing 
Director 

120 - 120 

 
Nomination and Remuneration Committee Report for the year ended March 31, 2020 
 
To the Board of Directors of Sindhu Trade Links Limited, The Nomination and Remuneration 
Committee comprises of three Independent Non-Executive Directors. The main responsibility 
of the Committee is to incentivize and reward Executive performance that will lead to long-
term enhancement of shareholder performance.  
 
Further the Committee is also responsible for formulating policies as to remuneration, 
performance evaluation, Board diversity, etc. in line with Companies Act, 2013 and SEBI 
Listing Regulations. 
 
The Committee conducted the performance evaluation of Directors for the Financial Year 
2019-20. The Committee was also provided information on compensation policies for 
employees and the information to decide on grant of options to various employees.  
 
 
Sd/- 
Kuldip Singh Sindhu 
Chairman                                                                                                                    Place: New Delhi 
Nomination and Remuneration Committee                                                       Date: Dec 04, 2020 
                                                                               

 
As per the Regulation 20 of the SEBI 
(LOADR) Regulations, 2015 and as per 
the provisions of the Companies Act, 
2013 the company has constituted the 
“Stakeholders Relationship 

Committee”. The Committee looks into the matters of complaints by the investors and 
shareholders relating to the non-receipt of dividend warrants, annual reports, share transfers 

STAKEHOLDER RELATIONSHIP 
COMMITTEE 
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/ transmission in time, issue of duplicate share certificate, change of address etc. and the 
redressal of these complaints. The Committee comprises of the following members: 
 
The Stakeholders Relationship Committee met one times during the year as following dates: 
 
Name Category Designation in

Committee 
Number  of meetings
during  the year 2019-20 
Held Attended 

Mr. Ram Niwas 
Hooda 

Independent, Non-
Executive 

Member/Chairman  1 1 

Mr. Vrit pal Sindhu Non-Independent, 
Executive 

Member 1 1 

Mr. Kuldip Singh 
Sindhu 

Independent, Non
Executive 

Member 1 1 

 
One meeting of the Stakeholder Relationship Committee was held during the year on 
13.02.2020.The necessary quorum was present at the meetings. 
 
Ms. Suchi Gupta, Company Secretary acts as a Compliance officer for the meeting.  
 

The Company has its Registrar and Share Transfer Agent to address all the complaints and 
queries relating to the investor grievances. There were no complaints received from the 
stakeholders during the year. 
 
Details of status of queries/ complaint and share transfer during the year: 
 
Sl. No. Particulars 

 
Status/ No. 

1 Number of queries/ complaints received from shareholders/ 
investors from 1st  April, 2018 to 31st March, 2019 regarding non-
receipt of dividend/ interest warrant, non-receipt of shares sent for 
transfer etc.  

NIL 

2 Complaints letters from Statutory Bodies: 
SEBI 
STOCK EXCHANGES 
NSDL/ CDSL 

NIL 
 

3 Number of queries / complaint not attended N.A. 
4 Number of request of share transfer/ transmission received during 

the year  
NIL 

5 Number of share transfer cases done during the year NIL 
6 Number of share transfer pending during the year NIL 
 

 
As per the provisions of the Companies 
Act, 2013, the Company has constituted 
the “Corporate Social Responsibility 
Committee”.  

 
The role of Corporate Social Responsibility Committee is as follows:  
 

i. formulating and recommending to the Board Corporate Social Responsibility Policy 
and the activities to be undertaken by the Company;  

CSR COMMITTEE 
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ii. recommending the amount of expenditure to be incurred on the activities undertaken;  
iii. reviewing the performance of the Company in the area of Corporate Social 

Responsibility;  
iv. providing external and independent oversight and guidance on the environmental 

and social impact of how the Company conducts its business;  
v. Monitoring Corporate Social Responsibility Policy of the Company from time to time.  

 
 
The composition of the Committee: 
 
Name Category Designation in

Committee 
Number  of meetings
during  the year 2019-20 
Held Attended 

Mr. Vritpal Sindhu Non-Independent, 
Executive 

Chairman 1 1 

Mr. Ram Niwas 
Hooda 

Independent, Non-
Executive 

Member 1 1 

Mr. Samay Ram* Independent, Non-
Executive 

Member 1 1 

 
* Mr. Samay Ram Resigned on 12th January, 2020 
 
One meeting of the Corporate Social Responsibility Committee was held during the year on 
13.02.2020 necessary quorum was present at the meeting. 
 

 
As per the Regulation 21 of the SEBI 
(LOADR) Regulation, 2015, the 
Company has constituted a Risk 
Management Committee. 
 

The composition, procedures, powers 
and role/functions of the Risk Management Committee constituted by the Company is to 
comply with the requirements of Regulation 21 of the SEBI (LOADR) Regulation, 2015. The 
Risk Management Committee may comprise of a mix of senior executives of the Company 
and the Directors, but shall have a majority of Directors as its members. Further, the chairman 
of the Risk Management Committee shall be a member of the board of directors. 
 

The composition of the Committee: 
 
Name Category Designation in

Committee 

Mr. Vrit Pal Sindhu Non- Independent- Executive  Chairman 

Mr. Kuldip Singh Sindhu Independent –Non Executive  Member 

Mr. Ram Niwas Hooda Independent –Non Executive Member 

 
 

Ms. Suchi Gupta, Company Secretary acts as a Compliance officer for the meeting. 
 

RISK MANAGEMENT 
COMMITTEE 



 

_________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
Sindhu Trade Links Limited 28t Annual Report 

 
 

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT 2019-20 
	

 
As per the provisions of Section 179 of the 
Companies Act, 2013, the Company has 
constituted the “Finance Committee” 

 
The role of Finance Committee is as follows: 

 To borrow funds from Banks, Institutions, Companies, Corporations, societies, firms, 
person or persons on behalf of and for the Company. 

 To enter into, carry out, rescind or vary all or any financial arrangement with Banks, 
Institutions, companies, corporations, societies, firms, person or persons on behalf of 
and for the Company 

 To invest Company’s funds in the securities of other bodies corporate including the 
Company’s subsidiaries subject to the maximum amount calculated as per the limits 
prescribed in Section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 

 To make loans, give guarantees and provide securities to, or in relation to loans 
availed by, other bodies corporate including the Company’s subsidiaries, subject to 
the maximum amount calculated as per the limits prescribed in Section 186 of the 
Companies Act, 2013. 
 

Name Category Designation in
Committee 

Number  of meetings
during  the year 2019-20 
Held Attended 

Mr. Rudra Sen 
Sindhu 

Non-Independent, 
Non-Executive 

Chairman  05 05 

Mr. Vir Sen Sindhu Non-Independent, 
Executive 

Member 05 05 

Mr. Satya Pal 
Sindhu 

Non-Independent, 
Executive 

Member 05 05 

 
Five (05) meetings of the Finance Committee were held during the year on 11.06.2019, 
25.06.2019, 25.09.2019, 26.09.2019, 08.11.2019 necessary quorum was present at the meeting 
 

Regulation 16(C) of Chapter IV of SEBI 
(LOADR) Regulation, 2015 defines a 
‘Material Non-Listed Indian Subsidiary’ 
shall mean a subsidiary, whose income or 
net worth exceeds twenty percent of the 

consolidated income or net worth respectively, of the listed entity and its subsidiaries in the 
immediately preceding accounting year.  
 

The details of the said policy is uploaded on the website of the Company i.e. 
www.sindhutrade.com 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

FINANCE COMMITTEE 

SUBSIDIARY COMPANY 
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Particulars of last three Annual General Meetings of the company: 

 

The following table summarises the details of special resolution passed or not during the last 
three years: 
 

SL. 
No. 

Particulars Status 
 

1. Whether any special resolutions were 
passed  at the last three AGM  

Yes 
 

2. 
 

Whether any special resolution passed last 
year through postal ballot- details of voting 
pattern 

Yes There was one postal ballot during 
the financial year 2017-18, the details of 
which are provided below.* 

5.  Special resolution is proposed to be 
conducted through postal ballot 

The company doesn’t foresee any 
requirement of postal ballot in near 
future. 

*Details of Postal ballots 
An extra ordinary general meeting was held on 29.06.2018 to transact the following business: 
Power to make Inter- Corporate loan (s)/ provide Security (ies) or give guarantee(s) upto 
Rs. 2500 Crores 

 
 
 
 
 

Year Date Time Location 
 

2019 30th September, 
2019 

10.15 A.M. Farm House of M/s Kapil Construction Private 
Limited, Kishangarh - Mehrauli Road, Near Maa 
Anandmai Ashram, New Delhi – 110057 

2018 29th September, 
2019 

10.15.A.M. Farm House of M/s Kapil Construction Private 
Limited, Kishangarh - Mehrauli Road, Near Maa 
Anandmai Ashram, New Delhi – 110057 

2017 28th September, 
2017 

10.30.A.M. Farm House of M/s Kapil Construction Private 
Limited, Kishangarh - Mehrauli Road, Near Maa 
Anandmai Ashram, New Delhi – 110057 

a) Half Yearly report sent to each household 
of shareholders 

No, the results were published by the 
Company in National and regional 
newspapers in English and Hindi. 

b) Quarterly results 
 

published in the following newspapers: 
The Financial Express -English, and  
Dainik Haribhoomi - Vernacular 
language        (Hindi) 

 
c) 

Whether Management Discussion and 
Analysis Report a part of Annual Report 

Yes 

MEANS OF COMMUNICATION WITH THE INVESTOR / 
SHAREHOLDERS 
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There is continuous dissemination of all the 
important changes underwent in the 
Company through timely disposal of 
resolutions and documentary evidences to 

the stock exchanges in the past. The website of the Company is www.sindhutrade.com. 
 
 

FINANCIAL YEAR 2020-21 
1 First Quarter results Within 45 days from the close of each quarter 
2 Second  Quarter results Within 45 days from the close of each quarter 
3 Third Quarter results Within 45 days from the close of each quarter 
4 Fourth Quarter results Within 60 days from the close of each quarter 
 

 
 
 
 
 

 Date   31st day of December, 2020 
 Time   11:00 A.M. 
 Venue                          Deemed Venue – Registered Office of the Company  
                                          

 
Friday, 25th December, 2020 to Thursday, 31st December, 2020, (both days inclusive). 
The company is listed on the below mentioned Stock Exchanges: 
 

Name of Stock Exchange Bombay  Stock Exchange Limited 
Security Id: SINDHUTRAD 
Security Code: 532029  

Address of Stock 
Exchange 

Floor 25, Phiroze Zee Bhoy Towers, Dalal Street, Mumbai-400001 

Listed Capital As on date, the paid- up share capital of the Company is Rs, 
51,39,76,260 divided into 5,13,97,626 equity shares (voting rights) 
of Rs. 10/- each. 

 
The shares of the Company listed on the Stock exchange w.e.f. 26th September, 1996. 
 
The Company has paid the Listing fees for the year 2019-20 of all the stock exchanges in 
which it is listed.  
 

WEBSITE OF THE COMPANY 

ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING 

Financial Calendar (tentative) 

BOOK CLOSURE 

LISTING DETAILS 
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Market Price data (Highs and Lows) during the financial year: During the year under report, 
trading in the securities was commenced in Bombay Stock Exchange Limited in which 
Company is listed. 
 

The Company's Shares are traded on BSE 
Limited compulsorily in the 
dematerialized form. However, all 
requests received for transfer of shares 
for off market transaction in physical 

form furnishing with a copy of PAN card of the transferee(s) in compliance with the SEBI 
circular in that behalf are processed by the Registrar and Transfer Agents and are approved 
by Stakeholders Relationship Committee. The Company registers the transfers in the name of 
transferee within a period of 30 days from date of receipt of such request for transfer of 
shares, if documents are complete in all respect and the Company proceeds all requests for 
transmission of shares held in dematerialized mode and physical mode within seven days 
and twenty one days respectively, after receipt of the specified documents. 
 
Request for share transfer / transmission is attended in-house at its Corporate Office as well 
as at its RTA office at: 
 

Corporate office of the Company:    RTA’s Office: 
 

16A, 3rd Floor, Najafgarh Road,                Indus Portfolio Private Limited 
Moti Nagar, New Delhi. G-65, Bali Nagar, New Delhi. 
Tel. No. 011-47634400                                                      Tel No: 011- 47671200, 47671214 
Fax.No. 011-47634423                                              Fax No: 011-47671222, 47671233 
                                                                               
Outstanding GDR/Warrants/Convertible Instruments  
 

The Company has no outstanding GDR/Warrants/Convertible Instruments. 

No. of Shares 
(in `) 

Share 
holders 

% to Total 
Shareholders 

Shares 
Held 

% to total share 
capital 

Upto 500 421 66.83 95885 0.19 
501-1000 72 11.42 53566 0.10 

1001-5000 33 5.24 70189 0.14 

5001-10000 10 1.59 74500 0.14 

10001-20000 19 3.02 266200 0.52 

20001-30000 13 2.06 330860 0.64 

30001-40000 2 0.32 77200 0.15 

40001-50000 1 0.16 45300 0.09 

50001-100000 4 0.63 281700 0.55 

Above 100000 55 8.73 50102226 97.48 

TOTAL 630 100.00 51397626 100.00 

 
 
 
 

Share Transfer system 
 

DISTRIBUTION OF SHAREHOLDING AS ON 31ST MARCH 2019 
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SHAREHOLDING DETAILS AS ON 31ST MARCH 2020 
 
                                Category No of shares 

held 
Percentage of 
Shareholding 

Promoters 38532196 74.97 
Institutional Investors NIL  
Mutual Funds and UTI NIL  
Banks, Financial institutions, Insurance 
Companies 
(Central/State Govt. Institutions/ Non-Govt. 
Institutions) 

NIL  

FIIs NIL  
Private Corporate Bodies 5860960 11.41 
Indian Public 7004470 13.62 
NRIs NIL  
Clearing House NIL  
Clearing Member NIL  
                         TOTAL 51397626 100 
 
TOP TEN SHAREHOLDERS AS ON 31ST MARCH, 2020 
 
Sr. 
no.   

Folio no.    Name Shares                 %  

1. 004047 Manak Vanijaya Pvt Ltd. 1804900 3.51 
2. 004048 Meghdoot Vanijya  Private Limited 1776360 3.46 
3. 004049 Fine Grow Buildcon Private Limited 1154700 2.25 
4. 004050 Good Worth Infracon Private  Limited 1125000 2.19 
5. 004084 Vaishali 250000 0.49 
6. 004009 Angoori Devi 238900 0.46 
7. 004044 Sanjay Singh 234260 0.46 
8. 004051 Manju Dhaka 228280 0.44 
9. 004052 Shiksha Dhaka 225310 0.44 
10. 004038 Preeti Malik 225100 0.44 
  TOTAL 7262810  
 

 
The Company has made all the mandatory 
and non- mandatory disclosures at large for 
the vibrant corporate sector growth, as well 
as inclusive growth of the economy: 

   
i. Disclosure of Significant Related Party Transactions 

 
Except as disclosed in the Annual Report of the Company for the year ending on 31.03.2020, 
the company has not entered into materially significant related party transactions that may 
have potential conflict with the interests of Company at large. 
 
 
 
 
 

DISCLOSURES 



 

_________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
Sindhu Trade Links Limited 28t Annual Report 

 
 

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT 2019-20 
	

 
ii. Details of non-compliance 

 
There has not been any major non-compliance by the Company, or the imposition of the 
penalties on the Company by the Stock Exchanges, or the Securities and Exchange Board of 
India or any other statutory body/ authority, on any matter related to capital markets during 
the last three years except the following: 
 
a) As per the BSE Notice dated June 16, 2017, due to late submission of Clause 41 of the 

Listing Agreement , the company has paid the penalty of Rs. 11500/-. 
b) As per the BSE Notice dated June 15, 2018, due to late submission of Clause 41 of the 

Listing Agreement, the Company has paid the penalty of Rs. 7,00,897/- 
 

iii. Whistle Blower Policy: 
 
To ensure the innocuous and congenial working environment, Company has adopted the 
Whistle Blower Policy. During the year, no case of fraud, unethical behaviour and violation of 
Company’s Code of Conduct was reported. 
 

iv. Code of Conduct:  
 
The Code reflects the Company’s commitment to principles of integrity, transparency and 
fairness. The Code is applicable to all the board members and senior management of the 
Company. It truly represents the Company’s values and its perseverance for the attainment of 
the preeminent objectives with Standard Code of Conduct. The code of conduct can be 
accessed at the website of the company i.e. www.sindhutrade.com. 
 

v. Audit Qualifications: 
 

There are no qualifications in the financial statements of the Company for the year 2019-20. 
 

vi. Applicability of Accounting Standards: 
 
The Company has complied with all applicable Accounting Standards in preparation of its 
financial statements pursuant to the amended Schedule III of Companies Act, 2013. 

 
Securities and Exchange Board of India vide 
its circular no. CIR/CFD/CMD/13/2015 
dated   November 30, 2015 promoted the 
dematerialization of shares, encourage 

orderly development of the securities market and to improve transparency in the dealings of 
shares by promoters including pledge / usage as collateral, SEBI in consultation with Stock 
Exchanges, has decided that the securities of companies shall be traded in the normal 
segment of the exchange if and only if, the company has achieved 100% of promoter’s and 
promoter group’s shareholding and at least 50% of non-promoter holding shall be held in 
dematerialized form as reported to the stock exchanges. 
 
 The Company urges to all the shareholders holding shares in physical mode to dematerialize 
their holdings. The shareholders desirous of getting the shares dematerialised should 
approach a depository participant (DP) (for example, Indus Portfolio Private Limited) and get 
a depository account opened.The share certificates should be deposited with the same 
Depository Participant who shall approach the Company and get the shares dematerialised so 
that better smoothness and uniformity with the statutory regulations can be attained.  

DEMAT INITIATIVE 
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In case of any Annual Report and shares 
related query:  
 

Registered Office Corporate office Registrar and Transfer 
Agents 

129, Transport Centre, Punjabi 
Bagh, Rohtak Road, New Delhi- 
110035. 
Tel No.- 011-28315036 
Fax No.- 011-28315044 
Email Id- 
corporatecompliance@sindhutrad
e.com 
 

16A, 3rd Floor, Najafgarh Road, Moti 
Nagar, New Delhi-110015 
Tel No.- 011-47634400 
Fax No.- 011-47634423 
Email Id- 
corporatecompliance@sindhutrade.com 
Business Hours: 9:30 a.m. to 06:00 p.m. 
(except 2nd  Saturday) 

G-65, Bali Nagar, New 
Delhi-110 015 
Tel. No.- 011-47671200  
Fax no.- 011- 25449863 
Email id- 
d.kataria@indusinvest.co
m 
Business Hours: 09:00 
a.m. to 05:00 p.m.  

  
                                                        For and on behalf of Board of Directors 

Sindhu Trade Links Limited 
                           
 
 
 

                                                                               (Satya Pal Sindhu)             (Rudra Sen Sindhu)    
                                                                                                   Managing Director                  Director 

                                                                               Din no.-00218355               Din no.-00006999 
 
 

ADDRESSES FOR 
COMMUNICATION 
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Economic Developments and Industry View 
 
The unprecedented onset of Covid-19 pandemic has heavily impacted the global economy. 
The pandemic is raging high across the world with rising human casualties. Protecting lives 
and allowing health care systems to cope have required isolation, lockdowns, and widespread 
closures to slow the spread of the virus. The health crisis is therefore having a severe impact 
on economic activity. As a result of the pandemic, the global economy is projected to contract 
sharply by 4.9% in 2020, much worse than during the 2008–09 financial crisis. 
 
In the pre-COVID scenario, the Indian Economy continued the mid-single digit growth path. 
GDP growth has been slowing down during this period primarily due to declining rural 
wages, high unemployment levels, liquidity crunch in the system and slowdown in demand. 
 
First few cases of Covid-19 infection emerged in India in February 2020. Travel restrictions 
and testing norms were put in place from 1st week of March and these intensified further in 
the following week leading to a complete lockdown of entire country on 24th March 2020. 
This led to severe supply bottlenecks as transportation system came to a halt. 
 
Large sections of migrant labour moved back to their villages and movement of goods came 
to a standstill. Demand also came under pressure as consumers stocked up essential goods 
but cut down on purchases of non-essential products. 
 
Most companies shut down their operations in the first 21 days of the lockdown. By May 2020, 
the restrictions on movement of goods were eased and supply chains became operational, 
particularly outside the containment zones. While companies have started operations of their 
manufacturing facilities, a large part of the economy especially the hospitality sector, malls 
and recreation places, travel and tourism, small and medium industry, continue to be 
impacted even though there has been easing of lockdown in these sectors as well. 
 
Outlook on Opportunities  
 
The COVID-19 pandemic is likely to have a major negative impact across the world. It has led 
to quarantines, regional lockdowns and social distancing—which are essential to contain the 
virus —with particularly acute effects on sectors that rely on social interactions such as travel, 
hospitality, entertainment, and tourism. Workplace closures are disrupting supply chains and 
reducing productivity. Layoffs, lower incomes, fear of contagion, and heightened uncertainty 
make people spend less, leading to consumption squeeze and triggering further business 
closures and job losses. Health care expenditure, support to vulnerable sections of society and 
reduced tax revenue is likely to put severe pressure on fiscal balances of the government. 
 
We are passing through a global crisis of COVID-19, which has had a phenomenal impact on 
both humanity and the economy. Most of the governments are in a dilemma of “Lives Vs 
Livelihood”. Efforts are on at a war-footing level to develop a vaccine for COVID-19, but any 
launch of the vaccine will take a minimum of three to four more months. Till then, we will 
have to live with certain restrictions and follow strict measures of social distancing. These 
restrictions will, however, not bring the economy back on the normal track. 
 
Economic activities have a direct correlation with logistics; any negative trend in the economy 
will result more negatively on the logistics sector. In FY 2020, growth of the logistics sector 
has witnessed tapered growth compared to the previous few years. The crisis of the pandemic 
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is going to make the situation more critical in FY 2021. With respect to immediate term impact 
on logistics, it will be very severe and may force closure of small logistics companies, while in 
the long term this crisis may turn in opportunity for the Indian logistics sector. As per our 
estimates, the logistics sector is estimated to shrink by 12-13% in this financial year. 
 
Long term view on logistics is, however, quite optimistic. Current pandemic will lead to a 
shift in global manufacturing locations. China may be the biggest loser in the race and the 
most likely gainer could be India, Indonesia, Malaysia, Philippines and Vietnam. India 
developing as one of the major manufacturing destinations will be a terrific boost for the 
logistics sector. Also in the long run, other drivers of logistics linked to domestic consumption 
will be back to the normal pace of growth. 
 
Outlook for Threats, risks and concern 
 
We operate in a very competitive industry, with many unorganized players. Many segments 
within the logistics industry are highly commoditized and have low barriers to entry, leading 
to a market with a very high degree of fragmentation. In the recent past, startups and 
international logistics companies have entered the India market. Competition from these 
segments is likely to increase. We will need to stay ahead of our competition through 
consistent investments in modern technology and focus on service quality and value-added 
services.  
 

The cyclical fluctuations due to economic recession, downturn in business cycle, interest rate 
fluctuations and other economic factors beyond control has posed a serious threat on the 
Company policies in finance sector. Newer regulatory updates pose a constant challenge for 
smooth operations of the Company. Higher cost of funds might lead to reduced bottom-line 
for the Company. Like in most other industries, opportunity brings itself competition. The 
different levels of competition in each segment have led to the price cutting as well. 
 
The Indian logistics industry is fragmented and under developed. Logistics costs are relatively 
high due to poor physical and communication infrastructure; high dwell time at ports; low 
levels of containerization; and a multi-layered tax system contributing to significant delays at 
border crossing points. 
 
Human Resources/Industrial Relations 
 
The Company has continuously strive to attract and retain the best talent from the local 
markets; clearly define their roles and responsibilities; include them into robust performance 
management systems; create an inspiring and rewarding work environment; engage them 
into an inclusive work place; impart training and create development opportunities for 
increasing employee knowledge and efficiency to make them future ready; and create career 
opportunities within. 
 
The Company is committed in ensuring that the work environment at all its locations is 
conducive to fair, safe and harmonious relations between employees. It strongly believes in 
maintaining the dignity of all its employees, irrespective of their gender or seniority. 
Discrimination and harassment of any type are strictly prohibited. The Company ensures that 
no employee is disadvantaged by way of gender discrimination.  
 
Segment Wise or product wise performance 
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Due to the timely execution of the services and efficiency in implementation of policies of the 
Company, there has been the growth in all the sectors of the company i.e. trading in lubricants, 
transportation and finance and investment activities from last year’s performance. With 
superior methodologies and improved process and systems, the Company is well positioned 
to lead a high growth path. The details can be extracted from the notes to accounts. 
 
Cautionary statement 
 
Certain statements in the Management Discussion and Analysis describing the Company’s 
objectives, predictions may be “forward-looking statements” within the meaning of 
applicable laws and regulations. Actual results may vary significantly from the forward 
looking statements contained in this document due to various risks and uncertainties. These 
risks and uncertainties include the effect of economic and political conditions in India, 
volatility in interest rates, new regulations and Government policies that may impact the 
Company’s business as well as its ability to implement the strategy. The Company does not 
undertake to update these statements. 
                                                                                                                              
                                                                                                             
 
 
  
                                                                                (Satya Pal Sindhu)          (Rudra Sen Sindhu)    
                                                                                Managing Director                  Director 
                                                                               Din no.-00218355               Din no.-00006999 
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DECLARATION OF COMPLIANCE WITH CODE OF CONDUCT: 
 
This is to certify that all the Members of the Board of Directors and Senior Management (i.e. 
one level below the Executive Directors) of the Company, have confirmed compliance with 
the Company’s Code of Conduct during year 1st April, 2019 to 31st March, 2020:-  
 
The Company’s Code requires every member of the Board and Senior Management to:  
 

 Fulfill the functions of their office with integrity as well as professionalism and 
exercise the powers attached thereto, with due care and diligence.  

 Act in the best interests of, and fulfill their fiduciary obligations to the Company’s 
shareholders, whilst also considering the interests of other stakeholders. 

 Take informed business decisions based on independent judgment and in the best 
interests of the Company, not influenced by personal interest or gain. 

 Respect the confidentiality of information and use utmost discretion whilst deciding 
its disclosure or dissemination, ensuring that no personal advantage or detriment to 
the Company results from the same.  

 Make available to, and share information with fellow Directors / Executives when 
considered expedient in the best interests of the Company. 

 Protect and use the Company’s assets for legitimate business purposes and be alert to 
situations that could lead to loss or misuse of these assets. 

 Minimize any situation or action that can create conflict of interests of the Company 
vis-à-vis personal interest or interests of associated persons, and make adequate 
disclosures, where necessary. 

 Act in a manner that will protect the Company’s reputation. 
 Encourage reporting of behavior, which is contrary to the Company’s Values’, and 

ensure that the person reporting such violation is not aggrieved in any manner.  
 Comply, in letter and spirit, with all applicable laws, rules and regulations, and also 

honor the philosophy of ’Good Faith’, guided by one’s sense of right and wrong. 
 Abide by the relevant terms of the Insider Trading Code formulated by the Company, 

and any other Code that may be formulated from time to time, as applicable. 
 Adhere to the terms of the powers delegated by the Board. 
 Whilst entering into contracts with Service Providers and Consultants, protect the 

arrangement for disclosure or dissemination of confidential information. 
 Establish processes and systems for storage, retrieval and dissemination of documents, 

both in physical and electronic form, so that the obligations of this Code of Conduct 
are fulfilled. 

 Raise concerns, if any, on the above issues, at a Board Meeting. 
 
 

For and on behalf of Board of Directors  
Sindhu Trade Links Limited 

 
 
 
                                                                               (Satya Pal Sindhu)          (Rudra Sen Sindhu)    
                                                                                Managing Director                  Director 
                                                                               Din no.-00218355               Din no.-00006999 
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CEO/ CFO Certification 
 
 
To 
The Board of Directors 
Sindhu Trade Links Limited 
 
I, the undersigned, in my respective capacity as Chief Financial Officer of Sindhu Trade Links 
Limited (“the Company”), to the best of my knowledge and belief certify that: 
 

 I have reviewed financial statements and the cash flow statement for the year and that 
to the best of my knowledge and belief: 

o these statements do not contain any materially untrue statement or omit any 
material fact or contain statements that might be misleading; 

o these statements together present a true and fair view of the Company’s affairs 
and are in compliance with existing accounting standards, applicable laws and 
regulations.  
 

 There are, to the best of my knowledge and belief, no transactions entered into by the 
Company during the year which are fraudulent, illegal or violative of the Company’s 
Code of Conduct. 

 I accept responsibility for establishing and maintaining internal controls for financial 
reporting and that I have evaluated the effectiveness of internal control systems of the 
Company pertaining to financial reporting and I have disclosed to the Auditors and 
the Audit Committee, deficiencies in the design or operation of such internal controls, 
if any, of which I was aware and the steps I have taken or propose to take to rectify 
these deficiencies. 

 I have indicated to the Auditors and the Audit committee- 
o significant changes in internal control over financial reporting during the year; 
o Significant changes in accounting policies during the year and that the same 

have been disclosed in the notes to the financial statements; and  
o Instances of significant fraud of which I have become aware and the 

involvement therein, if any, of the management or an employee having a 
significant role in the Company’s internal control system over financial 
reporting. 

 
                                                                                                                                                
 
 
                                                                                                                                               
Place: New Delhi                                                     Vikas Singh Hooda 
Date: 04.12.2020                                                                                   (CFO) 
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AUDITORS’ CERTIFICATE ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE 
 
To  
The Members  
Sindhu Trade Links Limited, 
129, Transport Centre, Rohtak Road, 
Punjabi Bagh, New Delhi -110035. 
 
We have examined the compliance conditions of Corporate Governance by Sindhu Trade 
Links Limited, for the year ended 31st March, 2020 as stipulated in SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 
2015. 
 
The compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance is the responsibility of the 
Management. Our examination was limited to procedures and implementation thereof, 
adopted by the Company for ensuring the compliance of the conditions of Corporate 
Governance. It is neither an audit nor an expression of opinion on the Financial Statements of 
the Company. 
 
In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to 
us, we certify that the Company has complied in all material respects with the conditions of 
Corporate Governance as stipulated in the Listing Agreement entered into by the said 
Company with the Stock Exchanges. 
 
We certify that no investor grievances are pending for a period exceeding one month against 
the Company as per the records maintained by the Stakeholders Relationship Committee. 
 
We further certify that such compliance is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the 
Company nor the efficiency or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the 
affairs of the Company. 
 
For Divyank Khullar & Associates 
Chartered Accountants 
Registration No.: 025755N 
 
 
        
(Divyank Khullar) 
Proprietor 
M. No. 528399 
 
Place: New Delhi                                                                   
Date: 04.12.2020 



 

 
129, Transport Centre, Rohtak Road, Punjabi Bagh, New Delhi-110035 

Corporate Office: A-16, Najafgarh Road, Moti Nagar, New Delhi  - 110016 

  +91-11-47634400, Fax: +91-11-47634423 
www.sindhutrade.com, Cin No. L63020DL1992PLC121695,  

email id-corporatecompliance@sindhutrade.com 
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FORM NO. MGT-12 
Polling Paper 

 [Pursuant to section 109(5) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 21(1)(c) 
of the Companies (Management  and Administration) Rules, 2014] 

 
Name of the Company: M/s Sindhu Trade Links Limited 

 
Registered office: 129, Transport Centre, Rohtak Road, Punjabi Bagh, New   Delhi -110035 

 
BALLOT PAPER  

S. 

No

Particulars Details 

1 Name of the first named  

shareholder (in block letters) 

 

 
2 

 
Postal Address 

 

3 Registered folio no./*Client ID no.
(Applicable to investors holding shares in
dematerialized form) 

 

 
4 

 
Class of shares  

 
I hereby exercise my vote in respect of ordinary/special resolution enumerated below by recording my assent / 
dissent to the said resolution in the following manner: 

 
No. Item No. No. of 

shares held 

by me 

I assent to 
the resolution

I dissent 

from the 

resolution 

1. Adoption of the Audited Balance Sheet as at March 
31, 2020 (Standalone and Consolidated), Statement 
of Profit and Loss, Cash Flow Statement for the 
period ended on that date and the Auditor’s Report 
thereon and the Directors’ Report thereto. 

   

 
2. 

Approval for appointment a Director in place of Mr. 
Rudra Sen Sindhu, who retires by rotation and, being 
eligible, offers himself for re-appointment. 

   

3. Regularization of Additional Director Mrs. Usha 
Sindhu 

   

4. Regularization of Additional Director Mr. Ramesh 
Shah 

   

5. Approval Of Related Party Transactions With Sainik 
Mining And Allied Services Limited Amounting To 
Rs. 300 Crores (Approx.) For The Financial Year 
2020-21.   

   



 

 
129, Transport Centre, Rohtak Road, Punjabi Bagh, New Delhi-110035 

Corporate Office: A-16, Najafgarh Road, Moti Nagar, New Delhi  - 110016 

  +91-11-47634400, Fax: +91-11-47634423 
www.sindhutrade.com, Cin No. L63020DL1992PLC121695,  

email id-corporatecompliance@sindhutrade.com 
---------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 
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6. Approval Of Related Party Transactions With 
ACB(India) Limited Amounting To Rs. 350 Crores 
(Approx.) For The Financial Year 2020-21 

 

   

 

 

Place: 
Date:                                                                                                                                                                           

(Signature of shareholder/Proxy) 


